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Indicate by check mark whether the registthas submitted electronically and posted oodtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the préawgd2 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit @ost such files). Ye& No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofimiguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulati#iK is not contained herein, and will not be
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Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & non-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of "largeederated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smalleporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
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Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12bthefExchange Act). YAS No
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Nasdaq Global Select Market. This amount excludesggregate of 85,091,743 shares of common stddkdlgeofficers and directors at
each person known by the registrant to own 10%arernf the outstanding common stock of the registaa of June 30, 2011. Exclusion of
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number of shares of the registrant's common statdtanding as of February 22, 2012 was 165,871,574.
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Any statements contained in this Annual&epn Form 10-K that are not statements of histdrfiact may be deemed to be forward-
looking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 21the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Withdmiting the foregoing, the words
believes, anticipates, plans, expects, seeks, &stanshould and similar expressions are intermatentify forward-looking statements. Any
forward-looking statements contained herein areda® current expectations, but are subject tanabeu of risks and uncertainties. The
factors that could cause actual future resultsfferdnaterially from current expectations includbeit are not limited to, the outcome of any
actions that may be taken by government agenciesrinection with FCPA compliance matters that weehaported to them, risks and
uncertainties related to adverse changes in theoeaia and political conditions in the countriesanihich we operate, the integration of
businesses we have acquired or may acquire iruthesf changing technologies, product developmedtaarket acceptance of our products,
the cost and pricing of our products, manufactyramgnpetition, dependence on collaborative partartskey suppliers, capital spending and
government funding policies, changes in governmeatulations, intellectual property rights, litigan, exposure to foreign currency
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fluctuations and other factors, many of which ageatibed in more detail in this Annual Report omfFd0-K under Item 1A. "Risk Factors"
and from time to time in other filings we may ma#ith the Securities and Exchange Commission. Wthi#ieCompany may elect to update
forward-looking statements in the future, it spieeilly disclaims any obligation to do so, everhi&tCompany's estimates change, and reader:
should not rely on those forward-looking statemestsepresenting the Company's views as of anystifisequent to the date of the filing of
this report.

References to "we,
predecessor entities.

us,"” "our" or the "Quamy" refer to Bruker Corporation and, in some saie subsidiaries, as well as all

Our principal executive offices are locatédO Manning Road, Billerica, MA 01821, and celephone number is (978) 663-3660.
Information about Bruker Corporation is availablevavw.bruker.com The information on our website is not incorpodabg reference into
and does not form a part of this report. All tradeks, trade names or copyrights referred to inrég®rt are the property of their respective
owners.
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PART I
ITEM1 BUSINESS
Our Business

We are a global manufacturer of scientif&truments that address the rapidly evolving neédsdiverse array of customers in life
science, pharmaceutical, biotechnology, clinical evlecular diagnostics research, as well as irr@$ and chemical analysis in various
industries and government applications. Our teampoplatforms include magnetic resonance techneggnass spectrometry technologies,
gas chromatography technologies, X-ray technolggieark-optical emission spectroscopy, atomic fonggroscopy, stylus and optical
metrology technology and infrared and Raman mobecspectroscopy technologies. We manufacture astdhiite a broad range of field
analytical systems for chemical, biological, rad@tal, nuclear and explosives, or CBRNE, detectitia also design, manufacture and
market superconducting materials and devices basedrily on metallic low temperature supercondesi@and ceramic high temperature
superconductors. Our corporate headquarters amtelbin Billerica, Massachusetts. We maintain migohnical and manufacturing center
Europe, North America, and Japan, and we have effless located throughout the world.

Strategy and Competitive Strengths

Our business strategy is to capitalize wnaility to innovate and generate rapid revermasvth, both organically and through
acquisitions. If we can execute on this strategiferimproving our gross margins and effectivelydeaging our research and development,
sales, marketing and distribution investments, gamteral and administrative expenses, we believeillenhance our operating margins and
improve our earnings in the future.

Our key competitive strengths include our:

. broad product and service offerings in the marketserve;

. commitment to innovative, reliable, and performateading products and solutions for our customers;
. premier global brands;

. extensive intellectual property portfolio; and

. global manufacturing, distribution, and logistietworks.

Business Segments

We are organized into five operating segsiéBruker BioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MATrliker Optics, and Bruker Energy &
Supercon Technologies. Bruker BioSpin is in tharmss of designing, manufacturing and distributifegscience tools based on magnetic
resonance technology. Bruker Daltonics is in therimss of designing, manufacturing, and distrilgutitass spectrometry and gas
chromatography instruments and solutions for Idiersces, including proteomics, metabolomics, aimdazl research applications. Our mass
spectrometry and gas chromatography instrumentspats/ide solutions for applied markets that inelddod safety, environmental analysis
and fuel analysis. Bruker Daltonics also desigrenufactures, and distributes various analyticatimsents for CBRNE detection. Bruker
MAT, or materials research, analysis and metroligin the business of designing, manufacturing, distributing advanced X-ray, spark
optical emission spectroscopy, combustion analgsisnic force microscopy and stylus and opticalrolegy instrumentation used in
molecular, materials, and elemental analysis. Brakgics is in the business of designing, manufag and distributing research, analytis
and process analysis instruments and solutionsil@sefrared and Raman molecular spectroscopyntdofies. Bruker Energy & Supercon
Technologies is in the business of developing andyring superconducting materials and devicesthpsmarily on metallic low
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temperature superconductors and ceramic high teyersuperconductors with applications in reneevablergy, energy infrastructure,
medical imaging and life science analytics and aiggnce" research, which typically consists ajéascale projects funded by a government
or a group of governments.

For financial reporting purposes, we corelitme Bruker BioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MAMd Bruker Optics operating segments
into the Scientific Instruments reporting segmestduse each has similar economic characteristiedupt processes and services, types and
classes of customers, methods of distribution,ragdlatory environments. As such, management reisrfinancial results based on the
following segments:

. Scientific Instruments.The operations of this segment include the desigmufacture and distribution of advanced
instrumentation and automated solutions based g@mnet& resonance technology, mass spectrometrydémdy, gas
chromatography technology, X-ray technology, spapkieal emission spectroscopy technology, atomicganicroscopy
technology, stylus and optical metrology technolayd infrared and Raman molecular spectroscowntdogy. Typical
customers of the Scientific Instruments segmentde pharmaceutical, biotechnology and molecuilagmbstic companies;
academic institutions, medical schools and otherprofit organizations; clinical microbiology lataiories; government
departments and agencies; nanotechnology, semictordahemical, cement, metals and petroleum compaand food,
beverage and agricultural analysis companies datdtories.

. Energy & Supercon Technologied he operations of this segment include the desigmufacture and marketing of
superconducting materials, primarily metallic leamtperature superconductors, for use in magnetimagse imaging, nuclear
magnetic resonance, fusion energy research andaypécations, and ceramic high temperature supehectors primarily for
fusion energy research applications. Typical custenof the Energy & Supercon Technologies segnmehide companies in
the medical industry, private and public researuth development laboratories in the fields of fundatal and applied sciences
and energy research, academic institutions andrgment agencies. The Energy & Supercon Technolsgigment is also
developing superconductors and superconductinglethaevices for applications in power and energywall as industrial
processing industries.

Scientific Instruments Segmer

Bruker BioSpin manufactures and distribigrabling life science tools based on magneticrrasce technology. Magnetic resonance
natural phenomenon occurring when a molecule platadnagnetic field gives off a signature radieginency. The signature radio frequency
is characteristic of the particular molecule anovdes a multitude of precise chemical and stratimformation. Depending on the intended
application, we market and sell to our customearsggnetic resonance imaging system, known as pn&&liMRI; a nuclear magnetic
resonance system, known as NMR; or an electrompagaetic resonance system, known as EPR. Bruk&piaalso offers high-field OEM
MRI magnets to medical device manufacturers. Bridie6Spin's products, which have particular appiaain structural proteomics, drug
discovery, research, and food and materials sciééelcks, provide customers with the ability to deténe the structure, dynamics, and func
of specific molecules, such as proteins, and toattiarize and determine the composition of mixtu@sstomers of our Bruker BioSpin
operating segment include pharmaceutical and bioogy companies, academic institutions, medichbsls, other nonprofit laboratories,
and government agencies, as well as chemical,daddeverage, and polymer companies.

Bruker Daltonics manufactures and distelsutfescience mass spectrometry instruments that camtégrated and used along with ol
sample preparation or chromatography instrumestsjedl as our CBRNE detection products. Our masstspmeters are sophisticated
devices that measure the mass or weight of a melecwd can provide accurate information on thetilerquantity, and
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primary structure of molecules. Mass spectromeaiseld solutions often combine advanced mass spegttsomstrumentation, automated
sampling and sample preparation robots, reagengkitl other disposable products used in condutdstg, or assays, and bioinformatics
software. We offer mass spectrometry systems aedriated solutions for applications in multiplestixig and emerging life-science markets
and chemical and applied markets, including exjpragsroteomics, clinical proteomics, metabolic gegtide biomarker profiling, drug
discovery and development, molecular diagnostissarch, and molecular and systems biology, asasdisic molecular medicine research
and clinical microbiology (for research use onlysige the European Union). We also supply varigssess based on mass spectrometry
mobility spectrometry, infrared spectroscopy, aadiological/nuclear detectors for CBRNE detectiominergency response, homeland
security, and defense applications. Customers oBauker Daltonics operating segment include phaeuécal, biotechnology, and
diagnostics companies, academic institutions, nadichools, nonprofit or for-profit forensics, foadd beverage safety, environmental and
clinical microbiology laboratories, and governmdapartments and agencies.

The Bruker MAT operating segment manufaagiand distributes Bruker AXS advanced X-ray aradkspptical emission spectroscopy,
or spark-OES, systems, as well as Bruker Nano atfonie microscopy, or AFM, and stylus and optio&trology, or SOM, instrumentation.
Bruker AXS X-ray systems are advanced instrumérasuse electromagnetic radiation with extremelyrsivavelengths to determine the
characteristics of matter and the three-dimensistmatture of molecules. Spark-OES systems are tasadalyze the concentration of
elements in metallic samples. The Bruker MAT pditfalso includes carbon, sulfur, oxygen, nitrogew hydrogen, or CS/ONH, analyzers
based on combustion or heat extraction with infitared thermal conductivity technology. AFM instrurteeprovide atomic or near atomic
resolution of surface topography using nano scalbgs or white light interferometry. Using modutdaitforms, we often combine our
technology applications with sample preparationstomutomation, consumables, and data analysizait These products provide custon
with the ability to determine the three-dimensiostalicture of specific molecules, such as protaingd,to characterize and determine the
composition of materials down to the dimensiongliaenanotechnology. Bruker MAT also includes thaeremalyzers, which measure the
physical characteristics of materials as a functibtemperature and can be used in developmenduption, and characterization of materials
in a variety of industries. Customers of our BrukXT operating segment include biotechnology andrpiaceutical companies,
nanotechnology companies, semiconductor compamaesmaterial manufacturers, chemical companiegjexo& institutions, governmental
customers, and other businesses involved in migenealysis.

Bruker Optics manufactures and distribuésgarch, analytical, and process analysis insmtsvand solutions based on infrared and
Raman molecular spectroscopy technologies. Theskipts are utilized in industry, government, anaidamia for a wide range of
applications and solutions for life science, phareudical, food and agricultural analysis, qualiontrol, and process analysis applications.
Infrared and Raman spectroscopy are widely usédtim research and industry as simple, rapid, ndndgive, and reliable techniques for
applications ranging from basic sample identifizatand quality control to advanced research. Brakaics utilizes Fourier transform and
dispersive Raman measurement techniques on arsesdgange of laboratory and process spectrométbesBruker Optics product line is
complemented by a wide range of sampling accessarid techniques, which include microanalysis, #iighughput screening, and many
others, to help users find suitable solutions t@yare their samples effectively.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segme

Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, BSE, designs, manufactures and markets superconguwaterials, primarily metallic low
temperature superconductors, for use in magnetanance imaging, nuclear magnetic resonance, fesiergy research and other
applications. BEST also develops, manufacturesnaautkets ceramic high temperature superconductorfsi$mn energy
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research and other applications. Additionally, BE®frs non-superconducting Cupor¥l materials and wires, based on co-extruded coppel
and aluminum, used in the power and transport iniggs BEST also develops, manufactures and madetices based primarily on
superconductivity that utilize low temperature dugh temperature superconducting materials. Thesies are sophisticated and complex
tools that have applications primarily in "big soie" research, and include superconducting magneksadio frequency accelerator cavities
and modules, power couplers and linear acceletd®&ST also manufactures and sells non-supercoimgucigh technology tools, such as X-
ray beamlines and synchrotrons and laboratoryungntation, principally to customers engaged inemials research and "big science”
research projects. BEST is currently developingsdaeneration high temperature superconductorsewdsuperconductivity-enabled
devices, including crystal growth magnets for usthe solar and semiconductor industries, induciygerconducting fault current limiters
energy infrastructure applications and other segameration high temperature superconducting nadgeaind coils for high-power wind
turbine generators.

We have announced plans to sell a minoritgership position in BEST through an initial paldiffering of the capital stock of BEST. If
completed, we believe the offering will provide alvareholders greater visibility into BEST's pemfance and expand BEST's access to
financing for its growth initiatives, including tlieevelopment of products for the renewable enenglyemergy infrastructure markets. As a
result of market and economic factors, the timifithe BEST initial public offering, if any, is undain.

Products and Solutions

We believe that our products and solutioffier the following advantages to our customers:

. high performance and precision;

. integrated solutions for specific applications;
. reliability and increased productivity;

. high-quality results; and

. cost-efficiency.

Scientific Instruments Segmer

Bruker BioSpin systems integrate a radégfrency source and transmitter, one or more semsititectors, a magnet sized for the
particular application, and operating and analgsfbwvare to acquire and analyze radio frequencayagiges that are given off when a mole:
is placed in a magnetic field. These systems addresy of the matter characterization needs opktamaceutical and biotechnology
industries and also have applications in advancatgmals research, materials analysis, and quadityrol. During 2011, we launched a
number of new products in the BioSpin product lineluding Prodigy, a cost-efficient CryoProbe pichng a three time enhancement in
sensitivity. We also extended our range of Asceadmets, a series of compact magnets designeduoaetyogen consumption which
allows for lower operating costs and sustainabibityd made a number of improvements to our Avanosale architecture and TopSpin
software to improve productivity and quality contro

Bruker BioSpin magnetic resonance systam$ased on the following technology platforms:

. NMR —Nuclear magnetic resonance;
. MRI —Magnetic resonance imaging; and
. EPR —Electron paramagnetic resonance.

NMR is a qualitative and quantitative analytical tecju@ that is used to determine the molecular stractod purity of a sample.
Molecules are placed in a magnetic field and gif@oadio
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frequency, or rf, signature that is recorded bgrsgtive detector. Analysis software helps to debee the molecular structure of the sample.
The NMR technique is used in academia, pharma@@ il biotechnology companies, and by other im@lstsers in life science and
material science research.

MRI is a process of creating an image from the mantijpmaf hydrogen atoms in a magnetic field. In giesence of an external
magnetic field, atoms will align with or againsetbxternal magnetic field. Application of a radieduency causes the atoms to jump betweer
high and low energy states. MRI and magnetic rescmapectroscopy, or MRS, include many methodsidtiat) diffusion-weighted,
perfusion-weighted, molecular imaging, and contesgtance. Customers use our MRI systems in phautieakresearch, including
metabonomics, to study a number of diseases, imgutbgenerative joint diseases, oncology, andi@aadcular disorders.

EPRis a process of absorption of microwave radiatipparamagnetic ions or molecules with at leastwmaired electron that spins
the presence of a static magnetic field. EPR detagpaired electrons unambiguously, whereas o#ltbntques can only provide indirect
evidence of their presence. In addition, EPR cantifly the paramagnetic species that are deteateidh present information on the
molecular structure near the unpaired electrongiwvel insight into dynamic processes such as madecubtions or fluidity. Our EPR
instruments are used for a wide range of applinatiocluding advanced materials research, mateaiatysis, and quality control.

Bruker Daltonics mass spectrometry instmim@ddress a wide range of life sciences appbieatiMass spectrometry is the method of
choice for protein primary structure analysis, irtthg the determination of amino acid sequencepast-translational modifications and
protein quantification. As a result, mass spectrioyris an enabling technology of the expressiortgmics laboratory. Mass spectrometers
are also increasingly used for the discovery otigepprotein, or metabolite biomarkers and paoeigatterns of biomarkers. These
biomarkers can be used for toxicity screening asgess drug efficacy in peéinical trials in pharmaceutical drug developméritey are als
used in clinical research and validation studieth@éemerging field of protein molecular diagnastiburing 2011, we expanded the Bruker
Daltonics product lines with a number of new pradwand applications in our MaXis series of quadtepione-of-flight mass spectrometers
that are designed to increase speed, resolutiosemsitivity. We also introduced the SCION seriegas chromatography-mass spectrometry
systems that are designed to provide ease of usmareased sensitivity. In addition, we acquirdifjaid chromatography-mass spectrometry
business in April 2011 to expand our mass spectignpeoduct line.

Bruker Daltonics' instruments are basetherfollowing technology platforms:

. MALDI-TOF —Matrix-assisted laser desorption ionization tinfdlight mass spectrometry, including tandem tinfeflight
systems (MALDI-TOF/TOF);

. ESI-TOF —Electrospray ionization time-of-flight spectrometincluding tandem mass spectrometry systems bas&b|-
guadrupole-TOF mass spectrometry (ESI-Q-g-TOF);

. FTMS —Fourier transform mass spectrometry, includingrliybystems with a quadrupole front end (Q-g-FTMS);
. ITMS —lon trap mass spectrometry;

. GC —Gas chromatography;

. GC-MS —Gas chromatography-mass spectrometry systemzingilsingle or triple-quadrupole time-of-flight nsas
spectrometry;

. LC-MS —Liquid chromatography-mass spectrometry; and

. ICP-MS —Inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry.
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MALDI-TOF mass spectrometers utilize an ionization process#dyze solid samples using a laser that comlhiiggssample
throughput with high mass range and sensitivity: RALDI-TOF mass spectrometers are particularlyfukir applications in clinical
diagnostics, environmental and taxonomical reseaucti food processing and quality control. Speéifiplications include: oligonucleotide
and synthetic polymer analysis; protein identificatand quantification; peptide de novo sequendilegermination of post-translational
modifications of proteins; interaction proteomicglgrotein function analysis; drug discovery andaliepoment; and fast body fluid and tissue
peptide or protein biomarker detection. MALDI maggctrometry allows users to classify and identifgroorganisms quickly and reliably
with minimal sample preparation efforts and lifelgycosts. Our MALDI Biotyper solution enables itiBoation, taxonomical classification,
or dereplication of microorganisms like bacteriaasts, and fungi.

ESI-TOF mass spectrometers utilize an electrospray ionizgirocess to analyze liquid samples. This iororagirocess, which does
not dissociate the molecules, allows for rapid daguisition and analysis of large biological males. ESI-TOF mass spectrometers are
particularly useful for: identification, protein alysis and functional complex analysis in prote@@and protein function; molecular
identification in metabonomics, natural product andg metabolite analysis; combinatorial chemisiigh throughput screening; and fast
liquid chromatography mass spectrometry, or ligghdomatography mass spectrometry (LC/MS), in disgaVery and development.

FTMS systems utilize high-field superconducting magnetsffer the highest resolution, selectivity, andss accuracy currently
achievable in mass spectrometry. Our systems lmas#us technology often eliminate the need fortioconsuming separation techniques in
complex mixture analyses. In addition, our systearsfragment molecular ions to perform exact massdyais on all fragments to determine
molecular structure. FTMS systems are particulaskgful for: the study of structure and functiorbafmolecules, including proteins, DNA,
and natural products; complex mixture analysisudirig body fluids or combinatorial libraries; higfr-oughput proteomics and
metabonomics; and top-down proteomics of intactging without the need for enzymatic digestionhef proteins prior to analysis. We offer
next-generation hybrid FTMS systems that combitraditional external quadrupole mass selector ax@pole collision cell with a high-
performance FTMS for further ion dissociation, t@an proteomics tools, and ultra-high resolutiotedgon.

ITMS systems collect all ions simultaneously, which ioy@s sensitivity relative to previous quadrupolessngpectrometers. lon trap
mass spectrometers are particularly useful foruseging and identification based on peptide strat@nalysis; quantitative liquid
chromatography—mass spectrometry; identificationarhbinatorial libraries; and generally enhancimg $peed and efficiency of the drug
discovery and development process.

GC systems are used to separate volatile or semiieotatmpounds by separating them into individuahponents using a temperature
controlled gas chromatographer. In GC systemsimgpleais introduced to the gas chromatographer tapalsises through a chromatography
column. The chromatographer separates mixturednnfeidual components and provides a quantitainalysis of the components. Our GC
systems can be utilized in a variety of configunasi and are designed to enhance system efficiemtparformance and to provide analysts
with flexibility in choosing their platform or cusiizing their system to meet their particular apgtion need. Our GC systems are
particularly useful for applications in petroleufuel and hydrocarbon analysis, food and produdtgatnd forensics and environmental
analysis.

GC-MS systems combine the features of gas chromatograpthynass spectrometry to identify different sulbestarwithin a test samp
The two components, used together, allow for afitegyree of substance identification than eithetesy when used separately. The resull
guantitative analysis of the components and thesrapsctrum of each component. Our GC-MS systemavaitable in single and triple
guadrupole configurations and can be configuretl @ivariety of options to suit a

8




Table of Contents

range of applications. Our GC-MS systems have agidins in food and product safety, forensics,icéihand toxicology testing and
environmental, pharmaceutical and chemical analysis

LC-MS systems combine the separation features of liguidmatography with the molecular identificationtfeas of mass
spectrometry to separate, identify and quantiffediint substances within a test sample. As a congpiiary technique to GC-MS, which
analyzes volatile compounds, LC-MS can be usedatyae a wide range of non-volatile compounds imgiex samples. Our LC-MS
systems are available in a wide range of configmmatto suit a user's specific needs. Although arily used for life science applications, our
LC-MS systems also have applications in food amdipet safety, forensics, clinical and toxicologstieg, as well as environmental,
pharmaceutical and chemical analysis.

ICP-MS systems utilize mass spectrometers combined whijlatemperature inductively coupled plasma soufbe. inductively
coupled plasma source can convert solid and ligaidples to ions which are then separated and ddtbgtthe mass spectrometer. 10S-is
a fast and flexible technique that offers advargamesr more traditional techniques for elementalysis. Our ICP-MS systems are designed
to provide high performance and ease of use. ICPs)Ems are used for both routine analysis arehrel in a variety of areas including
environmental, geochemical and food and agriculfietds.

We sell a wide range of portable analytarad bioanalytical detection systems and relatedymts for CBRNE detection. Our customers
use these devices for nuclear, biological agentcaiethical agent defense applications, anti-temgriaw enforcement, and process and
facilities monitoring. Our CBRNE detection produate many of the same technology platforms asifeusdience products, as well as
additional technologies, including infrared remdé&tection and ion mobility spectrometry, for harldhehemical detectors. We also provide
integrated, comprehensive detection suites thaidecour multiple detection systems, consumabta®ing, and simulators.

Bruker MAT's X-ray systems integrate powédetectors with advanced X-ray sources, compeaetrolled positioning systems, sample
handling devices, and data collection and analdisvare to acquire, analyze and manage elememdaimlecular information. These
integrated solutions address many of the matteiackerization and structure needs of the life ssepharmaceutical, semiconductor, raw
materials, and research industries across a bewapkrof applications. During 2011, we introduced deray crystallography systems for
structural biology that are equipped with new X-sayirces and feature increased intensity. We atsoduced a number of new atomic force
microscopy systems, including the Dimension FastSedich is designed to significantly reduce opeagatime while maintaining accurate,
high-resolution results. In addition, we acquirettilaology and mechanical testing business in Oat@®11 which expanded our AFM
business into adjacent markets where we previdaidlyot compete.

Bruker MAT systems are based on the folimptiechnology platforms:

. XRD —Polycrystalline X-ray diffraction, often referréd as X-ray diffraction;
. XRF —X-ray fluorescence, also called X-ray spectromeatgluding handheld XRF systems;

. SC-XRD —Single crystal X-ray diffraction, often referrenlds X-ray crystallography;

. EDS —Energy dispersive X-ray spectroscopy on electrigrascopes;

. EBSD —Electron backscatter diffraction on electron mgzropes;

. S-OES—Spark optical emission spectroscopy;

. CS/ONH —Combustion analysis for carbon, sulfur, oxygetrogien, and hydrogen in solids;
. AFM —Atomic force microscopy;

. SOM —Stylus and optical metrology; and

. TMT —Tribology and mechanical test systems for analgEfsiction and wear.
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XRD systems investigate polycrystalline samples or filims with single wavelength X-rays. The atomghe polycrystalline sample
scatter the X-rays to create a unique diffractiatigyn recorded by a detector. Computer softwavegsses the pattern and produces a variety
of information, including stress, texture, qualitatand quantitative phase composition, crystadlize, percent crystallinity and layer
thickness, composition, defects, and density of fiins and semiconductor material. Our XRD systemstribute to a reduction in the
development cycles for new products in the catafyaymer, electronic, optical material, and semahactor industries. Customers also use
our XRD systems for analyses in a variety of offedds, including forensics, art, and archaeology.

XRF systems determine the elemental composition oftenahand provide a full qualitative and quantitatanalysis. Our XRF
systems direct X-rays at a sample, and the atortieeisample absorb the X-ray energy. The elemaritseisample then emit X-rays that are
characteristic for each element. The system callihet X-rays, and the software analyzes the regultata to determine the elements that are
present. Our XRF products provide automated salatan a turn-key basis for industrial users thqtime automated, controlled production
processes that reduce product and process castagecoutput, and improve product quality. Our XiRéducts cover substantially all of the
periodic table and can analyze solid, powder,aqridl samples.

SC-XRD systems determine the thrdenensional structures of molecules in a chemioaberal, or biological substance being analy
SC-XRD systems have the capability to determingctitre in both small chemical molecules and lalgemolecules. SC(RD systems dire:
an X-ray beam at a solid, single crystal sampl& dioms in the crystal sample scatter the X-raysdate a precise diffraction pattern
recorded by an electronic detector. Software teeonstructs a model of the structure and providesihique arrangement of the atoms in the
sample. This information on the exact arrangemé&atams in the sample is a critical part of molecwnalysis and can provide insight into a
variety of areas, including how a protein functi@msnteracts with a second molecule. Our SC-XREteaps are designed for use in the life
sciences industry, academic research, and a varfi@ther applications.

EDS systems analyze the chemical composition of mdseuiader investigation in electron microscopes tiljzing the fact that atoms
of different chemical elements, when exposed tchtgh energy electron beam generated by the miopesdrradiate X-rays of different,
characteristic energy. The evaluation of the ensmpctrum collected by our spectrometer allowsigtermination of the qualitative and
guantitative chemical sample composition at theenirbeam position. EDS systems allow for simultarseanalysis of all elements in the
periodic table, beginning with atomic number 4 {ftlerm). Our EDS systems are used for a range pfiegtions, including nanotechnology
and advanced materials research, as well as matanalysis and quality control. Customers for E9yStems include industrial customers,
academia, and government research facilities.

EBSD systems are used to perform quantitative microstra@nalysis of crystalline samples in electronroscopes. The microscope's
electron beam strikes the tilted sample and difé@electrons form a pattern on a fluorescent scrBleis pattern is characteristic of the
crystal structure and orientation of the sampléore§rom which it was generated. It provides thedbte crystal orientation with sub-micron
resolution. EBSD can be used to characterize nadgesiith regard to crystal orientation, textureess, strain, and grain size. EBSD also
allows the identification of crystalline phases dnelir distribution, and is applied to many indiegrsuch as metals processing, aerospace,
automotive, microelectronics, and earth sciences.

S-OESinstruments are used for analyzing metals. S-OESrem broad range of applications for metals amfyom pure metals trace
analysis to high alloyed grades, and allow for gsialof a complete range of relevant elements sanabusly. S-OES instruments pass an
electric spark onto a sample, which burns the saréd the sample and causes atoms to jump to &haghit. Our detectors quantify the light
emitted by these atoms and help our customerstésrdme the elemental
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composition of the material. This technique is MWydesed in production control laboratories of foried and steel mills.

CS/ONH carrier gas systems incorporate a furnace andré@drar thermal conductivity detection to analyzerganic materials for the
determination of carbon, sulfur, nitrogen, oxyged &ydrogen. Combustion and inert gas fusion aeasyare used for applications in metal
production and processing, chemicals, ceramicamknt, coal processing and oil refining, and sendactors.

AFM systems provide atomic or near-atomic resolutiomaferial surface topography using a nano-scaleepiioat is brought into light
contact with the sample being investigated. In toldito presenting a surface image, AFM can alswide quantitative nano-scale
measurements of feature sizes, material propeeiestrical information, chemical properties anbdestsample characteristics. Our AFM
systems are used for applications in materialstémidgical research and semiconductor, data stanage drive, LED, battery, solar cells,
polymers and pharmaceutical product developmennaentufacturing.

SOM systems provide atomic or near-atomic two dimeraiand three dimensional surface resolution usihggeaight interferometry,
confocal optical and stylus profilometry method®Ns profilers range from low-cost manual tools forgde measurements to advanced,
highly automated systems for production line gya#surance and quality control applications wileeecombination of throughput,
repeatability and reproducibility is essential. S@Mfilers support a range of applications in resegproduct development, tribology, qua
control and failure analysis related to materiad enachining in the automotive, orthopedic, ophttia) high brightness LED, semiconduci
data storage, optics and other markets.

TMT systems provide a platform for all types of commuechanical, friction, durability, scratch and intiion tests for a wide
spectrum of materials. Tribology systems are @difor both academic research of the fundamenttnmmabhproperties and industrial
applications in the semiconductor, aerospace, leetnn, automotive and other industries.

Bruker Optics' research, analytical, anacpss analysis instruments are used in both résaactindustry as simple, rapid,
nondestructive, and reliable techniques for appiboa ranging from basic sample identification gulity control to advanced research. The
Bruker Optics spectrometry product line is complated by a range of sampling accessories and teesbsip help users find the best solu
to analyze samples effectively. During 2011, weaged the Bruker Optics product line with a nuntdfarew products targeted for food and
pharmaceutical production control and for remotess®y of gases from long distances.

Bruker Optics systems are based on theviatig technology platforms:

. FT-IR —Fourier transform-infrared spectroscopy;
. NIR —Near-infrared spectroscopy; and
. Raman—Raman spectroscopy.

FT-IR is a spectroscopic method that utilizes the mid fan-infrared regions of the electromagnetic spaot FTIR is commonly use
for various quality control and materials reseapplications.

NIR is a spectroscopic method that utilizes the nefaatied region of the electromagnetic spectrum. Tdgsnique is heavily used for
quality and process control applications in therpteeutical, food and agriculture, and chemicalgtdes. The pharmaceutical industry is
the leading user of NIR instruments, and applicetimclude quality control, research and develogaerd process analytical technology.
The food and agricultural industry is the secomddat user of NIR instrumentation, with an incragsiemand for food, forage, and beverage
quality control.

Raman spectroscopy is the measurement of the wavelemgthindéensity of inelastically scattered light. TRaman scattered light occ
at wavelengths that are shifted from the incidigfttlby the
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energies of molecular vibrations. Like infrared @pascopy (IR), the Raman spectrum provides infdgionaon molecular structure. The
mechanism of Raman scattering is different fronm dfianfrared absorption, in that Raman and IR $@eprovide complementary informatic
Raman is useful for the identification of both angaand inorganic compounds and functional groitgs.a nondestructive technique, and
be used for the analysis of both liquids and softman is well suited for use in the polymer ahdrmaceutical industries, and has
applications in the metals, electronics, and sendootors industries. The technique also has agjgitain life sciences, forensics, and
artwork authentication.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segme

BEST products include superconducting niateas well as superconductivity-enabled tools @dexces for markets in healthcare and
"big science" research. The BEST product line alstudes non-superconducting materials and coneeatidevices. Low temperature
superconducting products are used in diagnosticgesehrch tools for the healthcare and life sciémastries, including clinical MRI and
ultra-high field NMR spectroscopy. Low temperatamperconducting materials are also used in prodlstsloped or in development for a
range of renewable energy and "big science" rekegpplications, including energy storage, high gnghysics and fusion research. High
temperature superconducting, or HTS, materialsisee in a range of pre-commercial HTS applicatior@duding motors, generators,
superconducting fault current limiters, transformy@ables and current leads.

Sales and Marketing

We maintain direct sales forces throughdarth America, Europe, Japan, Asia Pacific and falist We also utilize indirect sales
channels to reach customers. We have various attenal distributors, independent sales represeetgtand various other representatives in
parts of Asia, Latin America, and Eastern EurogeesE entities augment our direct sales force avd® coverage in areas where we do not
have direct sales personnel. In addition, we halegpt@d a distribution business model in which wgagre in strategic distribution alliances
with other companies to address certain market satsnThe sales cycle for our products is deperatetite size and complexity of the
system and budgeting cycles of our customers. @as<ycle is typically three to twenty four montbsacademic and high-end research
products and two weeks to six months for induspralducts. The sales cycle of our low temperatupesconducting materials is typically
four to twelve months, with cycles of certain highd materials exceeding one year. Sales of ourcsupgucting devices typically take more
than one year and certain large, complex contiaoidake more than two years to obtain.

We have well-equipped application and destration facilities and qualified application pemsel who assist customers and provide
product demonstrations in specific application ar&sle maintain our primary demonstration facilité®ur production facilities as well as in
other key markets.

Customers

We have a broad and diversified globaldiéeéences and advanced and raw materials custaser Our life science customer base is
composed primarily of end-users and includes pheentical, biotechnology, proteomics, molecular dizgjics, food/feed/agricultural, and
fine chemical companies, as well as commercialri@ooies, university laboratories, medical schoaig] other not-for-profit research
institutions and government laboratories. We aédbts a number of semiconductor, polymer, autosetcement, steel, aluminum, and
combinatorial materials design companies. The ritgjof our low temperature superconducting matsrék sold to magnetic resonance
imaging and nuclear magnetic resonance imaging faatwrers and our superconducting devices aresatthrily to universities, as well as
national and international research facilities. fdenot depend on any single customer and no saugitomer accounted for more than 109
revenue in any of the last three fiscal years.
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Competition

Our existing products and solutions and pnogucts and solutions that we develop in therbutnay compete in multiple, highly
competitive markets. In addition, there has betrerad towards consolidation in our industry and ynafiour competitors have substantially
greater financial, technical, and marketing resesitban we do. Our competitors may succeed in dpig and offering products that could
render our products or those of our strategic pastobsolete or noncompetitive. In addition, mahthese competitors have significantly
more experience in the life sciences, chemicalraatérials markets. Our ability to compete succdlgsiiill depend on our ability to develop
proprietary products that reach our target markegstimely manner and are technologically supeaand/or less expensive, or more cost
effective, than products marketed by our competit@urrent competitors or other companies may psssedevelop technologies and
products that are more effective than ours. Ourrtelogies and products may be rendered obsolateerronomical by technological
advances or entirely different approaches develdyyezhe or more of our competitors.

We also compete with other companies thatige analytical or automation tools based on ioteehnologies. These technologies may
prove to be more successful in meeting demandsimtarkets that our products and solutions servaddlition, other companies may choose
to enter our fields in the future. We believe tie principal competitive factors in our markets sachnology-based applications expertise,
product specifications, functionality, reliabilitynarketing expertise, distribution capability, ptiepary patent portfolios, cost, and cost
effectiveness.

Scientific Instruments Segmer

Bruker BioSpin competes with companies tfer magnetic resonance spectrometers, mainljeAgiJEOL, and Oxford Instruments.
Bruker Daltonics competes with a variety of comparthat offer mass spectrometry-based systemseBR#itonics' competitors in the life
science markets and chemical and applied markelisde Danaher, Agilent, GE-Healthcare, Waters, WweFisher Scientific,
Shimadzu/Kratos, Hitachi and JEOL. Bruker Daltoni€BRNE detection customers are highly fragmenraed, we compete with a number of
companies in this area, of which the most significampetitor is Smiths Detection. Bruker MAT cortggewith companies that offer
analytical X-ray solutions, OES systems and AFM 8@M systems, primarily Rigaku, Oxford Instrumeftsermo Fisher Scientific,
Ametek's Spectro and Edax divisions, PANalyticatdan Valley and Olympus. Bruker Optics competdh wivariety of companies that of
molecular spectrometry-based systems, includingrbéd-isher Scientific, PerkinElmer, Agilent, FoA8B Bomem, Renishaw, Buchi,
Shimadzu, and Jasco. In addition, there are sesaraller companies, specializing in various marketdh which we compete frequently.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segme

BEST competes with Oxford Instruments ansldta in low temperature superconducting materaladdition, BEST competes with
Sumitomo and Innost in the market for first generahigh temperature superconducting products, Belb&loell and ASG Superconductors
in the market for customized superconducting magr&¥iB Oxford in the market for synchrotron beamsinand Xradia in the market for X-
ray microscopes. BEST further competes with ZaMitsubishi Electric and AES in the development an@ply of accelerator cavities, with
Thales, Toshiba and CPI International in the dgualent and supply of radio frequency couplers, Witsubishi Heavy Industries in the
development and supply of superconducting accelemabdules and with AES and Thales for electroadimaccelerators.
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Seasonal Nature of Business

We experience highly variable and fluctagtievenues in the first three quarters of the y&hile our fourth quarter revenues have
historically been stronger than the rest of theryea

Manufacturing and Supplies

Several of our manufacturing facilities aegtified under 1ISO 9001:2008 and ISO 13485, &rimational quality standard. We
manufacture and test our magnetic resonance pmdticur facilities in Karlsruhe, Germany; Wissemntgp France; Zurich, Switzerland; and
Billerica, Massachusetts, U.S.A. We manufacturetastiour mass spectrometry products, including BRBRletection products, at our
facilities in Bremen, Germany; Leipzig, Germanytl&ica, Massachusetts, U.S.A.; Fremont, Califorbles.A.; and Goes, Netherlands. We
manufacture and test ourdy, OES and AFM products at our facilities in Ksauhe, Germany; Berlin, Germany; Kalkar, Germanggdidon,
Wisconsin, U.S.A.; Santa Barbara, California, U.SkKennewick, Washington, U.S.A.; and Yokohamaabapn addition, we manufacture
and test our molecular spectroscopy products afawmilities in Ettlingen, Germany; Billerica, Mas$ausetts, U.S.A.; and The Woodlands,
Texas, U.S.A. We manufacture and test the majofigur energy and superconducting products ataeilities in Hanau, Germany; Bergisch
Gladbach, Germany; and Perth, Scotland. Manufamjysiocesses at our facilities in Europe and Qaliép U.S.A. include all phases of
manufacturing, such as machining, fabrication, ssbmbly, system assembly, and final testing. Cherdacilities primarily perform high-
level assembly, system integration, and final testiVe typically manufacture critical componentshouse to ensure key competence.

We purchase material and components frafiows suppliers that are either standard producisiilt to our specifications. We obtain
some of the components included in our products fadimited group of suppliers or from a single+s@usupplier for items such as charge
coupled device area detectors, X-ray tubes, robatiad infrared optics. Bruker AXS has an ongoiiaboration and joint development
project with the Siemens Medical Solutions Vacuueefinology Division in Germany for the developmehnXeay tubes. Some Bruker AXS
subsidiaries, Bruker Nano GmbH, Bruker Elementab®inand Bruker AXS Handheld Inc., presently procdkeg X-ray detector chips and
certain OES optical detectors and miniaturized Xgaurces from single-source suppliers. In addjtBiBST sources niobium titanium and
other niobium products from a single supplier.

Research and Development

We commit substantial capital and resouteésternal and collaborative research and deveta projects in order to provide
innovative products and solutions to our custométs.conduct research primarily to enhance systafioqpeance and improve the reliability
of existing products, and to develop new produnts solutions. We expensed $177.2 million, $141 Moniand $126.4 million in 2011, 20:
and 2009, respectively, for research and developmeposes. Our research and development effats@rducted for the relevant products
within each of the operating segments, as welhailaboration on areas such as microfluidicsp@attion and workflow management
software. We have been the recipient of governmgeants from Germany and the United States for varfrojects related to early-stage
research and development. We have generally retaite minimum, non-exclusive rights to any iteangnhancements we develop under
these grants. The German government requires thatse and market technology developed under giraotsler to retain our rights to the
technology. We have also accepted some sponsaedroh contracts from private sources.
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Scientific Instruments Segmer

The research and development performeldeirstientific Instruments segment is primarily aectéd at our facilities in Bremen,
Ettlingen, Karlsruhe and Leipzig, Germany; FaellamdSwitzerland; Wissembourg, France; Billericasb&chusetts, U.S.A.; Madison,
Wisconsin, U.S.A.; Fremont, California, U.S.A.; aBdnta Barbara, California, U.S.A.

Bruker BioSpin maintains technical competes in core magnetic resonance technologies guabdaies, including MRI, NMR, and
EPR. Recent advancements include the developmeauilidfstate Dynamic Nuclear Polarization techni@sgan ongoing development that
enables gains in sensitivity for NMR, high field Ehstrumentation with dedicated cryogen free mégrggh field magnet technology for
preclinical research and quadruple tuned CryoPrédrdsiological research. Bruker Daltonics mainsaiachnical competencies in core mass
spectrometry technologies and capabilities, incigdMALDI, ESI, ICP and EI/CI ion sources; TOF, TORF, ion traps, FTMS and
guadrupole analyzers; bioinformatics; and relatdthwre. Recent developments include an integrateltidimensional solution for
proteomics that provides enhanced protein ideatifim, structural information and distribution amabntitative information. Bruker Daltoni
also developed an automated headspace sampleothptiments its gas chromatography products bynatig analysis of potentially toxic
volatile organic compounds. Bruker MAT maintainshigical competencies in core X-ray technologies@aphbilities, including detectors
used to sense X-ray and X-ray diffraction patte¥isay sources and optics that generate and fdwmuXirays, robotics and sample handling
equipment that holds and manipulates the experahemdterial, and software that generates the stralctlata. Recent projects include
refining next-generation high brilliancy optics amitrosources, developing new high-power X-ray sesifor X-ray diffraction and protein
crystallography applications, developing a TXRRegsfor trace element analysis in semiconductolicgions, developing a new large s¢
angle, high-resolution, high-throughput energy eispve Xfay detector for microanalysis, creating a highsgesity area detector system, €
developing other solution-based technologies aftvace applications. Bruker Optics maintains techhtompetencies in core vibrational
spectroscopy technologies and capabilities, inalyidiT-IR, NIR, and Raman. Recent advancementsdedibe TANGO FT-NIR, which is
Bruker Optics' next generation of pre-calibratedigrers.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segme

The research and development performeldeiEnergy & Supercon Technologies segment is pilynarnducted at our facilities in
Hanau, Bergisch Gladbach and Alzenau, Germany. BR&htains technical competencies in the produaifdow and high temperature
superconducting materials and devices. BEST isatlyr developing second generation high temperauperconductors and new
superconductivity-enabled devices including crygtalwth magnets for use in the solar and semicandirdustries, inductive
superconducting fault current limiters for energfrastructure applications and other second geioarhigh temperature superconducting
materials and coils for high-power wind turbine gextors.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property consists of patecopyrights, trade secrets, know-how, and tradks Protection of our intellectual property
is a strategic priority for our business becausiefength of time and expense associated witighrgy new products through the
development process and to the marketplace. Wedaubstantial patent portfolio, and we intendleddditional patent applications as
appropriate. We believe our owned and licensechpaiartfolio provides us with a competitive advaygaThis portfolio permits us to
maintain access to a number of key technologieslid®rse our owned patent rights where appropriéfieintend to enforce our patent rights
against infringers, if necessary. The patent pmsdtiof life sciences tools companies involve comp#gal and factual questions. As a result,
we cannot predict the enforceability of our patemith certainty. In addition,
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we are aware of the existence from time to timpaténts in certain countries which, if valid, coirftpair our ability to manufacture and sell
products in these countries.

We also rely upon trade secrets, know-hoademarks, copyright protection, and licensingegelop and maintain our competitive
position. We generally require the execution offmentiality agreements by our employees, constdtaand other scientific advisors. These
agreements provide that all confidential informatioade known during the course of a relationship ws will be held in confidence and
used only for our benefit. In addition, these agrests provide that we own all inventions generaliatihg the course of the relationship. Our
management considers Bruker, Bruker Corporationk@&rAXS, Bruker BioSpin, Bruker CAM, Bruker Daltios, Bruker Detection, Bruker
Elemental, Bruker MAT, Bruker Optics and Bruker Eqne& Supercon Technologies to be our materialeradrks.

Government Contracts

We are a party to various government caigrdJnder some of these government contractgdtiernment may receive license or sin
rights to intellectual property developed underdbatract. However, under government contractsntereve generally receive no less than
non-exclusive rights to any items or technologiesdevelop. Although we transact business with wa&rigovernment agencies, we believe
that no government contract is of such magnitudedirenegotiation of profits or termination of ttantract or subcontracts at the election of
the government would have a material adverse effectur financial results.

Government Regulation

We are required to comply with federaltestand local environmental protection regulatidfie. do not expect this compliance to have a
significant impact on our capital spending, earsjrar competitive position.

Prior to introducing a product in the U.Bruker AXS provides notice to the Food and Drugraistration, or FDA, in the form of a
Radiation Safety Abbreviated Report, which providksitification information and operating charaistics of the product. If the FDA finds
that the report is complete, it provides appromahie form of what is known as an accession nunifretker AXS may not market a product
until it has received an accession number. In addiBruker AXS submits an annual report to the Fibat includes the radiation safety
history of all products it sells in the U.S. BrulkeXS is required to report to the FDA incidentsagtidental exposure to radiation arising fi
the manufacture, testing, or use of any of its pot&l Bruker AXS also reports to state governmettish products it sells in their states. For
sales in Germany, Bruker AXS registers each systémthe local authorities. In some countries whreker AXS sells systems, Bruker
AXS uses the license we obtained from the federtddaities in Germany to assist it in obtainingcahse from the country in which the sale
occurs. In addition, as indicated above, we argestibo various other foreign and domestic envirental, health, and safety laws and
regulations in connection with our operations. Afiaom these areas, we are subject to the lawsegudations generally applicable to
businesses in the jurisdictions in which we operate

Bruker AXS possesses low-level radiatiorigrials licenses from the Nuclear Regulatory Consiois for its facility in Madison,
Wisconsin; from the local radiation safety authgrisewerbeaufsichtsamt Karlsruhe, for its faciiityKarlsruhe, Germany; and from the local
radiation safety authority, Kanagawa Prefecturejtéofacility in Yokohama, Japan, as well as frearious other countries in which it sells its
products. Bruker Daltonics possesses low-levehtaati licenses for facilities in Billerica, Massadetts, and Leipzig, Germany. The U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission also has regulatimmeerning the exposure of our employees to rautic
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Internal Investigation and Compliance Matters

As previously reported, in 2011 the Audd@ramittee of our Board of Directors commenced aerimdl investigation, with the assistance
of independent outside counsel and an independesrtsic consulting firm, in response to certainrgmaous communications received by us
alleging improper conduct in connection with ther@hoperations of our Bruker Optics subsidiary. Fugit Committee's investigation,
which included a review of compliance by Bruker ©ptand its employees in China and Hong Kong withrequirements of the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and other applicabied and regulations, has been completed.

The investigation found evidence indicatingt payments were made that improperly beneétadloyees or agents of government-
owned enterprises in China. The investigation hls®found evidence that certain employees of BrQiics in China and Hong Kong failed
to comply with our corporate policies and standarfdsonduct. As a result, we have taken personct@rss, including the termination of
certain individuals. We have also terminated owgitess relationships with certain third party agemplemented an enhanced FCPA
compliance program, and strengthened the finacoiatrols and oversight at our subsidiaries opegdtirChina and Hong Kong. We have
also initiated a review of the China operationswf other subsidiaries, which is being conducteith Wie assistance of an independent audit
firm.

We voluntarily contacted the United Stadesurities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and tlited)8tates Department of Justice
(DOJ) in August 2011 to advise both agencies ofriternal investigation by the Audit Committee atober 2011, we also reported the
existence of the internal investigation to the H&myg Joint Financial Intelligence Unit and Indedent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC). We have cooperated with the United Stagekefal agencies and Hong Kong government autheritih respect to their inquiries and
have provided documents and/or made witnessesablaih response to requests from the governmaanthbrities reviewing this matter. We
intend to continue to cooperate with these agengiesnnection with their inquiries. As was prewstuthe case, at this time we cannot
reasonably assess the timing or outcome of thestenmar their effect, if any, on our business.

The FCPA and related statutes and reguisifioovide for potential monetary penalties as @agltriminal and civil sanctions in
connection with FCPA violations. It is possibletth@onetary penalties and other sanctions couldsbessed by the Federal government in
connection with these matters. Additionally, to éxtent any payments are determined to be illegé&bdal government authorities, civil or
criminal penalties may be assessed by such au#woaihd our ability to conduct business in thasfliction may be negatively impacted. At
this time, we cannot predict the extent to whiah 8EC, the DOJ, the ICAC or any other governmeaitiorities will pursue administrative,
civil injunctive or criminal proceedings, the imiti@n of fines or penalties or other remedies arcsimns. We cannot reasonably estimate the
potential liability, if any, related to these masteesulting from any proceedings that may be conuee by the SEC, the DOJ, the ICAC or
any other governmental authorities. Accordingly pnovision with respect to such matters has beeorded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

It is not possible to predict at this timben the government inquiries concerning the ingatibn will be completed, or what actions, if
any, will be taken by governmental authorities witgard to these matters. In the fiscal year efmmmember 31, 2011, $4.3 million was
recorded for legal and other professional seniicesrred related to the internal investigationlagte matters.

Working Capital Requirements
There are no credit terms extended to ousts that would have a material adverse effectusworking capital.
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We typically recognize revenue from systates upon customer acceptance. To effectivelyabpeur business, we are required to hold
a significant number of systems that have beemshipo customers but are not yet accepted by thtemer, or finished goods tmansit. As ¢
result, a significant percentage of our invent@pgresents finished goods in-transit. Finished gaodsansit were $116.8 million and
$85.3 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respyg. We also have well-equipped application aedhonstration facilities and qualified
application personnel who assist customers andgeqroduct demonstrations in specific applicagoeas. In total, we held $56.0 million
and $48.6 million of demonstration inventory at Beber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Backlog

Our backlog consists of firm orders undan4cancellable purchase orders received from custniotal system backlog at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $1,086.5 million$@2i®.4 million, respectively. We anticipate thppeoximately 80% of the backlog as
of December 31, 2011 will be filled in 2012. We exrpnce variable and fluctuating revenues in trst three quarters of the year, while our
fourth quarter revenues have historically beemnsggeo than the rest of the year. As a result, bac&loany particular date can be indicative of
our short-term revenue performance, but is not seardy a reliable indicator of long-term revenwefprmance.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we hadoegmately 6,000 and 5,400 full-time employees ldwide, respectively. Of these
employees, approximately 1,100 and 1,050 were éadcit the United States as of December 31, 2012@ah6, respectively. Our employees
in the United States are not unionized or affiliai@th any labor organizations. Employees basedidethe U.S. are primarily located in
Europe. Several of our international subsidiariesparties to contracts with labor unions and wikeouncils. We believe that we have gi
relationships with our employees and the workershcils.

As of December 31, 2011 we had approxing&2€30 full-time employees in production and digttion, 1,420 full-time employees in
selling and marketing and 1,000 full-time employ#esesearch and development. As of December 310 2& had approximately 2,690 full-
time and part-time employees in production andithistion, 1,280 full-time and part-time employeasselling and marketing and 920 full-
time and part-time employees in research and dpuetat.

Financial Information about Geographic Areas and Sgments

Financial information about our geograpdnieas and segments may be found in Note 20 toinané&ial Statements in this annual report
on Form 10-K, included as part of ltem 8 to thigsa, which includes information about our revenfrem external customers, measure of
profit and total assets by reportable segment.

Available Information

Our website is locatedwivw.bruker.com We make available free of charge through thissitetour annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporté&om 8-K, and amendments to those reports filetl witfurnished to the SEC pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended, (the Exchange Act), as asoeasonably practicable after they
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors should be consideredanjunction with the other information includedtiis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
This report may include forward-looking statemehtst involve risks and uncertainties. In additianthose risk factors discussed elsewhere
in this report, we identify the following risk facs, which could affect our actual results and @astual results to differ materially from
those in the forward-looking statements.

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors hasmpleted its investigation into allegations of imgger conduct by persons associated
with the operations of our Bruker Optics subsidiaity China and Hong Kong and we could be exposediabilities under the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and other laws anegulations, including foreign laws.

As a result of our international operatione are subject to compliance with various laws @gulations, including the FCPA and other
anti-bribery laws in the jurisdictions in which wle business, which generally prohibit companiesthei intermediaries or agents from
engaging in bribery or making improper paymentfoteign officials or their agents. The FCPA alsquiees proper record keeping and
characterization of such payments in our repolds fivith the SEC. Despite maintaining policies @nocedures that require our employees to
comply with these laws and our standards of etltioatiuct, we cannot ensure that these policiepesbdures will always protect us from
intentional, reckless or negligent acts committgabr employees or agents.

In response to certain anonymous allegatadimproper conduct in connection with the Chiperations of our Bruker Optics
subsidiary, in 2011 the Audit Committee of our Bbaf Directors conducted an internal investigatiwith the assistance of independent
outside counsel and an independent forensic camgditm. The investigation, which included a rewief compliance by Bruker Optics and
its employees in China and Hong Kong with the regaents of the FCPA and other applicable laws agdlations, found evidence
indicating that payments were made that impropeelyefited employees or agents of governnmswted enterprises in China and Hong Kc
The investigation also found evidence that certaiployees of Bruker Optics in China and Hong Kaaitetl to comply with our policies and
standards of conduct. We are also conducting &wnewvith the assistance of an independent audit, faf the China operations of our other
subsidiaries.

We voluntarily contacted the SEC and thelDAugust 2011 to advise both agencies of theriatl investigation by the Audit
Committee. In October 2011, we also reported thistexce of the internal investigation to the Hormnl Joint Financial Intelligence Unit
and Independent Commission Against Corruption. \Akeetcooperated with the United States federal ageand Hong Kong government
authorities with respect to their inquiries and én@avovided documents and/or made witnesses awvailalbésponse to requests from the
governmental authorities reviewing this matter. Mtend to continue cooperating with these agerniesnnection with their inquiries. At
this time, we cannot predict when any of theseiemwill be completed or what the outcome of ahyhese inquiries will be. These
inquiries, and any proceedings that may result floese inquiries, could harm relationships witts8Rg customers, distributors and agents
and our ability to obtain new customers and pastnéthe SEC or the DOJ makes a determinationvieahbave violated federal laws, we may
face severe criminal and civil sanctions, includibgt not limited to, fines, penalties, disgorgemen injunction or other equitable relief.
These inquiries also could result in regulatorycpexlings, and thus potentially adverse findingst, ¢buld require us to pay damages or
penalties or have other remedies imposed upomwldition, it is possible that the findings andcome of any of these inquiries and any
subsequent regulatory proceedings could resultherdawsuits being brought against the Companyitsnafficers and directors.
Additionally, to the extent any payments are deteedh to be illegal by Hong Kong or other local goweent authorities, civil or criminal
penalties may be assessed by such authoritieswarabiity to continue to conduct business in flogisdiction may be negatively impacted.
Thus, any adverse findings or other negative ou&im any
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of these inquiries could adversely affect our bes#) reputation, results of operations, finanasifpn and cash flows, and ultimately our
stock price.

Unfavorable economic or political conditions in theountries in which we operate may have an advarspact on our business results or
financial condition.

Our business and results of operationsifieeted by international, national and regionaremnic and political conditions. Many of the
countries in which we operate, including particlylahe United States and countries in Europe, leeyperienced and continue to experience
uncertain economic conditions. Our business omfirel results may be adversely impacted by unfasMerahanges in economic or political
conditions in these countries, including adverssngies in interest rates or tax rates, volatilenfiiel and commodity markets, contraction in
the availability of credit in the marketplace, afthnges in capital spending patterns. Our revenmme £).S. operations represented
approximately 19% and 20% of total consolidateadtnese for fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively. Ouenee from operations in Europe
represented 41% and 43% of total consolidated revéor the corresponding periods. Our revenue foperations in the Asia Pacific region
represented 30% and 26% of total consolidated rexéor the respective periods. If economic growtkhie U.S. and other countries slows or
does not improve, or if current economic conditiongurope do not improve or deteriorate furtherif the level of government funding for
scientific research is reduced, our current or mitdecustomers may delay or reduce purchases wdaald, in turn, result in reductions in
sales of our products, materially and adverselgciiffig our results of operations and cash flowdawiy and disruption of global financial
markets could limit our customers' ability to obtadequate financing to maintain operations andged with planned or new capital
spending initiatives, leading to a reduction iresalolume that could materially and adversely affeec results of operations and cash flow
addition, a decline in our customers' ability ty jp& a result of a slow-down in the general glasdbcal economy may lead to increased
difficulties in the collection of our accounts re@ble, higher levels of reserves for doubtful agus and write-offs of accounts receivable,
and higher operating costs as a percentage ofuegelVe cannot predict how current or worseningiecac conditions or political instabili
will affect our customers and suppliers or how apgative impact on our customers and suppliers taigbersely impact our business results
or financial condition.

If our products fail to achieve and sustain suffent market acceptance across their broad intendadge of applications, we will nc
generate expected revent

Our business strategy depends on ourahilisuccessfully commercialize a broad range oflpcts based on our technology platforms,
including, magnetic resonance technology, masstispeetry technology, gas chromatography technol®gsay technology, spark-OES
technology, atomic force microscopy technologylustyand optical metrology technology, infrared &aman molecular spectroscopy
technology and superconducting magnet technoldgrasse in a variety of life science, chemistry anaterials analysis applications. Som
our products have only recently been commerciallynthed and have achieved only limited sales t® d&te commercial success of our
products depends on obtaining and expanding madcastptance of our products by our diverse indus&@ademic, medical research and
governmental customers around the world. We maydaichieve or sustain substantial market acceptéor our products across the full
range of our intended applications or in one orevafrour principal intended applications. Any st&iture could decrease our sales and
revenue. To succeed, we must convince substantimbars of potential customers to invest in newesystor replace their existing techniq
with X-ray, magnetic resonance, mass spectrometry anatizcibal spectroscopy techniques employing our systéimited funding availabl
for capital acquisitions by our customers, as welbur customers' own internal purchasing appnoeidies, could hinder market acceptance
of our products. Our intended customers may betati to make the substantial capital investmenegsly needed to acquire our products
or to incur the
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training and other costs involved with replacingittexisting systems with our products. We also matybe able to convince our intended
customers that our systems are an attractive asteeff@ctive alternative to other technologies aystems for the acquisition, analysis and
management of molecular information. Additionalfyethical and other concerns surrounding the dggenetic information, gene therapy or
genetically modified organisms become widespreadmay have less demand for our products. Becausesd and other factors, our
products may fail to gain or sustain market acasa

Our products compete in markets that are subjectdpid technological change, and one or more of tteehnologies underlying our
products could be made obsolete by new technol

The market for discovery and analysis timIsharacterized by rapid technological changefeaglient new product introductions.
Rapidly changing technology could make some oofatlur product lines obsolete unless we are abt®tdinually improve our existing
products and develop new products. Because sulashaatl of our products are based on our techgglplatforms, including magnetic
resonance technology, mass spectrometry technoyagychromatography technology, X-ray technologgrlsOES technology, atomic force
microscopy technology, stylus and optical metrolegghnology, infrared and Raman molecular speab@gstechnology, we are particularly
vulnerable to any technological advances that wowddte these techniques obsolete as the basisdbytianl systems in any of our markets.
To meet the evolving needs of our customers, we napsdly and continually enhance our current alashped products and services and
develop and introduce new products and servicesddiition, our product lines are based on compmeRnologies which are subject to rapid
change as new technologies are developed and ureddn the marketplace. We may have difficultkéeping abreast of the rapid changes
affecting each of the different markets we serviantand to serve. If we fail to develop and introdyproducts in a timely manner in response
to changing technology, market demands or the remeénts of our customers, our product sales maljnéeand we could experience
significant losses.

Our new technologies and product developments maysucceed.

We are currently developing a number of key technologies and products in all of our opegasegments, including various new low
temperature and high temperature superconductar®type crystal growth magnets, and prototype saguelucting fault current limiters at
Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, new magnets at Bruker BioSpin, new mass spectrometry t@olgines and applications at
Bruker Daltonics, and new CBRNE detection prodtités may not succeed technically, or may not be &bbe manufactured reliably and
economically. Any technology, product or manufaictgiramp-up failure could decrease our opportusifiie additional revenues and
increased margins.

If we are unable to make or complete future mergeasquisitions or strategic alliances as a partadr growth strategy, or integrate rece
or future mergers, acquisitions or strategic allians, our business development may suffer.

Our strategy includes expanding our teabppbase through selected mergers, acquisitionstatbgic alliances. If we fail to execute
mergers, acquisitions and strategic alliancestexhmology base may not expand as quickly andiefiily as possible. Without such
complementary growth from selected mergers, adipisi and strategic alliances, our ability to keppwith the evolving needs of the marl
we serve and to meet our future performance gaaikide adversely affected. However, we may natlide to find attractive candidates, or
enter into mergers, acquisitions or strategic adlés on terms that are favorable to us, or suadgssftegrate the operations of companies
that we acquire. In addition, we may compete witfeocompanies for these merger, acquisition atesgic alliance candidates, which could
make such a transaction more expensive for use lare able
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to successfully identify and complete a mergeru@ition or strategic alliance, it could involvenamber of risks, including, among others:

. the difficulty of coordinating or consolidating ggaphically separate organizations and integrgigngonnel with different
business backgrounds and corporate cultures;

. the difficulty of integrating previously autonomodsepartments in sales and marketing, distributiow, accounting and
administrative functions, and expanding and integgainformation and management systems;

. the diversion of resources and management time;
. the potential disruption of our ongoing business;
. the potential impairment of relationships with amsers as a result of changes in management onagigearising out of such

transactions; and

. the significantly increased risk of key managenmrikey employees leaving the acquired companidsimihe first 1-2 years
after the acquisition, including the risk that thagty compete with us subsequently.

If we are not able to successfully integmatquired businesses, we may not be able to eedllinf the cost savings and other benefits
we expect to result from the transactions.

Our business could be harmed if our collaboratiofesl to advance our product development.

Demand for our products will depend in pgron the extent to which our collaborations wittapmaceutical, biotechnology and
proteomics companies are successful in developinigelping us to develop, new products and newiegans for our existing products. In
addition, we collaborate with academic instituti@m&l government research laboratories on produetiaigment. We have limited or no
control over the resources that any collaboratoy devote to our products. Any of our present ouffeitcollaborators may not perform their
obligations as expected. If we fail to enter intar@intain appropriate collaboration agreement#, amy of these events occur, we may na
able to develop some of our new products, whichccmaterially impede our ability to generate revemu profits.

We face substantial competition.

We face substantial competition and we ekfieat competition in all of our markets will irase further. Currently, our principal
competition comes from established companies piogidroducts using existing technologies which gerf many of the same functions for
which we market our products. Other companies mlap choose to enter our fields in the future. Gampetitors may develop or market
products that are more effective or commercialfsaative than our current or future products ot thay render our products obsolete.
Competition has in the past and is likely in theafa to subject our products to pricing pressuranilof our competitors have more
experience in the market and substantially grdatancial, operational, marketing and technicabreses than we do which could give the
competitive edge in areas such as research antbgevent, production, marketing and distribution.r@hility to compete successfully will
depend, in part, on our ability to develop profaigtproducts that reach the market in a timely neaamd are technologically superior to, less
expensive than, or more cost-effective than, otherently marketed products.
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If we are unable to recover significant developmertsts of one or more of our products or productds, our business, results
operations and financial condition may suffer.

We offer and plan to continue to offer add product line and incur and expect to contimuadur substantial expenses for the
development of new products and enhanced versiomsr@xisting products. Our business model caliak to derive a significant portion of
our revenues each year from products that did xiet i the previous two years. However, we mayegignce difficulties which may delay
prevent the successful development, introductiahraarketing of new products or product enhancemdis speed of technological change
in the markets we serve may prevent us from sufidgsmarketing some or all of our products for leagth of time required to recover their
often significant development costs. If we fairézover the development costs of one or more ptedwgroduct lines, our business, results
of operations and financial condition could be haglim

If we lose our strategic partners, our marketingfefts could be impaired

A substantial portion of our sales of seddgroducts consists of sales to third parties imborporate our products in their systems.
These third parties are responsible for the margedind sales of their systems. We have little ocardrol over their marketing and sales
activities or how they use their resources. Ous@né or future strategic partners may or may nathase sufficient quantities of products
from us or perform appropriate marketing and satdities. In addition, if we are unable to maintaur relationships with strategic partne
our business may suffer. Failures by our presefutare strategic partners, or our inability to ntain or enter into new arrangements with
strategic partners for product distribution, condterially impede the growth of our business andadiiity to generate sufficient revenue ¢
profits.

If general health care spending patterns declinayrability to generate revenue may suffe

We are dependent, both directly and indiyeaopon general health care spending patternsicpkarly in the research and development
budgets of the pharmaceutical and biotechnologystiées, as well as upon the financial conditiod amding priorities of various
governments and government agencies. Since oystinog both we and our academic collaborators arstioeners have benefited from
various governmental contracts and research gréfttether we or our academic collaborators will cure to be able to attract these grants
depends not only on the quality of our products,disp on general spending patterns of publictinsbins.

Any reduction in the capital resources or governnmidanding of our customers could reduce our salesdaiimpede our ability to general
revenue.

A significant portion of our sales are ¢appurchases by our customers. The spending pslimi our customers could have a significant
effect on the demand for our products. These mdiare based on a wide variety of factors, inclydlre resources available to make
purchases, the spending priorities among variopsstyf equipment, policies regarding spending durd@tessionary periods and changes in
the political climate. Any changes in capital spegdr changes in the capital budgets of our custsmould significantly reduce demand for
our products. The capital resources of our lifesceé and other corporate customers may be limitetavailability of equity or debt
financing. Any significant decline in research ateyelopment expenditures by our life science custsroould significantly decrease our
sales. In addition, we make a substantial portioouo sales to non-profit and government entitiéscly are dependent on government support
for scientific research. Any decline in this suppmould decrease the ability of these customepsitohase our products.
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Our operations are dependent upon a limited numiodisuppliers and contract manufacturers.

We currently purchase components usediipmducts from a limited number of outside supgli®©ur reliance on a limited number of
suppliers could result in time delays associateti vadesigning a product due to an inability toaidbin adequate supply of required
components and reduced control over pricing, qualiid timely delivery. Any of these factors couttyarsely affect our revenues and
profitability. In particular, our X-ray microanaligsbusiness, which manufactures and sells accesskon electron microscopes, is partially
dependent on cooperation from larger manufactureedectron microscopes. Additionally, our eleméatsalysis business purchases certain
optical detectors from a single supplier, Perkin&ininc., the sole supplier of these detector campts. Bruker Daltonics purchases dete:
and power supplies from sole or limited source $ispp Bruker Optics purchases its focal planeyadetectors from a single supplier,
Lockheed Martin Corporation. Similarly, Bruker Bjoif obtains various components from sole or limiedrce suppliers and Bruker
Energy & Supercon Technologies obtains variousmeaerials and uses key production equipment frdm @olimited source suppliers or
subcontractors. There are limited, if any, avadaddternatives to these suppliers. The existensbaftages of these components or the failure
of delivery with regard to these components coaldeha material adverse effect upon our revenuesnangins. In addition, price increases
from these suppliers or subcontractors could havatrial adverse effect upon our gross margins.

Because of the scarcity of some componemsnay be unable to obtain an adequate supplgraponents, or we may be required to
pay higher prices or to purchase components oftegslity. Any delay or interruption in the suppliythese or other components could
impair our ability to manufacture and deliver owogucts, harm our reputation and cause a reduitionr revenues. In addition, any increase
in the cost of the components that we use in oodyets could make our products less competitivedsaodease our gross margins. We may
not be able to obtain sufficient quantities of riegd components on the same or substantially tireegarms. Additionally, consolidations
among our suppliers could result in other sole @@suppliers for us in the future.

Increasing prices of raw materials could adverselffect the gross margins and profitability of ourrBker BioSpin subsidiary, and of ou
Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies busine:

The last few years have seen sharp incséagbe prices for various raw materials, in glre to high demand from developing count
Bruker BioSpin and Bruker Energy & Supercon Tecbhgas rely on some of these materials for the prtidn of their products. In particuli
for its superconducting magnet production, bothtti@horizontal and vertical magnet series, BrigieSpin relies on the availability of
copper, steel and the metallic raw materials faditronal low-temperature superconducting wiremiirly, Bruker Energy & Supercon
Technologies relies on the availability of niobititanium for its production of low-temperature sugmnducting materials and devices.
Higher prices for these commodities will incredse production cost of superconducting wires anésignducting magnets and may
adversely affect gross margins.

The prices of copper and certain other maaterials used for superconductors have increagaiisantly over the last decade. Since
copper is a main constituent of low temperatureestgnductors, this may affect the price of supedooting wire. This type of increase
would have an immediate effect on the productiostxof superconducting magnets and may negativiggtahe profit margins for those
products. In addition, an increase in raw matewst affects the production cost of the supercotilgevire produced by Bruker Energy &
Supercon Technologies and of superconducting véesl oy Bruker BioSpin.

The demand for helium has also risen skiapér the last decade. The superconducting magisets in magnetic resonance rely on
liquid helium for their operation. The high glolm@mand, in combination with periodic supply shoedas caused prices for liquid helium
to rise significantly. This has an adverse effectiee operating costs for magnetic resonance eariprand may dampen demand for NMR,
EPR, MRI and FTMS magnets in the future.
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Our manufacture and sale of products could leadpmoduct liability claims for which we could have bstantial liability.

The manufacture and sale of our produg®sas us to product liability claims if any of guoducts cause injury or are found otherwise
unsuitable during manufacturing, marketing, saleumtomer use. In particular, if one of our CBRN&edttion products malfunctions, this
could lead to civilian or military casualties irime of unrest, exposing us to increased potefarahigh-profile liability. If our CBRNE
detection products malfunction by generating aefqissitive to a potential threat, we could be ergds liabilities associated with actions
taken that otherwise would not have been requikdditionally, the nuclear magnetic resonance, nedemagnetic resonance imaging,
Fourier transform mass spectrometry and certaictrele paramagnetic resonance magnets of Brukerg#ia8ilize high magnet fields and
cryogenics to operate at approximately 4 Kelvie, tkmperature of liquid helium. There is an inheresk of potential product liability due to
the existence of these high magnetic fields, aasedistray fields outside the magnet, and the iandf the cryogens associated with
superconducting magnets. In addition, the Brukdtddacs MALDI Biotyper has an IVD-CE mark and isagasfor the identification of
microorganisms. Misidentification or a false-negatof certain bacteria, yeasts or fungi could leathappropriate treatment for patients, and
could expose Bruker Daltonics to product liabititgims.

A successful product liability claim brodgtgainst us in excess of, or outside the covenfgeur insurance coverage could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations. We may nadlile to maintain product liability
insurance on acceptable terms, if at all, and arste may not provide adequate coverage againsiti@tiéabilities.

Responding to claims relating to improper handlingtorage or disposal of hazardous chemicals andioadtive and biological material
which we use could be time consuming and costly.

We use controlled hazardous and radioaotiaerials in our business and generate wasteaithaegulated as hazardous wastes under
United States federal, and Massachusetts, Cal#pWiashington and Wisconsin state, environmenthladomic energy regulatory laws and
under equivalent provisions of law in those jurisidins in which our research and manufacturingifaes are located. Our use of these
substances and materials is subject to stringaedtpariodically changing, regulation that can ingosstly compliance obligations on us and
have the potential to adversely affect our manuféog activities. The risk of accidental contamiaator injury from these materials cannot
be completely eliminated. If an accident with thesbstances occurs, we could be held liable fordamyages that result, in addition to
incurring clean-up costs and liabilities, which densubstantial. Additionally, an accident coulchdge our research and manufacturing
facilities resulting in delays and increased costs.

In addition to the risks applicable to our life semce and materials analysis products, our CBRNE@ai#ion products are subject to
number of additional risks, including lengthy prodit development and contract negotiation periods a@dtain risks inherent in longterm
government contracts

Our CBRNE detection products are subjechamy of the same risks associated with our lifersxe products, including vulnerability to
rapid technological change, dependence on mastgepetry and other technologies and substantialpstition. In addition, our CBRNE
detection products and certain FT-IR products areally sold to government agencies under long-tantracts. These contracts generally
involve lengthy pre-contract negotiations and padievelopment. We may be required to devote saotiatavorking capital and other
resources prior to obtaining product orders. Assallt, we may incur substantial costs before wegeize revenue from these products.
Moreover, in return for larger, longer-term contsa®ur customers for these products often demaore stringent acceptance criteria. These
criteria may also cause delays in our ability twognize revenue from sales of these products. &urtbre, we may not be able to accurately
predict
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in advance our costs to fulfill our obligations endhese long-term contracts. If we fail to acoeilsapredict our costs, due to inflation or other
factors, we could incur significant losses. Aldte presence or absence of such contracts may sabisential variation in our results of
operations between fiscal periods and, as a resuitesults of operations for any given fiscaliggimay not be predictive of our results for
subsequent fiscal periods. The resulting uncestairdy have an adverse impact on our stock price.

We are subject to existing and potential additiomabulation and government inquiry, which can impe$urdens on our operations and
narrow the markets for our products.

We are subject, both directly and indingctb the adverse impact of existing and poteffitinire government regulation of our operations
and markets. For example, exportation of our prtgjymarticularly our CBRNE detection products,ubject to strict regulatory control in a
number of jurisdictions. The failure to satisfy exjpcontrol criteria or obtain necessary cleararmesd delay or prevent shipment of
products, which could adversely affect our reverares profitability. In addition, as a result of anternational operations, we are subject to
compliance with various laws and regulations, idoig the United States Foreign Corrupt Practiceisafsd other anti-bribery laws in the
jurisdictions in which we do business, which geltgarohibit companies and their intermediariesagents from engaging in bribery
making improper payments to foreign officials ogitragents. Violations of these laws and regulatioould result in severe fines and
penalties, criminal sanctions, and restriction®onbusiness conduct and on our ability to offarmeducts in one or more countries, and
could also materially affect our reputation, odatienships with existing customers, distributonsl @gents, our ability to obtain new
customers and partners and our operating resutiseder, the life sciences industry, which is treaket for our principal products, has
historically been heavily regulated. There are gicample, laws in several jurisdictions restrictirgearch in genetic engineering, which can
operate to narrow our markets. Given the evolviagire of this industry, legislative bodies or regaly authorities may adopt additional
regulation that adversely affects our market opputies. Our business is also directly affectedilwide variety of government regulations
applicable to business enterprises generally agdrgpanies operating in the life sciences industparticular. We note that, as a result of
developing and selling products which are the sutgésuch regulation, we have been, are, and éxpdae in the future, subject to inquiries
from the government agencies which enforce thegdlaons, including the U.S. Department of Stttie,U.S. Department of Commerce, the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, the U.S. IntéfRavenue Service, the U.S. Department of Home&exlrity, the U.S. Department of
Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commissierf¢lderal Trade Commission, the U.S. Customs andeB®rotection and the U.S.
Department of Defense, among others, as well as $tate or foreign governments and their departsnamd agencies. As a result, from time
to time, the attention of our management and agmsources may be diverted to attend to these ileguin addition, failure to comply with
these regulations or obtain or maintain necessamyips and licenses could result in a variety oé$ or other censures or an interruption in
our business operations which may have a negatipadt on our ability to generate revenues.

Our success depends on our ability to operate withiafringing or misappropriating the proprietaryights of others.

Our commercial success depends on avottimgnfringement of other parties' patents and petgry rights as well as avoiding the
breach of any licenses relating to our technologies products. Given that there may be patentshafhwwe are unaware, particularly in the
U.S. where patent applications are confidentiabj@ance of patent infringement may be difficult.ridais third-parties hold patents which
may relate to our technology, and we may be foarttié future to infringe these or other patentproprietary rights of third parties, either
with products we are currently marketing or deveigpr with new products which we may develop ie thture. If a third party
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holding rights under a patent successfully asserisfringement claim with respect to any of ourrent or future products, we may be
prevented from manufacturing or marketing our mding product in the country or countries covergdhe patent we infringe, unless we can
obtain a license from the patent holder. We maybecdble to obtain a license on commercially reaStenterms, if at all, especially if the
patent holder is a competitor. In addition, eveweéfcan obtain the license, it may be non-exclysiréch will permit others to practice the
same technology licensed to us. We also may bereshto pay substantial damages to the patent haid@e event of an infringement. Un
some circumstances in the U.S., these damages icalide damages equal to triple the actual dam#émgepatent holder incurs. If we have
supplied infringing products to third parties foarketing by them or licensed third parties to mantifre, use or market infringing products,
we may be obligated to indemnify these third partar any damages they may be required to payetpatent holder and for any losses the
third parties may sustain themselves as the resldst sales or license payments they are requdaredake to the patent holder. Any
successful infringement action brought against ag ailso adversely affect marketing of the infrimgproduct in other markets not coveret
the infringement action, as well as our marketihgther products based on similar technology. Farrtiore, we will suffer adverse
consequences from a successful infringement aatiainst us even if the action is subsequently smekon appeal, nullified through another
action or resolved by settlement with the patemddro The damages or other remedies awarded, jfraay be significant. As a result, any
successful infringement action against us may t@armbusiness.

If we are unable to effectively protect our intetiial property, third parties may use our technolggvhich would impair our ability tc
compete in our markets.

Our continued success will depend in sigaiit part on our ability to obtain and maintainamiegful patent protection for our products
throughout the world. We rely on patents to protesignificant part of our intellectual propertydaio enhance our competitive position.
However, our presently pending or future patentiegpons may not issue as patents, and any pptertously issued to us may be
challenged, invalidated, held unenforceable omeireented. Furthermore, the claims in patents whare been issued, or which may be
issued to us in the future, may not be sufficiebtlyad to prevent third parties from producing ceting products similar to our products. In
addition, the laws of various foreign countriesvinich we compete may not protect our intellectuaberty to the same extent as do the laws
of the U.S. Failure to obtain adequate patent ptiae for our proprietary technology could matdyiampair our ability to be commercially
competitive.

In addition to patent protection, we alslyron the protection of trade secrets, knwow and confidential and proprietary informatioi.
maintain the confidentiality of trade secrets amuppietary information, we generally seek to eimén confidentiality agreements with our
employees, consultants and strategic partners tfgopoommencement of a relationship with us. Howewermay not obtain these agreem:
in all circumstances. In the event of unauthoriase or disclosure of this information, these ages@s) even if obtained, may not provide
meaningful protection for our trade secrets or otwnfidential information. In addition, adequagenedies may not exist in the event of
unauthorized use or disclosure of this informatibime loss or exposure of our trade secrets and ptberietary information would impair o
competitive advantages and could have a matenirad affect on our operating results, financialditton and future growth prospects.
Furthermore, others may have, or may in the fundependently develop, substantially similar oresigr know-how and technology.

We may be involved in lawsuits to protect or enfer@ur patents that are brought by us which could d&sgpensive and time consuming and,
if determined adversely, could adversely affect @atent position.

In order to protect or enforce our patégittis, we may initiate patent litigation againstdiparties, and we may be similarly sued by
others. We may also become subject to interference
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proceedings conducted in the patent and tradenffick® of various countries to determine the ptiodf inventions. The defense and
prosecution, if necessary, of intellectual propeauiits, interference proceedings and related lagadladministrative proceedings is costly and
diverts our technical and management personnel fh@in normal responsibilities. We may not prewaiany of these suits. An adverse
determination of any litigation or defense procegdicould put our patents at risk of being invaideor interpreted narrowly and could put
our patent applications at risk of not issuing.

Furthermore, because of the substantiauatnaf discovery required in connection with inéellual property litigation, there is a risk that
some of our confidential information could be coomised by disclosure during this type of litigatidm addition, during the course of this
kind of litigation, there could be public announ@ts of the results of hearings, motions or oth&rim proceedings or developments in the
litigation. If securities analysts or investors geve these results to be negative, it could hamgbatantial negative effect on the trading price
of our common stock.

We may not be able to maintain our sales and sex\staff to meet demand for our products and sergice

Our future revenue and profitability wikplend in part on our ability to maintain our teahmarketing and service personnel. Because
our products are technical in nature, we beliea dlur marketing, sales and support staff must kaientific or technical expertise and
experience. Competition for employees with theséssk intense. We may not be able to continuattoact and retain sufficient qualified
sales and service people, and we may not be abfaitttain and develop efficient and effective satearketing and support department. If
fail to continue to attract or retain qualified pé= then our business could suffer.

We plan significant future growth, and there is @k that we will not be able to manage this growth.

Our success will depend on the expansiauobperations. Effective growth management wékp increased demands on our
management, operational and financial resourcesadmage our future growth, we must expand ourife@s) augment our operational,
financial and management systems, and hire andddditional qualified personnel. Our failure tomage this growth effectively could
impair our ability to generate revenue or couldseaour expenses to increase more rapidly than veyeesulting in operating losses.

Armed hostilities could constrain our ability to oaluct business internationally and could also digruour global operations

The current world unrest, or the respomgdlke United States, may lead to further acteobrism and civil disturbances in the United
States or elsewhere, which may further contriboteconomic instability in the United States, Eurapd elsewhere. These attacks or armed
conflicts may affect our physical facilities or #@of our suppliers or customers and could havenpact on our domestic and international
sales, our supply chain, our production capabitityr,insurance premiums or the ability to purchasarance and our ability to deliver our
products to our customers. The consequences df tisks are unpredictable, and their long-termatffigon us is uncertain.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue fromternational sales and are subject to the riskisdwing business in foreign countries.

International sales account and are exgdoteontinue to account for a significant portafrour total revenues. Our revenue from non-
U.S. operations represented approximately 81% 8f6l & our total consolidated revenue for fiscal 2@hd 2010, respectively. Our
international operations are, and will continudéo subject to a variety of risks associated withducting business internationally,
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many of which are beyond our control. These riskgch may adversely affect our ability to achiewe anaintain profitability and our ability
to sell our products internationally, include:

. changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

. changes in regulatory requirements;

. legislation and regulation, including tariffs, rétey to the import or export of high technology guats;

. the imposition of government controls;

. political and economic instability, including intettional hostilities, acts of terrorism and goveemtal restrictions, inflation,

trade relationships and military and political atices;

. costs and risks of deploying systems in foreigmtoes;

. compliance with export laws and controls in mutiplrisdictions;

. limited intellectual property rights; and

. the burden of complying with a wide variety of cdmpforeign laws and treaties, including unfavoealalbor regulations,

specifically those applicable to our European ofpana, as well as U.S. and local laws affectingabgvities of U.S. compani
abroad, including the Foreign Corrupt Practicesakad local anti-bribery laws.

While the impact of these factors is difficto predict, any one or more of these factondad@dversely affect our operations in the fut
We may lose money when we exchange foreign curremogived from international sales into U.S. doltar

A significant portion of our business isxdocted in currencies other than the U.S. doll&iclvis our reporting currency. As a result,
currency fluctuations among the U.S. dollar anddim@encies in which we do business have causeavdincbntinue to cause foreign
currency transaction gains and losses. In additiommency fluctuations could cause the price ofgmaducts to be more or less competitive
than our principal competitors' products. Curreftagtuations will increase or decrease our costcstire relative to those of our competitors
which could lessen the demand for our productsadfett our competitive position. We cannot predligt effects of exchange rate fluctuati
upon our future operating results because of tmel@n of currencies involved, the variability of mmcy exposures and the potential volat
of currency exchange rates. From time to time werdnto certain hedging transactions and/or opéind foreign currency exchange contr
which are intended to offset some of the markétaissociated with our sales denominated in foreigrencies. We cannot predict the
effectiveness of these transactions or their imppon our future operating results, and from timérhe they may negatively affect our
quarterly earnings.

Our reported financial results may be adverselyaffed by fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Our exposure to currency exchange ratéudaions results primarily from the currency tratisln exposure associated with the
preparation of our consolidated financial statemamid from the exposure associated with transactbour subsidiaries that are
denominated in a currency other than the respestitsidiary's functional currency. While our finedcesults are reported in U.S. Dollars,
the financial statements of many of our subsid&oetside the United States are prepared usinigpthécurrency as the functional currency.
During consolidation, these results are translatedU.S. Dollars by applying appropriate exchargtes. As a result, fluctuations in the
exchange rate of the U.S. Dollar relative to theal@urrencies in which our foreign subsidiarigsomt could cause significant fluctuations in
our reported results. Moreover, as exchange rags kevenue and other operating results may diffaterially from our expectations.
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Additionally, to the extent monetary assaid liabilities, including debt, are held in afeient currency than the reporting subsidiary's
functional currency, fluctuations in currency excba rates may have a significant impact on ourntegdinancial results, and may lead to
increased earnings volatility. We may record sigaift gains or losses related to both the tramsiadf assets and liabilities held by our
subsidiaries into local currencies and the rememsent of inter-company receivables and loan batance

Our debt may adversely affect our cash flow and nmagtrict our investment opportunities or limit owactivities.

Our ability to satisfy our obligations degs on our future operating performance and on@uodn) financial, competitive and other
factors beyond our control. Our business may noegae sufficient cash flow to meet these obligetidf we are unable to service our dek
obtain additional financing, we may be forced ttaglestrategic acquisitions, capital expendituresegsearch and development expenditures.
We may not be able to obtain additional financinge&rms acceptable to us or at all.

Additionally, the agreements governing debt require that we maintain certain financialositelated to maximum leverage and
minimum interest coverage, and contain affirmatine negative covenants that restrict our activiiigsamong other limitations, limiting our
ability to make certain payments; incur additiodebt; incur certain liens; make certain investmentduding derivative agreements; merge,
consolidate, sell or transfer all or substantiallyof our assets; and enter into certain transastivith affiliates. Our ability to comply with
these financial restrictions and covenants is dégeinon our future performance, which is subjegirvailing economic conditions and other
factors, including factors that are beyond our rdrguch as foreign exchange rates and interess.r&tur failure to comply with any of these
restrictions or covenants may result in an evemteddult under the applicable debt instrument, Witiould permit acceleration of the debt
under that facility and require us to prepay tretitcbefore its scheduled due date.

Goodwill and other intangible assets are subjecirpairment.

As a result of our acquisitions we haveorded goodwill and other intangible assets whictsinne periodically evaluated for potential
impairment. We assess the realizability of the reggbgoodwill and other intangible assets annuakiywell as whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the assets may be iathaihese events or circumstances generally ieabpeérating losses or a significant
decline in the earnings associated with the repgpdiegment these acquisitions are reported wigharecline in our stock price and market
capitalization may also cause us to consider whetbedwill and other intangible assets may reqairémpairment assessment. Our ability to
realize the value of the goodwill will depend oe fature cash flows of the reporting segment initemtdto how well we integrate the
businesses acquired.

Various international tax risks could adversely &fft our earnings and cash flows.

We are subject to international tax ridBistributions of earnings and other payments rezgbifvom our subsidiaries may be subject to
withholding taxes imposed by the countries wheey lre operating or are formed. If these foreigmntides do not have income tax treaties
with the United States or the countries where absaliaries are incorporated, we could be subgehtgh rates of withholding taxes on these
distributions and payments. We could also be stibjeloeing taxed twice on income related to operetiin these non-treaty countries.
Because we are unable to reduce the taxable inocbree operating company with losses incurred lpttzar operating company located in
another country, we may have a higher effectivernme tax rate than that of other companies in adustry. The amount of the credit that we
may claim against our U.S. federal income tax éweign
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income taxes is subject to many limitations whiclyrsignificantly restrict our ability to claim aettit for all of the foreign taxes we pay.

We currently have reserves establishedherstatutory books of certain international loaagiowithin our audited consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared under U.8rajgnaccepted accounting principles, or GAAP, gbé&ential tax liabilities associated
with these reserves have been recorded as longetefenred tax liabilities. If these reserves arallemged, and we are unable to successfully
defend the need for such reserves, these liabiliti@ild become current resulting in a negative ghfaour anticipated cash flows from
operations over the next twelve months.

The unpredictability and fluctuation of our quartdy results may adversely affect the trading priceoar common stock.

Our revenues and results of operations ratle past and may in the future vary from quadeguarter due to a number of factors,
many of which are outside of our control and anybifch may cause our stock price to fluctuate. phmary factors that may affect us
include the following:

. the timing of sales of our products and services;

. the timing of recognizing revenue and deferred mereeunder U.S. GAAP;

. changes in our pricing policies or the pricing pi&é of our competitors;

. increases in sales and marketing, product developoreadministration expenses;

. the mix of services provided by us and third-padwptractors;

. our ability to attain and maintain quality levets bur products;

. costs related to acquisitions of technology or hesses; and

. the effectiveness of transactions entered intetigk the risks associated with foreign currencyiatedest rate fluctuations.

Historically, we have experienced a deaéagevenue in the first, second and third quartéreach fiscal year relative to the prior fo
quarter, which we believe is due to our custontmrdgeting cycles. You should not rely on quartegtiarter comparisons of our results of
operations as an indication of our future perforoait is likely that in some future quarters, oesults of operations may be below the
expectations of public market analysts and investorthis event, the price of our common stock fiadly

Our previously announced proposed initial publicfefing of Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, ¢n ("BEST") common stock ma
not be completed and, if it is completed, may léacdditional volatility in our stock price.

We have announced that we intend to selinemrity ownership position in our wholly-owned sidiary, BEST, via an initial public
offering, or IPO. BEST has filed an initial regation statement to register such portion of itseshaWWe may not complete the IPO, in which
event we will have incurred significant expenselsicly we will be unable to recover, and for which wi# not receive any benefit.
Additionally, our strategic objectives for the IP@¢luding improving visibility into BEST's perforamce and growth relative to the market
and strengthening BEST's access to financing $agribwth initiatives, are based on the completibthe IPO. If we do not complete the IPO,
we will need to pursue alternative means of acc@hiplg these strategic objectives.

If the IPO is completed, BEST would be avmiblic company in which we are the majority shvatder. We are unable to predict what
the market price of our common stock would be dfierlPO. We cannot assure you that the IPO, ifdetad, will produce any increase for
our shareholders
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in the market value of their holdings in our comypan addition, the market price of our common ktoould be volatile for several months
after the IPO and may continue to be more volé#tigen our common stock would have been if a trafmaétad not occurred.

Existing stockholders have significant influence ewvus.

As of February 22, 2012, our majority stocklers, including our Chairman, President and fdaiecutive Officer Frank Laukien, and
Director and Executive Chairman of the Bruker BimSproup Joerg Laukien and other Laukien family rbens owned, in the aggregate,
approximately 48% of our outstanding common stédaka result, these stockholders will be able ta@ge substantial influence over all
matters requiring stockholder approval, includihg €lection of directors and approval of significaorporate transactions. This could have
the effect of delaying or preventing a change inticm of our company and will make some transadtidifficult or impossible to accomplish
without the support of these stockholders.

Other companies may have difficulty acquiring ussen if doing so would benefit our stockholders, digeprovisions under our corporate
charter and bylaws, as well as Delaware law.

Provisions in our certificate of incorpaoat, as amended, and our bylaws, as well as Detalaar could make it more difficult for other
companies to acquire us, even if doing so woulcefieaur stockholders. Our certificate of incorpiwa, as amended, and bylaws contain the
following provisions, among others, which may irihén acquisition of our company by a third party:

. staggered board of directors, where stockholdexs einly a minority of the board each year;
. advance notification procedures for matters todoeidpht before stockholder meetings;
. a limitation on who may call stockholder meetingsd

the ability of our board of directors to issue apt000,000 shares of preferred stock without ekétolder vote.
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ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have not received any written commemashfthe staff of the Securities and Exchange Corsionisregarding our periodic or current
reports that (1) we believe are material, (2) weseed not less than 180 days before the end d @ik fiscal year end, and (3) remain
unresolved.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

We believe that our existing principal faigs are well maintained and in good operatingdition and that they are adequate for our
foreseeable business needs.

In addition to the principal facilities mot below we lease additional facilities for sabgsplications and service support in various
countries throughout the world including Austraklaistria, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, China, Czech lt#jg, Estonia, Finland, France,
Germany, Hong Kong, India, Israel, Italy, Japanjayiaia, Mexico, Netherlands, Poland, Portugal, Rysingapore, South Africa, South
Korea, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, Ukraime United Kingdom and the United States. If wewtl require additional or alternative
facilities, we believe that such facilities candi#ained on short notice at competitive rates.

The location and general character of euncgpal properties by operating segment are devid:
Scientific Instruments Segmen

Bruker BioSpin's six principal facilitiesealocated in Rheinstetten, Ettlingen and Karlsy@dermany; Faellanden, Switzerland;
Wissembourg, France; and Billerica, Massachusgtss,A. These facilities, which incorporate manufiaicty, research and development,
application and demonstration, marketing and sabelsadministration functions for the businesseBraker BioSpin, include:

. an owned 475,000 square foot facility in RheinstettGermany;

. an owned 360,000 square foot facility in Ettling&grmany;

. an owned 345,000 square foot facility in KarlsruBeymany;

. an owned 270,000 square foot facility and a le&&@00 square foot facility in Faellanden, Switaed;

. an owned 120,000 square foot facility, a lease@@bsquare foot facility and a leased 18,000 sqfoatefacility in
Wissembourg, France; and

. a leased 50,000 square foot facility in Billeriségassachusetts, U.S.A.

Bruker Daltonics' five principal facilitiese located in Bremen and Leipzig, Germany; GNesherlands; Billerica, Massachusetts,
U.S.A,; and Fremont, California, U.S.A. These fiieis, which incorporate manufacturing, researcth @velopment, application and
demonstration, marketing and sales and adminigirditinctions for the mass spectrometry and CBRN&nms$ses of Bruker Daltonics,
include:

. an owned 180,000 square foot facility in Bremen;nsy;
. an owned 90,000 square foot facility in Billeridbdassachusetts, U.S.A;
. an owned 60,000 square foot facility in Leipzig r@any;

. a leased 22,500 square foot facility in Fremontif@aia, U.S.A.; and

. a leased 22,000 square foot facility in Goes, Nédhes.

Bruker MAT's five principal facilities afecated in Karlsruhe, Berlin and Kalkar, Germanyadison, Wisconsin, U.S.A.; and Santa
Barbara, California, U.S.A. These facilities, whiokorporate
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manufacturing, research and development, applicatiml demonstration, marketing and sales and asim@Etion functions for the businesses
of Bruker MAT, include:

. an owned 97,000 square foot facility and an owrle8C0 square foot facility in Karlsruhe, Germany;
. an owned 155,000 square foot facility in Berlinr@any;

. an owned 100,000 square foot facility in Santa BeapCalifornia, U.S.A.;

. an owned 43,000 square foot facility in Madisons@dinsin, U.S.A.; and

. an owned 25,000 square foot facility in Kalkar, @any

Bruker Optics' three principal facilitiesedocated in Ettlingen, Germany; Billerica, Madsasetts, U.S.A.; and The Woodlands, Texas,
U.S.A. These facilities, which incorporate manufisictg, research and development, application angbdstration, marketing and sales and
administration functions for the business of Bru®gtics, include:

. an owned 165,000 square foot facility in Ettling&grmany;
. a leased 25,000 square foot facility in Billeriségssachusetts, U.S.A.; and

. a leased 22,700 square foot facility in The Wood$amexas, U.S.A.
Energy & Supercon Technologie!

Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies' fptincipal facilities are located in Hanau, Bergisgladbach and Alzenau, Germany and
Perth, Scotland. These facilities, which incorpemaanufacturing, research and development, aplicand demonstration, marketing and
sales and administration functions for the busimé®ruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, include:

. an owned 47,000 square foot facility in Perth, Bet;
. a leased 128,000 square foot facility in Hanau ntzey;
. a leased 66,000 square foot facility in Bergischdbach, Germany; and

. a leased 31,000 square foot facility in Alzenaurn@ay.

We are expanding our operations to supparplanned future growth and we expect to adddalitianal 43,000 square feet of leased
space in Kdln-Dellbriick, Germany by the end of 2012

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As previously reported, in September 2008rlytic GmbH, previously known as Roentgenanalppartebau GmbH ("RAA"), filed
a civil proceeding with the regional court of Fréurk am Main in Germany against a Bruker MAT sulesigin connection with alleged
improper use of certain intellectual property of RA-ollowing a series of hearings, in December 20@9court appointed an independent
software expert to investigate the copyright irfement allegations made by RAA and provide an opitd the court relating to the alleged
infringement. RAA filed for insolvency in August 20 and the court-appointed receiver elected togedaevith the litigation. In May 2011,
the independent software expert provided its opinsmiggesting findings that may support certaithefallegations made by RAA. This
matter was resolved in the fourth quarter of 2011.

On November 4, 2011, Hyphenated System§, filed an action in California Superior Court, &glara County, against the Company
and Veeco Metrology, Inc. in connection with cartagreements entered into prior and subsequehet@ompany's acquisition of all of the
shares of Veeco Metrology, Inc. in October 2010otJthe closing of the acquisition, Veeco Metrololpg. was
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renamed Bruker Nano, Inc. ("Bruker Nano"). The,suhich also names two employees of Bruker Narand unspecified damages for
breach of contract, fraud and unfair competitiogamnection with the performance of the agreemdifits. Company believes the claims to be
without merit and intends to vigorously defend #ision.

As previously reported, in 2011 the Aud@n@mittee of the Company's Board of Directors comeedran internal investigation, with the
assistance of independent outside counsel anddepémdent forensic consulting firm, in responseettain anonymous communications
received by the Company alleging improper conducioinnection with the China operations of the CamyfsaBruker Optics subsidiary. The
Audit Committee's investigation, which includedeziew of compliance by Bruker Optics and its empleyin China and Hong Kong with
requirements of the Foreign Corrupt Practices AcECPA, and other applicable laws and regulatibas,been completed.

The investigation found evidence indicatingt payments were made that improperly beneétagdloyees or agents of government-
owned enterprises in China and Hong Kong. The tiy&son also has found evidence that certain eggae of Bruker Optics in China and
Hong Kong failed to comply with the Company's piglicand standards of conduct. As a result, the @ompas taken personnel actions,
including the termination of certain individualshd Company has also terminated its business ne#dips with certain third party agents,
implemented an enhanced FCPA compliance prograthstaengthened the financial controls and oversgiits subsidiaries operating in
China and Hong Kong. Company management has atsded a review of the China operations of itsesthubsidiaries, which is being
conducted with the assistance of an independeritt féunal

The Company voluntarily contacted the Uhifgates Securities and Exchange Commission andritied States Department of Justice
in August 2011 to advise both agencies of the matkinvestigation by the Audit Committee. In OctoB811, the Company also reported the
existence of the internal investigation to the Hémgng Joint Financial Intelligence Unit and Indegent Commission Against Corruption, or
ICAC. The Company has cooperated with the UnitedeStfederal agencies and Hong Kong governmenbtidis with respect to their
inquiries and has provided documents and/or matiesses available in response to requests fromabernmental authorities reviewing t
matter. The Company intends to continue to coopewxith these agencies in connection with their ings. As was previously the case, at
time the Company cannot reasonably assess thegtioninutcome of these matters or their effectnif,an the Company's business.

The FCPA and related statutes and reguisifiwovide for potential monetary penalties as agltriminal and civil sanctions in
connection with FCPA violations. It is possiblettheonetary penalties and other sanctions coulcsbessed by the Federal government in
connection with these matters. Additionally, to éxtent any payments are determined to be illeg&bdal government authorities, civil or
criminal penalties may be assessed by such au#wand the Company's ability to conduct busineskat jurisdiction may be negatively
impacted. At this time, the Company cannot pretiietextent to which the SEC, the DOJ, the ICACror @her governmental authorities v
pursue administrative, civil injunctive or criminaidoceedings, the imposition of fines or penaltiesther remedies or sanctions. The
Company cannot reasonably estimate the poterdtaility, if any, related to these matters resultiragn any proceedings that may be
commenced by the SEC, the DOJ, the ICAC or anyrgbeernmental authorities. Accordingly, no proeisiwith respect to such matters has
been recorded in the accompanying consolidateddiaastatements.

It is not possible to predict at this timken the government inquiries concerning the irigatibn will be completed, or what actions, if
any, will be taken by governmental authorities witgard to these matters. In the fiscal year efmmember 31, 2011, $4.3 million was
recorded for legal and other professional senicesrred related to the internal investigationlate matters.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Prices

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdadp&ISelect Market under the symbol "BRKR." Thédwing table sets forth, for the peri
indicated, the high and low sales prices for oumemn stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Sellaxdtet:

High Low
First Quarter 201 $ 20.92 $ 15.9¢
Second Quarter 201 21.6¢ 17.21
Third Quarter 201: 21.3( 12.2¢
Fourth Quarter 201 15.7( 11.4¢
First Quarter 201! $ 14.9¢ $ 12.0¢
Second Quarter 201 15.8¢ 11.7:
Third Quarter 201 14.47 10.5Z
Fourth Quarter 201 17.6¢ 13.9¢

As of February 22, 2012, there were appnakely 110 holders of record of our common stod¢ks humber does not include individual
beneficial owners of shares held in nominee nameithin clearinghouse positions of brokerage firamsl banks. The official close price per
share of our common stock on February 22, 201 @wrted by the Nasdaq Global Select Market, w#&sCElL

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash diddem our capital stock. We currently anticipat thie will retain all available funds for use
in our business and do not anticipate paying ash dividends in the foreseeable future. The terhcedain debt facilities restrict our ability
to pay cash dividends.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
There were no unregistered sales of egeityrities during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no issuer purchases made by bebalf of the Company or any "affiliated purchid'sas defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under
the Exchange Act during the fourth quarter of fiszfl 1.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph below shows the cumulative stotdeér return, assuming the investment of $100 (ardeinvestment of any dividends
thereafter) for the period beginning on December2BD6 and ending on December 31, 2011, for oumeomstock, stocks traded on Nasdaq
and a peer group consisting of companies tradedasaaq with Standard Industry Classification, oZ,3lodes from 3800 to 3899,
representing measuring instruments, photo, medivdloptical goods and timepieces. The stock pectopnance of Bruker Corporation
shown in the following graph is not indicative otdire stock price performance.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100

December 2011
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I—-— Binekar Corpaoration —8— NASDAD Stock Market (US Companies] =—a— NASDAD Stocks (SIC 3800-3859)

Cumulative Total Return Index for: 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Bruker Corporatior $ 100.C $ 1771 $ 53.& $ 160.6 $ 221.C $ 165.
NASDAQ Stock Market (US companie 100.C 108.t 66.4 95.4 113.2 113.¢
NASDAQ Stock Market (US companies , S 100.( 131.1 66.4 90.C 107.7 112.¢
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measuring instruments, photo, med & optical
goods, timepiece:

The data for this performance graph waspited by Zack's Investment Research, Inc. andesl ugth their permission.
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On February 26, 2008, we completed our ai@tgpn of Bruker BioSpin. The Company and Brukeéo8pin were majority owned by
affiliated stockholders prior to the acquisitiors A result, our acquisition of Bruker BioSpin wassidered a business combination of entities
under common control and was accounted for atigstioccarrying values. Historical consolidated Ingl@ sheets, statements of income and
statements of cash flows were restated by combithiednistorical audited financial statements of@menpany with those of Bruker BioSpin.
The consolidated statements of income data for ehttie years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ar@, 20@ the consolidated balance s
data as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, have bemedi&om our audited financial statements incllidke Item 8 of this report. The
combined statements of income data and combineshbalsheet data for certain other periods preseveesl derived by combining amounts
from the historical audited financial statement8oiker Corporation and Bruker BioSpin.

The data presented below was derived fioantial statements that were prepared in accoedaitt U.S. generally accepted accoun
principles and should be read with the consolidatedi combined financial statements, including thies thereto, and "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” included elsewhere in thisual report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in millions, except per share data)

Consolidated/Combined
Statements of
Operation Data:

Product revenu $ 1,445¢ $ 1,145« $ 985 $ 974¢ $ 913.
Service revenu 194.¢ 151.1 122.¢ 126.€ 115.¢
Other revenu 11.z 8.4 6.8 5.3 3.8
Total revenue 1,651.° 1,304.¢ 1,114 1,107.: 1,032.-
Total costs and operating expen 1,496.: 1,149.: 977.¢ 998.¢ 894.7
Operating incom: 155.€ 155.7 136.% 108.2 137.%
Net income attributable to Bruk

Corporation 92.: 95.4 81.2 64.¢ 98.¢

Net income per common she
attributable tc
Bruker Corporation shareholde
Basic $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5C $ 0.4C $ 0.61
Diluted $ 0.5t $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6C

In 2011, we recorded acquisition-relatests@f $4.2 million related to our recently compteacquisitions, $4.3 million of costs related
to our internal investigation into the China openas of Bruker Optics, $1.3 million of restructugicharges related to the Berlin operations of
our atomic force microscopy business and $0.2 onilbf other charges during 2011. In 2011, we alsatevoff $3.4 million of deferred
offering costs because the timing of a future aipiublic offering for our BEST subsidiary is uni@@n. Our provision for income taxes in
2011 includes approximately $6.3 million of tax erpe associated with @woing tax audits in Germany and Switzerland offsetax benefit
associated with reversing certain valuation alloveanin the United States.

In 2010, we recorded $4.6 million of acéios-related costs in connection with our acqigsis of the chemical analysis business from
Agilent Technologies, Inc. and the nano surfacesnmss from Veeco Instruments Inc. In additionreerded a loss of $1.0 million in
connection with the divestiture of a business ah@ #nillion of restructuring charges in 2010.

In 2009, we recorded a gain of $1.3 milliortonnection with the acquisition of the researdtruments business from Varian Medical
Systems, Inc. and acquisition-related costs in eotion with
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this acquisition of $0.8 million. The results fdd@ also include impairment charges of $0.7 milkmw restructuring charges of $0.2 million.

In 2008, we recorded acquisition-relatedrglks of $6.2 million related to our acquisitiorBotiker BioSpin and $2.3 million of
restructuring charges. Our provision for incomeetai 2008 includes net tax benefits of $9.5 millielated to reversing certain valuation
allowances on deferred tax assets and reachingahe-likely-than-not threshold for recognizing eémttax receivables.

In 2007, we recorded acquisition-relatedrglks of $7.4 million related to our acquisitiofi®cuker BioSpin and Bruker Optics. We also
recorded a tax benefit of $10.1 million relatectohange in tax law that was enacted in Germany.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in millions)

Consolidated/Combined Balance

Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents, short-

term investments and restricted

cash $ 2482 $ 2335 $ 2091 $ 1677 $  344.¢
Working capital 438.: 219.¢ 333.: 301.C 472.¢
Total asset 1,710.! 1,549.¢ 1,172 1,116.: 1,310.
Total debt 303.1 301.C 137.% 223.¢ 44.2
Other lon¢-term liabilities 110.¢ 104.< 97.: 101.1 105.t
Total shareholders' equi 624.¢ 527. 418.¢ 312.7 635.5

ITEM7 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management's Discussion amélfsis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofierss, or MD&A, describes the
principal factors affecting the results of our gaems, financial condition and changes in finahc@andition, as well as our critical accounti
policies and estimates. Our MD&A is organized dbofes:

. Executive Overview.This section provides a general description dstibty of our business, a brief discussion of ayrartabli
segments, significant recent developments in osiniass and other opportunities, and challengesisksithat may impact our
business in the future.

. Critical Accounting Policies. This section discusses the accounting estimhstsate considered important to our financial
condition and results of operations and requirtolexercise subjective or complex judgments inrthpplication. All of our
significant accounting policies, including our ar@l accounting policies and estimates, are sunaediin Note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of thismual Report on Form 10-K.

. Results of Operations.This section provides our analysis of the sigaffit line items on our consolidated statement adrime
for the year ended December 31, 2011 comparecetyper ended December 31, 2010 and for the ye@debdcember 31,
2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009.

. Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThis section provides an analysis of our liqyidihd cash flow and a discussion of our
outstanding debt and commitments.

. Transactions with Related PartiesThis section summarizes transactions with priaicgareholders and directors.

. Recent Accounting PronouncementBhis section provides information about new aotimg standards that have been issued
but for which adoption is not yet required.
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EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW
Business Overview

Bruker Corporation and its wholly-owned sidgliaries design, manufacture, service and maniogirigetary life science and materials
research systems based on our technology platfanciading magnetic resonance technologies, masstigpnetry technologies, gas
chromatography technologies, X-ray technologiearkspptical emission spectroscopy, atomic forcerasicopy, stylus and optical metrology
technology and infrared and Raman molecular spsobfmy technologies. We sell a broad range of fielalytical systems for chemical,
biological, radiological, nuclear and explosive GBRNE, detection. We also develop and manufadtwrgéemperature and high temperature
superconducting wire products and superconducting and superconducting devices for use in advanwaghet technology, physics
research and energy applications. Our diverse m&tbase includes life science, pharmaceuticalebimology and molecular diagnostic
research companies, academic institutions, advamegelrials and semiconductor industries and govemmgencies. Our corporate
headquarters are located in Billerica, Massachsiséte maintain major technical and manufacturingexs in Europe, North America and
Japan and we have sales offices located througheuwtorld.

Our business strategy is to capitalize wnamility to innovate and generate rapid revermasvth, both organically and through
acquisitions. Our revenue growth strategy combimitk anticipated improvements to our gross profirgins and increased leverage on our
research and development, sales and marketingisinidation investments and general and adminiseagxpenses is expected to enhance
our operating margins and improve our profitabilitythe future.

We are organized into five operating segsiéBruker BioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MATrliker Optics, and Bruker Energy &
Supercon Technologies. Bruker BioSpin is in tharmss of designing, manufacturing and distributifegscience tools based on magnetic
resonance technology. Bruker Daltonics is in therfmss of designing, manufacturing, and distrilgutitass spectrometry and gas
chromatography instruments and solutions for Idiersces, including proteomics, metabolomics, aimdazl research applications. Our mass
spectrometry and gas chromatography instrumentspats/ide solutions for applied markets that inelddod safety, environmental analysis
and fuel analysis. Bruker Daltonics also desigrenufactures, and distributes various analyticatimsents for CBRNE detection. Bruker
MAT is in the business of designing, manufacturiagg distributing advanced X-ray, combustion anajyatomic force microscopy, and
stylus and optical metrology instrumentation usecholecular, materials, and elemental analysisk&r®ptics is in the business of
designing, manufacturing, and distributing reseaackalytical, and process analysis instrumentssahdions based on infrared and Raman
molecular spectroscopy technologies. Bruker En&@upercon Technologies is in the business of agief and producing superconduc!
materials and devices based primarily on metadlic emperature superconductors and ceramic highdeature superconductors with
applications in renewable energy, energy infrastingc medical imaging and life science analyticd drig science” research, which typically
consists of large scale projects funded by a gawent or a group of governments.

For financial reporting purposes, we corelitme Bruker BioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MAMd Bruker Optics operating segments
into the Scientific Instruments reporting segmesttduse each has similar economic characteristisdupt processes and services, types and
classes of customers, methods of distribution,ragdlatory environments. As such, management reisrfinancial results based on the
following segments:

. Scientific Instruments.The operations of this segment include the desigimufacture and distribution of advanced
instrumentation and automated solutions based g@mnet& resonance technology, mass spectrometrydémdy, gas
chromatography technology, X-ray technology, spapkieal emission spectroscopy technology, atomicganicroscopy
technology, stylus and
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optical metrology technology, and infrared and Rammelecular spectroscopy technology. Typical cusianof the Scientific
Instruments segment include: pharmaceutical, bimtelogy and molecular diagnostic companies; acadamtitutions,
medical schools and other non-profit organizatiatisjcal microbiology laboratories; government dements and agencies;
nanotechnology, semiconductor, chemical, cemenlmand petroleum companies; and food, beveragagmcultural
analysis companies and laboratories.

. Energy & Supercon Technologied he operations of this segment include the desigmufacture and marketing of
superconducting materials, primarily metallic leamiperature superconductors, for use in magnetimagge imaging, nuclear
magnetic resonance, fusion energy research andaypécations, and ceramic high temperature supehactors primarily for
fusion energy research applications. Typical custenof the Energy & Supercon Technologies segnmetide companies in
the medical industry, private and public researuth @evelopment laboratories in the fields of fundatal and applied sciences
and energy research, academic institutions andrgment agencies. The Energy & Supercon Technolsggment is also
developing superconductors and superconductinglethaevices for applications in power and energywall as industrial
processing industries.

Financial Overview

For the year ended December 31, 2011,emgnue increased by $346.8 million, or 26.6%, t&%1.7 million, compared to
$1,304.9 million for the year ended December 31,020ncluded in this change in revenue is an irsged approximately $78.9 million from
the impact of foreign exchange due to the weakeafribe U.S. Dollar versus the Euro, Swiss Frartt @her foreign currencies and an
increase of approximately $148.5 million attribléato recent acquisitions. Excluding the effectonéign exchange and our recent
acquisitions, revenue increased by $119.4 mill@r9.2%. The increase in revenue on an adjusted Isaattributable to both the Scientific
Instruments segment, which increased by $105.8omjlbr 8.6%, and the Energy & Supercon Technolbgegment, which increased by
$17.9 million, or 19.8%.

Revenue in the Scientific Instruments sagmeflects an increase in sales from many of ove ¢echnologies, particularly X-ray and
elemental analysis, magnetic resonance, mass gpetly and molecular spectroscopy products. Theahptoducts sold in the Scientific
Instruments segment during 2011 reflects incredsedand from academic, government and industridbousrs. We attribute the increase in
sales to academic and government customers taasmdespending from these customers, to new pratuetiuctions and to stimulus
packages implemented by governments of varioustdesnparticularly the U.S. We continue to closelgnitor spending patterns from
governments and academic customers and we behavéunding for our products will remain stable goow, in most of our key markets.
The improvement in revenues from our industriakeorers reflects continued growth in these end marked our new product introductions.
Revenues in the Energy & Supercon Technologies segmcreased due to higher demand for low temperauperconducting wire.

Income from operations for the year endeddédnber 31, 2011 was $155.6 million, resultingrioperating margin of 9.4%, comparec
income from operations of $155.7 million, resultingan operating margin of 11.9%, for the year ehBecember 31, 2010. Included in
income from operations are various charges to ifmrgnamortization of acquisition-related intangilassets and other acquisition-related
costs, deferred offering costs that have beenerriff and legal and other professional services fekeded to our internal FCPA investigat
totaling, in the aggregate, $40.5 million and $22ition in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Excludihgse charges, operating margins were
11.9% in 2011 and 13.6% in 2010. Operating mardeweased, despite growth in our revenues and grofits, because of the mix of
products sold and higher operating expenses.
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Gross profit for the year ended Decembe2811 was $752.5 million compared to $604.0 millfor the year ended December 31, 2
Our gross profit margin for the year ended Decenie?011 was 45.6%, compared with 46.3% for the g@aded December 31, 2010.
However, excluding the effect of inventory reseriaated to certain specialty magnets and the &sfigicrecently completed acquisitions,
including amortization expense totaling, in the ragaite $15.1 million and $4.3 million in 2011 ar@id @, respectively, gross profit margins
decreased to 47.0% in 2011 compared with 47.4%9102Gross profit margins in 2011 benefitted frdra higher revenues described above
and sales of our newly introduced products whichevelesigned to carry higher gross margins tharpmuious generations of products. In
addition, our acquisition of the nano surfaces fess had a positive impact on our gross profit marg 2011. However, the mix of products
sold, including our gas chromatography and indetyicoupled plasma products, negatively impactadyoass profit margins. The chemical
analysis business contributed to lower gross pnoditgins due to higher than planned productionscaich were caused, in part, by costs
and lost production time associated with relocatawories from former Varian Inc. sites to our ofanilities. Changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, primarily the strengthening o8 and Swiss Franc, also contributed to the aggdecause the majority of our produc
facilities are located in Europe.

Selling, general and administrative expere® research and development expenses increa$b83.8 million, or 35.3% of revenue, in
2011 from $442.5 million, or 33.9% of revenue, 010. The increase in selling, general and admatise expenses and research and
development expenses in 2011 is attributable teeases in headcount from our recent acquisitiodsrareases in headcount to support
planned revenue growth in our existing businessksalso incurred higher commission expenses asuét i increases in new orders and
revenues. Changes in foreign currency exchangs, iatienarily the strengthening of the Euro and SviAganc, also contributed to the incre
because the majority of our employees are locat&dirope. We are focused on controlling costs aadnaplementing selective cost saving
programs with the goal of reducing operating expsr@d improving operating margins in 2012.

We incurred approximately $7.3 million aferest expense during the year ended Decemb@031,compared to $5.6 million during
the year ended December 31, 2010. The increasgeirest expense relates primarily to increaselsaratmounts borrowed under the revolving
portion of our credit agreement. The increase istanding revolving loans is attributable to $16milion that we borrowed in October 2010
to finance the acquisition and short-term workiagital requirements of the nano surfaces businedsa additional $31.0 million that we
borrowed in September 2011 to finance the acqorsitif the tribology business and for general cafmopurposes.

In May 2011, we entered into an amendmadtrastatement of our credit agreement. The amecrdelit agreement increased the
maximum commitment on our revolving credit line®@60.0 million and extended the maturity date anrévolving line of credit to May
2016. In addition, in January 2012 we entered &imte purchase agreement with a group of accekitisgitutional investors. Under the note
purchase agreement we issued and sold $240.0 miffisenior notes that consisted of $20.0 millibsenior notes due January 18, 2017;
$15.0 million of senior notes due January 18, 2&195.0 million of senior notes due January 1822@2d $100.0 million of senior notes
due January 18, 2024. We used a portion of thenoeteeds from the senior notes to reduce amoutgsaoaling under our revolving credit
facility and intend to use the remainder for gehesaporate purposes.

Our effective tax rate for 2011 was 35.4%mpared to 35.5% for 2010. Our provision for ineotaixes in 2011 includes approximately
$6.3 million of tax expense from additional resarvecorded in connection with ongoing tax audit&ermany and Switzerland. In 2010, we
recorded reserves of $2.8 million related to theatadit in Switzerland. The change in our effectae rate, excluding the increase in reserves
for tax audits, relates primarily to reversing aértvaluation allowances in the United States.

42




Table of Contents

Our net income attributable to the sharééud of Bruker Corporation for the year ended Ddzam31, 2011 was $92.3 million, or $0.55
per diluted share, compared to $95.4 million, a68Qer diluted share, for the year ended Decei3ibe?010.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations is basechupo consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with act@uptinciples generally accepted in the United&taf America. The preparation of
these financial statements requires that we makaaes and assumptions that affect the reportezbiate of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and reponteoluats of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. On an ongoing basis, managemeaitiates its estimates and judgments, includingghelated to revenue recognition, the
expensing and capitalization of research and dpweémts costs for software, stock-based compensatjpanse, restructuring and other
related charges, income taxes, including the raedpility of deferred tax assets, allowances forlathud accounts, reserves for excess and
obsolete inventories, estimated fair values of {imgd assets used to evaluate the recoverabiliigtangible assets and goodwill, expected
future cash flows used to evaluate the recovetglufiintangible assets and long-lived assets, avdyrcosts, derivative financial instruments
and contingent liabilities. We base our estimatesjadgments on historical experience, current mtaskd economic conditions, industry
trends and other assumptions that we believe asonable and form the basis for making judgmentsitaie carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. Actual results could differ from thestreates.

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies to be both those most important to theerpyal of our financial position and results
of operations and those that require the most stibgjudgment.

Revenue recognition. We recognize revenue from system sales whesupsive evidence of an arrangement exists, the griiixed or
determinable, title and risk of loss has been feansd to the customer and collectability of theuling receivable is reasonably assured. Title
and risk of loss generally are transferred to tga@mer upon receipt of a signed customer acceptanm for a system that has been shipped,
installed, and for which the customer has beenehiAs a result, the timing of customer acceptanceadiness could cause our reported
revenues to differ materially from expectations.aflproducts are sold through an independent digtrilor a strategic distribution partner
who assumes responsibility for installation, weogguze the system sale when the product has bégpeshand title and risk of loss have
been transferred to the distributor. Our distrilbsito not have price protection rights or rightsetfirn; however, our products are typically
warranted to be free from defect for a period of gaar. Revenue is deferred until cash is receidezh collectability is not reasonably
assured, such as when a significant portion ofédbds due over one year after delivery, installatind acceptance of a system. For
arrangements with multiple elements we allocatemere to each element based on the relative faiewafl each element, using the relative
selling price method. The fair value of each eleniebased on our vendor specific objective evidelfcavailable. If vendor specific
objective evidence is not available we use eviddrura third-parties or when third-party evidenceagg available, we use management's best
estimate of the selling price. Revenue from acaéssand parts is recognized upon shipment andcgemvenue is recognized as the serv
are performed. We also have contracts for whiclapmy the percentage-of-completion model of revamgegnition and the milestone
method of revenue recognition. Application of tleeqentage-of-completion method requires us to me&sonable estimates of the extent of
progress toward completion of the contract anddbed costs we will incur under the contract. Chesan our estimates could affect the tin
of revenue recognition.
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Income taxes. The determination of income tax expense requigeto make certain estimates and judgments auingethe calculation
of deferred tax assets and liabilities, as wethasdeductions, carryforwards and credits thatwmeglable to reduce taxable income. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities arise from differengethe timing of the recognition of revenue and ewges for financial statement and tax
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aasored using the tax rates in effect for the yreashich these temporary differences are
expected to be settled. We estimate the degreaitthviax assets and loss carryforwards will reisust benefit based on expected profitability
by tax jurisdiction, and we provide a valuatioroalance for tax assets and loss carryforwards teatelieve will more likely than not go
unused. If it becomes more likely than not thabadsset or loss carryforward will be used for Wtaareserve has been provided, we reverse
the related valuation allowance. If our actual fattaxable income by tax jurisdiction differs frastimates, additional allowances or rever
of reserves may be necessary. In addition, we i@tggnize benefits for tax positions that we baiave more likely than not of being
sustained upon review by a taxing authority witlowiedge of all relevant information. We reevaluate uncertain tax positions on a
quarterly basis and any changes to these pos#i®asresult of tax audits, tax laws or other facis circumstances could result in additional
charges to operations.

Allowance for doubtful accounts.We maintain allowances for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the inabilityoaf
customers to pay amounts due. If the financial ¢@mrdof our customers were to deteriorate, redgdreir ability to make payments,
additional allowances would be required, resulting charge to operations.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket, with costs determined by the first-in,tfiosit method for a majority of
subsidiaries and by average cost for certain iat@nal subsidiaries. We record provisions to aotéor excess and obsolete inventory to
reflect the expected non-saleable or non-refundabkntory based on an evaluation of slow movimgdpicts. Inventories also include
demonstration units located in our demonstratitiofatories or installed at the sites of potentistomers. We consider our demonstration
units to be available for sale. We reduce the dagryalue of demonstration inventories for diffecens between cost and estimated net
realizable value, taking into consideration usagthé preceding twelve months, expected demankdntdagical obsolescence and other
information including the physical condition of thaeit. If ultimate usage or demand varies signifibafrom expected usage or demand,
additional write-downs may be required, resultingdditional charges to operations.

Goodwill, other intangible assets and otlwrg-lived assets. We evaluate whether goodwill is impaired anlyuahd when events
occur or circumstances change. We test goodwilinipairment at the reporting unit level, whichhe toperating segment or one level below
an operating segment. In 2011, an amendment tgabeéwill impairment guidance was issued that presidntities an option to perform a
gualitative assessment to determine whether fuithpairment testing is necessary before perforntegtwo-step test that was previously
required. The qualitative assessment requiresfgignt judgments by management about macro-econoamditions including the entity's
operating environment, its industry and other miack@siderations; entity-specific events relatefirtancial performance or loss of key
personnel; and other events that could impactdherting unit. We adopted the provisions of thissadment for our annual test of
impairment as of December 31, 2011 and concludeskdon our qualitative assessment, that no fuiklséng was required. In the future, if
we conclude that further testing is required, thpairment test involves a two-step process. Tls¢ diep involves comparing the fair values
of the applicable reporting units with their aggagcarrying values, including goodwill. We genlgrdietermine the fair value of our
reporting units using an income approach methodotdgyaluation that includes the discounted castvfinethod. Estimating the fair value of
the reporting units requires significant judgmentananagement about the future cash flows. If #reying amount of a reporting unit
exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, weigren the second step of the goodwill impairmest te measure the amount of the
impairment. In the second
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step of the goodwill impairment test we compareithglied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwilith the carrying value of that goodwi
We also review finite-lived intangible assets atitko long-lived assets when indications of potéimigairment exist, such as a significant
reduction in undiscounted cash flows associateld thi# assets. Should the fair value of our longdiassets decline because of reduced
operating performance, market declines, or othdicators of impairment, a charge to operationsrfgrairment may be necessary.

Warranty costs. We normally provide a one year parts and latemranty with the purchase of equipment. The guaitgid cost for this
warranty is accrued upon recognition of the saketian historical warranty rates and our assumgtiéfuture warranty claims. The
warranty accrual is included as a current liabititythe consolidated balance sheets. Although mdyets undergo quality assurance and
testing procedures throughout the production pyaas warranty obligation is affected by produwalure rates, material usage and service
delivery costs incurred in correcting a produciufig. Although our actual warranty costs have hisadly been consistent with expectations,
to the extent warranty claim activity or costs ass@d with servicing those claims differ from @astimates, revisions to the warranty accrual
may be required.

Derivative financial instruments. All derivative instruments are recorded as @sseliabilities at fair value, which is calculdtas an
estimate of the future cash flows, and subsequeariges in a derivative's fair value are recognizeédcome, unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met. Changes in the fditevaf a derivative that is highly effective andsmated as a cash flow hedge are recognizec
in accumulated other comprehensive income untifahecasted transaction occurs or it becomes pielthht the forecasted transaction will
not occur. We perform an assessment at the incepfithe hedge and on a quarterly basis thereaftelgetermine whether our derivatives are
highly effective in offsetting changes in the vabfeéhe hedged items. Any changes in the fair vadiseilting from hedge ineffectiveness are
immediately recognized as income or expense.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the Yeded=December 31, 2010
Consolidated Results

The following table presents our resultstfe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (glallanillions, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 31,
2011 2010

Product revenu $ 1,445.¢ $ 1,145.
Service revenu 194.¢ 151.]
Other revenu: 11.: 8.4

Total revenue 1,651.° 1,304.¢
Cost of product revent 792.5 621.
Cost of service revent 106.7 79.4

Total cost of revenu 899.2 700.¢

Gross profit 752.% 604.(
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 406.¢ 301.1
Research and developmt 177.2 141.¢
Write-off of deferred offering cost 3.4 —
Other charge 9.7 5.8

Total operating expens 596.¢ 448.:

Operating incom: 155.¢ 155.%
Interest and other income (expense), (10.7 (5.6
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling @gtin consolidated

subsidiaries 145.t 150.1
Income tax provisiol 51.t 53.Z
Consolidated net incon 94.C 96.¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interiestonsolidatec

subsidiarie: 1.7 1.4
Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat 92.2 $ 95.4
Net income per common share attributabl

Bruker Corporation shareholde

Basic 0.5¢€ $ 0.5¢

Diluted 0.5 $ 0.5¢
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic 165.2 164.

Diluted 166.¢ 165.7

Revenue

Our revenue increased by $346.8 millior2@6%, to $1,651.7 million for the year ended Deber 31, 2011, compared to
$1,304.9 million for the year ended December 31,020ncluded in this change in revenue is an irsgaH approximately $78.9 million from
the impact of foreign
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exchange due to the weakening of the U.S. Dollesugethe Euro and other foreign currencies antierease of approximately $148.5 mill
attributable to our recent acquisitions. Excluding effect of foreign exchange and our recent &itipms, revenue increased by

$119.4 million, or 9.2%. The increase in revenuean adjusted basis, is attributable to both therflific Instruments segment, which
increased by $105.8 million, or 8.6%, and the Ep&dsupercon Technologies segment, which increayehtl 7.9 million, or 19.8%.
Revenue in the Scientific Instruments segmentctflan increase in sales many of our core techiedoBevenue in the Energy & Supercon
Technologies segment increased due to higher defoatav temperature superconducting wire.

Revenue in the Scientific Instruments sagmeflects an increase in sales from many of oue technologies, particularly X-ray and
elemental analysis, magnetic resonance, mass spesttly and molecular spectroscopy products. Theahproducts sold in the Scientific
Instruments segment during 2011 reflects incredsathand from academic, government and industridbousrs. We attribute the increase in
sales of mass spectrometry and magnetic resonaodeqps to spending by academic and governmenbmmigss, to new product introductic
and to stimulus packages implemented by governnoéntarious countries, particularly the U.S. Whitk@ny European governments have
announced their intentions to reduce overall spendi number of our key European markets, inclu@egnany, France and the U.K., have
announced that research spending will remain stablgrow in some cases. Based on the announceffnemshese governments and the
European Union, we believe that funding for thearigj of our products and markets will remain s&ldr grow, in most of our key Europe
markets. The improvement in revenues from our itréalsustomers reflects an ongoing economic imprognt in these end markets. We
remain optimistic that the industrial markets weveewill continue to improve.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue for the year ended Bsee 31, 2011, was $899.2 million, resulting irasg profit margin of 45.6%, compared to
cost of product and service revenue of $700.9 onijlresulting in a gross profit margin of 46.3%, thee year ended December 31, 2010. The
increase in cost of revenue is primarily a functidnhe higher material costs that result fromhgher revenues described above. However,
the increase in costs is also attributable to emes in headcount from our recent acquisitiondrasrdases in headcount to support our cul
production requirements. The chemical analysisrass also contributed to the increase in costwefimee because of the costs associated
relocating factories from former Varian Inc. siteour own facilities. Changes in foreign curreeaghange rates, primarily the strengthening
of the Euro and Swiss Franc, also contributed édribrease in cost of revenue because the magifrayr production facilities are located in
Europe.

We recorded $15.1 million of amortizatiogpense in cost of revenue associated with techyelelgted intangible assets and an
additional $4.5 million representing the differerfmween the fair value and historical cost of mweeies acquired in business combinations
and sold in 2011. Our cost of revenue in 2011 misludes $4.6 million of inventory reserves for tiegvork of certain specialty magnets that
did not meet customer specifications. In 2010, emrded $4.3 million of amortization expense intafgevenue, $7.2 million related to the
fair value of inventories acquired in recent acijioiss and $3.4 million related to the specialtygmets that did not meet customer
specifications.

Selling, General and Administrativ

Our selling, general and administrativeeng®e for the year ended December 31, 2011 incréas06.6 million, or 24.6% of revenue,
from $301.1 million, or 23.1% of revenue, for theay ended December 31, 2010. The increase ingeafleneral and administrative expenses
is attributable to increases in headcount frommeaequisitions, primarily the nano surfaces anehaigal analysis businesses, and increas
headcount to support planned revenue growth ireristing businesses. In addition, an increase wareler bookings and revenue in 2011
resulted in higher commission
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expense. Changes in foreign currency exchange miesarily the strengthening of the Euro, alsoatagly impacted our selling, general ¢
administrative expenses because a majority of @lling and marketing employees are located in Eeirop

Research and Developme

Our research and development expense éoyaghr ended December 31, 2011 increased to $a¥ifich, or 10.7% of revenue, from
$141.4 million, or 10.8% of revenue, for the yeaded December 31, 2010. The increase in reseatccHearelopment expenses is attributable
to increases in headcount from recent acquisitimsincreases in headcount and material costmostufuture product introductions in our
existing businesses. The increase in researcheraagbment expenses is also attributable to changeseign currency exchange rates,
primarily the strengthening of the Euro, which niagdy impact our research and development expebsesuse a majority of our research
and development is performed in Europe.

Write-off of Deferred Offering Costs

In September 2010, we announced planslita sginority ownership position in our BEST suliaiy through an initial public offering of
the capital stock of BEST. As a result of econoarid market factors, the timing of the BEST inipablic offering is uncertain. Although
BEST remains in registration, because of the ctiwranertainty in the timing of a future offeringewvrote-off deferred offering costs totaling
$3.4 million in the third quarter of 2011.

Other Charges

Other charges, net of $9.7 million recorded011 consist of charges recorded entirely enSkientific Instruments segment. The cha
recorded in 2011 consist of $4.2 million of acqinsi-related costs associated with the nano susfhosiness, chemical analysis business anc
other acquisitions completed during the year. Asijon-related costs consist of costs incurred uti@d@sition service arrangements we
entered into with the sellers of the nano surfaceschemical analysis businesses and transactsis, @ocluding legal, accounting and other
fees. The transition services agreements expir@@1d and we do not expect these costs to recher@harges, net for the year ended
December 31, 2011 also includes $4.3 million o&lemd other professional service fees associaitbdonr internal investigation into the
China operations of Bruker Optics.

Other charges, net of $5.8 million recor@ed010 consist of charges recorded entirely enSbientific Instruments segment. The cha
recorded in 2010 consist of $4.6 million of acqtidsi-related costs, $0.2 million of restructuring chargad a loss of $1.0 million recordec
connection with the divestiture of a business. Asitjon-related costs recorded in 2010 relate toamquisitions of the nano surfaces and
chemical analysis businesses and consist of aosisred under transition service arrangements weresh into with the sellers and transac
costs, including legal, accounting and other f&estructuring charges related primarily to sevezdancurred in connection with closing a
production facility in Herzogenrath, Germany ane lbss on the sale of investment is associatedauthinvestment in Bruker Baltic, Ltd., a
manufacturing site located in Riga, Latvia that wagaged in the production of certain componergs irs our X-ray product lines. The
restructuring charges and loss on investment wengried as part of a broader corporate strateggdafcing costs and consolidating critical
production know-how in certain key production sites

Interest and Other Income (Expense), N

Interest and other income (expense), nehduhe year ended December 31, 2011 was $(10lllym compared to $(5.6) million for tt
year ended December 31, 20
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During the year ended December 31, 20ELnthjor components within interest and other incéexpense), net, consisted of net inte
expense of $6.3 million and realized and unreallasdes on foreign currency transactions of $4ami During the year ended
December 31, 2010, the major components withimésteand other income (expense), net, consistadtdhterest expense of $4.7 million
and realized and unrealized losses on foreign sayreransactions of $1.5 million.

The increase in interest expense is prignarfunction of higher average outstanding deldhees throughout 2011 and, to a lesser
degree, an increase in the average interest ratgmyvon outstanding borrowings. Losses on foreigrency exchange rates were primarily a
function of changes in exchange rates between tine &d the Swiss Franc against the U.S. Dollar.

Provision for Income Taxe:!

The income tax provision for the year enBedember 31, 2011 was $51.5 million compared tmemme tax provision of $53.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010, represeetffagtive tax rates of 35.4% and 35.5%, respegtiv@lr tax rate may change over time
the amount and mix of income and taxes outsid&tise changes. In addition to the amount and mix@dme and taxes outside the United
States, our income tax provision can be impactedisgrete items of a non-recurring nature. Discitet@s of this nature resulted in tax
expense of $6.3 million and $2.8 million for theayg ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectMadydiscrete items recorded in 2011
and 2010 relate to additional amounts accrued mmection with ongoing tax audits in Germany andt3svland. The change in our effective
tax rate, excluding the increase in reserves foatalits, relates primarily to reversing certaifuation allowances in the United States. We
were able to release a portion of the valuatioomaihce on our deferred tax assets in the Unite@Steecause of deferred tax liabilities
arising from the identified intangible assets aoeghin connection with the tribology and HPLC besises. Because we maintain a full
valuation allowance on our deferred tax assetldrnited States, the deferred tax liabilities rded in connection with these acquisitions
represents a source of future taxable income tlmatsius to utilize a portion of the deferred tasets.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

Net income attributable to noncontrollimgeirests for the year ended December 31, 2011 u@sdillion compared to $1.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010. The net incamileuddble to noncontrolling interests represehesrinority shareholders' proportionate
share of the net income recorded by our majority@avindirect subsidiaries.

Net Income Attributable to Bruker Corporatio

Our net income for the year ended DecerBheP011 was $92.3 million, or $0.55 per dilutedrsh compared to net income of
$95.4 million, or $0.58 per diluted share, for 2010
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Segment Result
Revenue

The following table presents revenue, cleangevenue and revenue growth by reportable segfoethe years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 (dollars in millions):

Percentage
2011 2010 Dollar Change Change
Scientific Instrument $ 1554.. $ 1,225.. $ 329.( 26.%%
Energy & Supercon Technologi 113.¢ 90.t 22.¢ 25.2%
Eliminations (& (15.9) (20.9) (5.2
$ 16517 $ 1,304.¢ $ 346.¢ 26.6%

€)) Represents product and service revenue betweertabfgsegment:
Scientific Instruments Segment Revenu

Scientific Instruments segment revenuedased by $329.0 million, or 26.9%, to $1,554.1iomilffor the year ended December 31, 2(
compared to $1,225.1 million for the year endedddduer 31, 2010. Included in this change in revesaa increase of approximately
$74.7 million from the impact of foreign exchangeedo the weakening of the U.S. Dollar versus theoE&nd other foreign currencies and an
increase of approximately $148.5 million attribdéato our recent acquisitions. Excluding the effefcforeign exchange and the acquisitions,
revenue increased by $105.8 million, or 8.6%. Tiwedase in revenue, on an adjusted basis, iswdtitike to an increase in many of our core
technologies, particularly in X-ray and elementadlgisis, magnetic resonance, mass spectrometrynatetular spectroscopy. The mix of
products sold in the Scientific Instruments segnie2011 reflects increased demand from acaderigmment and industrial customers.

System revenue and aftermarket revenuegpascantage of total Scientific Instruments segmewtnue were as follows during the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (dollars in mg)io

2011 2010
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue Segment Revenue Revenue Segment Revenue
System revenu $ 1,238.¢ 79.1%%$ 973.C 79.£%
Aftermarket revenu 315.2 20.2% 251.¢ 20.€%
Total revenue $ 1,554.: 100.(%%$ 1,225.: 100.(%

System revenue in the Scientific Instrureesggment includes nuclear magnetic resonancamsysteagnetic resonance imaging syste
electron paramagnetic imaging systems, mass speetinp systems, gas chromatography systems, CBRMEtm systems, X-ray systems,
spark-optical emission spectroscopy systems, atéomnie microscopy systems, stylus and optical nieggosystems and molecular
spectroscopy systems. Aftermarket revenues in ¢fenfific Instruments segment include accessomgssalonsumables, training and services.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segment Reven

Energy & Supercon Technologies segmentmeeg increased by $22.9 million, or 25.3%, to $4 18illion for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $90.5 million ferythar ended December 31, 2010. Included in tlaa@in revenue is an increase of
approximately $5.0 million from the impact of fogaiexchange due to the weakening of the U.S. Dedlesus the Euro and other foreign
currencies. Excluding the effect of foreign exchengvenue increased by $17.9 million,
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or 19.8%. The increase in revenue, on an adjusies bis attributable to higher demand for low tempure superconducting wire.

System and wire revenue and aftermarketmes as a percentage of total Energy & Supercohnidagies segment revenue were as
follows during the years ended December 31, 20812840 (dollars in millions):

2011 2010
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue Segment Revenue  Revenue Segment Revenue
System and wire revent $ 105.: 92.€%$ 85.¢ 94.%%
Aftermarket revenu 8.1 7.1% 4.€ 5.1%
Total revenue $ 113.¢ 100.(%$ 90.t 100.(%

System and wire revenue in the Energy &Begn Technologies segment includes low and higipézature superconducting wire and
superconducting devices, including magnets, liaeaelerators and radio frequency cavities. Aftekmiarevenues in the Energy & Supercon

Technologies segment consist primarily of saleSfonal™: a bimetallic, non-superconducting material we &ethe power and transport
industries, and grant revenue.

Income (Loss) from Operation

The following table presents income (Idssin operations and operating margins on revenuepgrtable segment for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (dollars in millions):

2011 2010
Operating Percentage of Operating Percentage of
Income (Loss) Segment Revenue Income (Loss) Segment Revenue

Scientific Instrument $ 162.¢ 10.5% $ 160.t 13.1%
Energy & Supercon

Technologie 4.7 (3.6% (2.6) (2.99%
Corporate, eliminations anc

other (a) 3.0 (2.2

Total operating incom $ 155.¢ 9.4% $ 155.7 11.<%

(@ Represents corporate costs and eliminations nmtatkd to the reportable segme

Scientific Instruments income from operasidor the year ended December 31, 2011 was $16ili8n, resulting in an operating mar¢
of 10.5%, compared to income from operations oft3 énillion, resulting in an operating margin of. 1%, for the year ended December 31,
2010. Income from operations includes $36.8 milkar $21.9 million in the years ended DecembeRB811 and 2010, respectively, of
various charges to inventory, amortization of asifiein-related intangible assets and other chamgeduding these costs, income from
operations in Scientific Instruments segment wdwslde been $199.6 million and $182.4 million, raaglin operating margins of 12.8% and
14.9%, respectively, for the years ended Decembg2@11 and 2010, respectively. Operating margatsaehsed, despite the increase in
revenue, because of lower gross profit marginsiacigases in operating expenses.

The significant components of charges t@itory, amortization expense and other chargexitdesl above in 2011 include
$17.8 million of amortization expense, $4.6 milliohinventory provisions for the rework of certaipecialty magnets that did not meet
customer specification, $4.5 million representing tlifference between the fair value and histoidosts of inventories acquired in business
combinations and sold during the period, $4.3 oillof legal and other professional fees relatesliinternal FCPA investigation,
$4.2 million of acquisition-related costs

51




Table of Contents

and $1.3 million of restructuring costs. The sigiaiht components of charges to inventory, amoitinaéxpense and other charges in 2010
include $5.5 million of amortization expense, $Mdlion of inventory provisions for the rework oédain specialty magnets, $7.2 million
representing the difference between the fair vahgthistorical costs of inventories acquired initess combinations and $4.6 million of
acquisition-related costs.

Gross profit margin in the Scientific Ingtients segment for the year ended December 31,288 17.2%, compared with 48.2% for
year ended December 31, 2010. Lower gross profigimain 2011 were driven in part by $14.8 milliohamortization expense, $4.6 milli
of inventory provisions for the rework of certapesialty magnets, $4.5 million representing théedénce between the fair value and
historical costs of inventories acquired in bussnesmbinations and sold in 2011 and $0.3 milliomestructuring costs compared with
$4.0 million of amortization expense, $3.4 milliohinventory provisions for the rework of certajpesialty magnets and $7.2 million related
to difference between the fair value and historazats of inventories acquired in business comianatin 2010. Excluding these costs, gross
profit margin in the Scientific Instruments segmesats 48.7%, compared with 49.4% for the year efalsgbmber 31, 2010. Lower gross
profit margins, on an adjusted basis, for the yeated December 31, 2011 resulted primarily frormgea in product mix, particularly our ¢
chromatography and inductively coupled plasma prtsjwhich negatively impacted our gross profit gimas. The chemical analysis busin
contributed to lower gross profit margins due tghar than planned production costs which were chuseart, by costs and lost production
time associated with relocating factories from ferrarian Inc. sites to our own facilities. Changeforeign currency exchange rates,
primarily the strengthening of the Euro and Swisan€, also contributed to the decrease becausaajwity of our production facilities are
located in Europe.

In 2011, selling, general and administexpenses and research and development experitkesSaoientific Instruments segment
increased to $560.8 million, or 36.1% of segmenéneie, from $423.7 million, or 34.6% of segmentraye, for the year ended
December 31, 2010. This increase is a functiomafimental investments in sales and marketingiietvand research and development
activities that we believe will generate futuregtl, as well as increases in operating expensaterkto recently completed acquisitions.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates, priyniéueé strengthening of the Euro and Swiss Fralso, eontributed to the increase because
the majority of our employees are located in Europe

Energy & Supercon Technologies segmentflass operations for the year ended December 311 2@as $4.1 million, resulting in an
operating margin of (3.6)%, compared to a loss fograrations of $2.6 million, resulting in an op@rgtmargin of (2.9)%, for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Income from operations for trer gnded December 31, 2011 includes $3.4 millfateterred offering costs that were
written off in the third quarter of 2011 becausain€ertainty in the timing of a future public offey of BEST capital stock. Excluding the
deferred offering costs, the loss from operationthe Energy & Supercon Technologies segment wioaned been $0.7 million, or an
operating margin of (0.6)% for the year ended Ddmem31, 2011. The improvement in operating marginan adjusted basis, is primarily
result of the higher revenue described above agitehigross profit margins offset, in part, by higbperating expenses. The increase in
operating expenses is a function of incrementadstments in research and development activitiesaltidg and marketing activities that we
believe will generate future growth.
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the YiededDecember 31, 2009
Consolidated Results

The following table presents our resultstfe years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (glallanillions, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009

Product revenu $ 1,145 $ 985.
Service revenu 151.1 122.¢
Other revenu 8.4 6.8

Total revenue 1,304.¢ 1,114
Cost of product revent 621.5 526.:
Cost of service revent 79.4 70.7

Total cost of revenu 700.¢ 597.(

Gross profit 604.( 517.t
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 301.] 254.(
Research and developmt 141.¢ 126.4
Other charges, ni 5.8 0.4

Total operating expens 448.: 380.¢

Operating incom: 155.7 136.%
Interest and other income (expense), (5.6) (7.€)
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling @gtin consolidated

subsidiaries 150.1 129.1
Income tax provisiol 53.2 48.1
Consolidated net incorr 96.¢ 81.C
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrollingeest in consolidate

subsidiaries 1.4 (0.2
Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat $ 95.4 $ 81.2
Net income per common share attributabl

Bruker Corporation shareholde

Basic $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5C

Diluted $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4¢
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic 164. 163.t

Diluted 165.7 164.¢

Revenue

Our revenue increased by $190.4 million1 Br1%, to $1,304.9 million for the year ended Deloer 31, 2010, compared to
$1,114.5 million for the year ended December 3D92ncluded in this change in revenue is a redaatif approximately $18.1 million from
the impact of foreign exchange due to the stremtigeof the U.S. Dollar versus the Euro and otleeeifyn currencies and an increase of
approximately $67.1 million attributable to acqtigis. Excluding the effect of foreign
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exchange and acquisitions, revenue increased hy.4Hillion, or 12.7%. The increase in revenueanradjusted basis, is attributable to both
the Scientific Instruments segment, which incredse#115.3 million, or 10.8%, and the Energy & Supa Technologies segment, which
increased by $28.8 million, or 48.2%. Revenue eSientific Instruments segment reflects an irsgaa sales of all our core technologies,
particularly in magnetic resonance, X-ray and nsp&strometry. Revenue in the Energy & Supercon fil@olgies segment increased due to
higher demand for low temperature superconductiimg. w

The mix of products sold in the Scientlfistruments segment during 2010 reflects incredsetind from academic, government and
industrial customers. We attribute the increasgaies of magnetic resonance and mass spectrometiygis and spending by academic and
government customers to our new product introduast&nd to stimulus packages implemented by govertsd various countries, including
the U.S., Germany, Japan and China. The improveineatenues from our industrial customers reflect®conomic improvement in these
end markets. In general, the spending patternsioindustrial customers were negatively impactedhgyglobal recession through the first
half of 2009. In the second half of 2009, as thabgl economy improved, we began to see indicatoregrovement in the industrial markets
we serve and experienced an increase in demandduoiindustrial customers in 2010.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of product and service revenudtferyear ended December 31, 2010, was $700.Dmillesulting in a gross profit margin of
46.3%, compared to cost of product and servicemav®f $597.0 million, resulting in a gross praofiargin of 46.4%, for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase in cost of revenpemarily a function of the higher revenues déxsd above. Our cost of revenue in 2
includes charges of $7.2 million representing tifieince between the fair value and historicatsea$ inventories acquired with the nano
surfaces and chemical analysis businesses andriich of inventory reserves related to certairalty magnets that did not meet custc
specifications. There were no similar charges inomst of revenue for 2009. Higher gross profit gias, on an adjusted basis, resulted from
changes in product mix, specifically an increaseeirenues from high-end instrumentation, includiegv products designed to carry higher
gross margins than our previous generations ofymtsgdand the weakening of the Euro, which favgrabacts our gross profit margins
because a majority of our production is perfornteBurope. The increase in revenue also allowed better utilize our production facilities
and leverage our fixed production costs. We aldaced production costs through various cost sawitigtives and strict cost controls in our
manufacturing facilities.

Selling, General and Administrativ

Our selling, general and administrativeenge for the year ended December 31, 2010 incréa301.1 million, or 23.1% of revenue,
from $254.0 million, or 22.8% of revenue, for theay ended December 31, 2009. The increase ingeafleneral and administrative expenses
is attributable to increases in headcount fromamguisitions of the nano surfaces and chemicalaisabusinesses and increases in head
to support planned revenue growth in our existingiftiesses. The increases in headcount were affg@rt, by changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, primarily the weakening of the Fwioch favorably impacts our selling, general addhinistrative expenses because a
majority of our selling and marketing employeeslaoated in Europe.

Research and Developme

Our research and development expense éoyaghr ended December 31, 2010 increased to $itlign, or 10.8% of revenue, from
$126.4 million, or 11.3% of revenue, for the yeaded December 31, 2009. The increase in reseadccHearelopment expenses is attributable
to increases in

54




Table of Contents

headcount from our acquisitions of the nano sugfarel chemical analysis businesses and increabeadtount and material costs to sup
new product introductions in our existing busings3de increases in research and development expamse offset, in part, by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, primarily the vesahg of the Euro, which favorably impacts our egskh and development expenses
because a majority of our research and developis@atrformed in Europe.

Other Charges, Net

Other charges, net of $5.8 million recorded010 consist of charges recorded entirely enSkientific Instruments segment. The cha
recorded in 2010 consist of $4.6 million of acqtidsi-related costs, $0.2 million of restructuring chargad a loss of $1.0 million recordec
connection with the divestiture of a business. Asitjon-related costs recorded in 2010 relate toamguisitions of the nano surfaces and
chemical analysis businesses and consist of aosisred under transition service arrangements weresh into with the sellers and transac
costs, including legal, accounting and other f&estructuring charges related primarily to sevegdancurred in connection with closing a
production facility in Herzogenrath, Germany ane lbss on the sale of investment is associatedauthinvestment in Bruker Baltic, Ltd., a
manufacturing site located in Riga, Latvia that wagaged in the production of certain componergs us our X-ray product lines. The
restructuring charges and loss on investment wengried as part of a broader corporate strateggdfcing costs and consolidating critical
production know-how in certain key production sites

Other charges, net of $0.4 million recorded009 consist of $0.2 million of charges recardethe Scientific Instruments segment and
$0.2 million of charges recorded in the Energy &&uweon Technologies segment. The charge recordid@ iScientific Instruments segment
consists entirely of restructuring charges andeslto additional amounts recorded in connectidgh @irestructuring program that began in
the fourth quarter of 2008, under which approxirya3® employees located in the Netherlands left@benpany. The charges recorded in the
Energy & Supercon Technologies segment consisO& fiillion of transaction costs incurred in cortiet with the acquisition of the
research instruments business from Varian Medigsie®ns, Inc. and $0.7 million of impairment chargssociated with fixed assets used in
the production of certain superconducting wire @ffén part, by a bargain purchase gain of $1.8anifrecorded in connection with the
acquisition of the research instruments business.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), N

Interest and other income (expense), nehguhe year ended December 31, 2010 was $(5l6pmicompared to $(7.6) million for the
year ended December 31, 20

During the year ended December 31, 20E0nthjor components within interest and other incéexpense), net, consisted of net inte
expense of $4.7 million and realized and unreallasdes on foreign currency transactions of $1/8ami During the year ended
December 31, 2009, the major components withimésteand other income (expense), net, consistadtdhterest expense of $6.5 million
and realized and unrealized losses on foreign sayreransactions of $1.9 million.

The decrease in interest expense is aitmof lower average outstanding debt balanceautitrout 2010. Losses on foreign currency
exchange rates were primarily a function of changexchange rates between the Euro and the Swasg lagainst the U.S. Dollar.

Provision for Income Taxe:

The income tax provision for the year enBedember 31, 2010 was $53.3 million compared tmeome tax provision of $48.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2009, represeetfagtive tax rates of 35.5% and 37.3%, respegtiv@lr tax rate may change over time
the amount and mix of income and taxes outsid&tise changes. In addition to the amount and mix@dme and taxes
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outside the United States, our income tax provisi@mbe impacted by discrete items of a non-reoyimature.

Discrete items of this nature resultedax éxpense of $2.8 million and $4.3 million for fears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The amounts recorded in 2010 retataltlitional amounts accrued in connection withodmg tax audits in Germany and
Switzerland. Discrete amounts recorded in 2009edlto cash that we repatriated from certain faréigations into the U.S. in order to
reduce our outstanding debt, as well as certaierdthnsactions that were taxable in the U.S.

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Noncontrolling terests

Net income (loss) attributable to noncollitig interests for the year ended December 3102084s $1.4 million compared to
$(0.2) million for the year ended December 31, 200% net income (loss) attributable to nonconitiglinterests represents the minority
shareholders' proportionate share of the net inddwmss) recorded by our majority-owned indirectsdtaries.

Net Income Attributable to Bruker Corporatio

Our net income for the year ended DecerBibeP010 was $95.4 million, or $0.58 per dilutedreh compared to net income of
$81.2 million, or $0.49 per diluted share, for 2009

Segment Result
Revenue

The following table presents revenue, cleangevenue and revenue growth by reportable segfoethe years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 (dollars in millions):

Dollar Percentage
2010 2009 Change Change
Scientific Instrument $ 1,225 $ 1,062.° $ 162.¢ 15.2%
Energy & Supercon Technologi 90.t 59.¢ 30.7 51.2%
Eliminations (a (20.7) (8.0 2.7)
$ 1,304.¢ $ 1,114 $ 190. 17.1%

€)) Represents product and service revenue betweertabfgsegment:
Scientific Instruments Segment Revenu

Scientific Instruments segment revenuedased by $162.4 million, or 15.3%, to $1,225.1iomilffor the year ended December 31, 2(
compared to $1,062.7 million for the year endedddgzer 31, 2009. Included in this change in revesaereduction of approximately
$13.2 million from the impact of foreign exchangeedo the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar vertiesBuro and other foreign currencies and
an increase of approximately $60.3 million attrdhle the acquisitions of the nano surfaces and iat@nalysis businesses. Excluding the
effect of foreign exchange and the acquisitiongenee increased by $115.3 million, or 10.8%. Theedaase in revenue, on an adjusted basis,
is attributable to an increase in sales of allaare technologies, particularly in magnetic res@eaiX-ray and mass spectrometry. The mix of
products sold in the Scientific Instruments segnie2010 reflects increased demand from acaderigmment and industrial customers.
We attribute the increase in sales of magnetic@soe and mass spectrometry products and spenglimcpldemic and government custon
to our new product introductions and to stimuluskaa@es implemented by governments of various castincluding the U.S., Germany,
Japan and China. Demand from our industrial custsmso increased as economic conditions improved.
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System revenue and aftermarket revenuegpascantage of total Scientific Instruments segmewtnue were as follows during the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (dollars in mg)io

2010 2009
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue Segment Revenue Revenue Segment Revenue
System revenu $ 973. 79.4%% 849.C 79.%
Aftermarket revenu 251.¢ 20.€% 213k 20.1%
Total revenue $ 1,225.: 100.(%$ 1,062.: 100.(%

System revenue in the Scientific Instrureesggment includes nuclear magnetic resonancamsysteagnetic resonance imaging syste
electron paramagnetic imaging systems, mass speetinp systems, gas chromatography systems, CBRMEtm systems, X-ray systems,
spark-optical emission spectroscopy systems, atéomie microscopy systems, stylus and optical niegsosystems and molecular
spectroscopy systems. Aftermarket revenues in ¢ienfic Instruments segment include accessoryssalonsumables, training and services.

Energy & Supercon Technologies Segment Reven

Energy & Supercon Technologies segmentmes® increased by $30.7 million, or 51.3%, to $90ilfon for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $59.8 million ferythar ended December 31, 2009. Included in tlaagh in revenue is a reduction of
approximately $4.9 million from the impact of fageiexchange due to the strengthening of the U.8aDeersus the Euro and other foreign
currencies and an increase of approximately $6l8mattributable to the acquisition of the resgainstruments business. Excluding the
effect of foreign exchange and acquisition, revenaeeased by $28.8 million, or 48.2%. The increéasevenue, on an adjusted basis, is
attributable to higher demand for low temperatuigesconducting wire.

System and wire revenue and aftermarketma® as a percentage of total Energy & Supercohnbdogies segment revenue were as
follows during the years ended December 31, 20802809 (dollars in millions):

2010 2009
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue Segment Revenue  Revenue Segment Revenue
System and wire revent $ 85.¢ 94.¢%$ 57.€ 96.2%
Aftermarket revenu 4.6 5.1% 2.2 3.7%
Total revenue $ 90t 100.(%$ 59.t 100.(%

System and wire revenue in the Energy &Begn Technologies segment includes low and higipézature superconducting wire and
superconducting devices, including magnets, liaeaelerators and radio frequency cavities. Aftekaarevenues in the Energy & Supercon
Technologies segment consist primarily of saleSufonal™: a bimetallic, non-superconducting material we &ethe power and transport
industries, and grant revenue.
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Income (Loss) from Operation

The following table presents income (Idssin operations and operating margins on revenuepgrtable segment for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 (dollars in millions):

2010 2009
Operating Percentage of Operating Percentage of
Income (Loss) Segment Revenue Income (Loss) Segment Revenue

Scientific Instrument $ 160.£ 13.1% $ 141.5 13.2%
Energy & Supercon

Technologie (2.6) (2.9% (6.3 (10.5%
Corporate, eliminations anc

other (a) (2.2 1.3

Total operating incom $ 155.7 11.% $ 136.7 12.2%

(@) Represents corporate costs and eliminations ratag#d to the reportable segments.

Scientific Instruments segment income figuerations for the year ended December 31, 2013#68.5 million, resulting in an
operating margin of 13.1%, compared to income fogarations of $141.7 million, resulting in an oggrgmargin of 13.3%, for the year
ended December 31, 2009. Income from operatio@910 includes $21.9 million of charges related jarity to the acquisition of the nano
surfaces and chemical analysis businesses. Thasgeshinclude $7.2 million recorded in cost of rewethat represents the difference
between the fair value and historical costs of im@ges acquired in the acquisitions and sold du#10 and $4.6 million of acquisition-
related costs. The remaining charge relates to®8li®dn recorded in amortization of acquisitiorlated intangibles and $3.4 million of
inventory provisions for the rework of certain sigpdty magnets that did not meet customer specificat Excluding these costs, income from
operations in Scientific Instruments segment wdiade been $182.4 million, or an operating margit4b®%. Income from operations, on an
adjusted basis, improved as a result of the higharnues described above and an improvement is grogit margins.

In the year ended December 31, 2010, gra¥fg margin as a percentage of revenue in therfific Instruments segment increased to
48.2% from 47.8% for the year ended December 309 28igher gross profit margins resulted primafitym changes in product mix,
specifically an increase in revenues from high-@strumentation, including new products which wedesigned to carry higher gross margins
than our previous generations of products, anavitekening of the Euro, which favorably impacts gross profit margins as a majority of
our production is performed in Europe. The incraagevenue also allowed us to better utilize ouadpiction facilities and leverage our fixed
production costs. We also reduced production dbstgigh various cost saving initiatives.

In the year ended December 31, 2010, seltieneral and administrative expenses and resaarttdevelopment expenses in the
Scientific Instruments segment increased to $428llion, or 34.6% of segment revenue, from $366ibion, or 34.5% of segment revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2009. This incrisasd€unction of incremental investments in saled marketing activities and research
development activities, as well as increases imaifpgy expenses related to acquisitions completa@i0. Changes in foreign currency
exchange rates partially offset the increase inaipg expenses.

Energy & Supercon Technologies segmentflass operations for the year ended December 310 2fas $2.6 million, resulting in an
operating margin of (2.9)%, compared to a loss fograrations of $6.3 million, resulting in an opergtmargin of (10.5)%, for the year enc
December 31, 2009. The increase in operating masginmarily the result of the higher revenue disse above and the corresponding
improvements in our gross margin.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We currently anticipate that our existirggle and cash equivalents and credit facilities glbufficient to support our operating and
investing needs for at least the next twelve martths future cash requirements will also be affeédig acquisitions that we may make in the
future. Historically, we have financed our growtindugh cash flow generation and a combination bt éieancings and issuances of comn
stock. In the future, there are no assurancesatiditional financing alternatives will be availalddeus, if required, or if available, will be
obtained on terms favorable to us.

During the year ended December 31, 201icash provided by operating activities was $87illian, resulting primarily from
$189.7 million of consolidated net income adjudtmchon-cash items offset, in part, by $102.0 roilliof increases in working capital. During
the year ended December 31, 2010, net cash probigdegerating activities was $156.1 million, regwgtprimarily from $162.5 million of
consolidated net income offset, in part, by $6.4iom of increases in working capital. The increasevorking capital for the year ended
December 31, 2011 is primarily a function of highegeivable and inventory levels offset, in paytaln increase in customer deposits. These
changes in working capital are attributable toghmwth of our business.

During the year ended December 31, 201ticash used by investing activities was $68.7 anillicompared to net cash used by inve:
activities of $299.0 million during the year end@ecember 31, 2010. Cash used by investing actwvitiging the year ended December 31,
2011 was attributable primarily to $54.4 millionapital expenditures and $14.3 million used faquasitions. Cash used by investing
activities during the year ended December 31, 2049 attributable primarily to $269.8 million usedt cquisitions and $29.2 million of net
capital expenditures. We currently anticipate thatcapital spending will be approximately $50.0liom in 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 201tlcash provided by financing activities was $3.8ion, compared to net cash provided by
financing activities of $168.3 million during thear ended December 31, 2010. Cash provided bydingmactivities during the year ended
December 31, 2011 was attributable to $3.3 milbbnet proceeds from the issuance of common stakh provided by financing activities
during the year ended December 31, 2010 were pifingafunction of $185.0 million borrowed under ttevolving loan component of the
credit agreement that we used to fund our acqoiisitf the nano surfaces business. The cash probigledhounts borrowed under the
revolving loan component of the credit agreemenevedfset, in part, by $21.6 million of debt repagmis.

At December 31, 2011, we had outstandirg ttgaling $303.1 million consisting of $82.5 riah outstanding under the term loan
component of our credit facilities, $216.5 milliootstanding under the revolving loan componentusfasedit facilities, and $4.1 million
under capital lease obligations. At December 3102We had outstanding debt totaling $301.0 miltonsisting of $110.6 million
outstanding under the term loan component of ceditfacilities, $185.5 million outstanding undbetrevolving loan component of our cre
facilities, and $4.9 million under capital leasdigdtions.

On February 26, 2008, we entered into ditegreement, which we refer to as the Credit &grent, with a syndicate of lenders, which
provided for a revolving credit line with a maximwoammitment of $230.0 million and a term loan fagibf $150.0 million. The outstanding
principal under the term loan was payable in quigriastallments through December 2012. Borrowingsder the Credit Agreement accrued
interest, at our option, at either (i) the hightthe prime rate or the federal funds rate plu®@5or (ii) adjusted LIBOR, plus margins
ranging from 0.40% to 1.25% and a facility fee riaggrom 0.10% to 0.20%.

In May 2011, we entered into an amendmedtrastatement of the Credit Agreement, or the AdedrCredit Agreement. The Amended
Credit Agreement increases the maximum commitmerdw revolving credit line to $250.0 million angtends the maturity date to May
2016. Borrowings
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under the revolving credit line of the Amended Qrégreement accrue interest, at our option, dtezi(i) the higher of the prime rate, (ii) the
federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (iii) adjusted LIB@IRs 1.00% or (iv) LIBOR, plus margins rangingrfr@®.80% to 1.65% and a facility fee
ranging from 0.20% to 0.35%. The Amended Credite®gnent had no impact on the maturity or pricinguwfexisting term loan. As of
December 31, 2011, the weighted average intergsbfdorrowings under the term facility of the Amded Credit Agreement was
approximately 2.8%.

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreetage secured by guarantees from certain mataradidiaries, as defined in the
Amended Credit Agreement, and Bruker Energy & ScpeiTechnologies, Inc. The Amended Credit Agreeratst requires that we
maintain certain financial ratios related to maximieverage and minimum interest coverage, as difimthe Amended Credit Agreement.
Specifically, our leverage ratio cannot exceeda®@ our interest coverage ratio cannot be less3tarin addition to the financial ratios, the
Amended Credit Agreement restricts, among othegthiour ability to do the following: make certai@yments; incur additional debt; incur
certain liens; make certain investments, includiegvative agreements; merge, consolidate, sdtbosfer all or substantially all of our
assets; and enter into certain transactions wiiliaséds. Our failure to comply with any of thessstrictions or covenants may result in an e
of default under the applicable debt instrumenticlvltould permit acceleration of the debt undet thstrument and require us to prepay that
debt before its scheduled due date. As of Dece®ihe2011, the latest measurement date, we werenipliance with the covenants of the
Amended Credit Agreement as our leverage ratiow2sind our interest coverage ratio was 22.4.

Other revolving loans are with various fioal institutions located primarily in Germany, i&erland and France. The following is a
summary of the maximum commitments and net amaav##able to the Company under revolving loansfd3exember 31, 2011 (dollars in
millions):

Weighted Total Amount Outstanding
Average Committed by Outstanding Letters of Total Amount
Interest Rate Lenders Borrowings Credit Available
Amended Credit
Agreemen 1.4%$% 250.C $ 2165 % 02 $ 33.c
Other revolving loan — 178.% — 115.2 63.5
Total revolving loan: 1.4%$% 428.71 $ 2165 % 1152 $ 96.¢

During 2011 we considered various long-téimancing alternatives to replace our outstandiagowings under the revolving loan
component of the Amended Credit Agreement andaimudry 2012, we entered into a note purchase agregemith a group of accredited
institutional investors. Under the note purchaseagent we issued and sold $240.0 million of semites that consist of the following:

. $20.0 million 3.16% Series 2012A senior notes caraudry 18, 2017;

$15.0 million 3.74% Series 2012A senior notes careudry 18, 2019;

. $105.0 million 4.31% Series 2012A senior notes dariary 18, 2022; and

$100.0 million 4.46% Series 2012A senior notes darmuary 18, 2024.

We used a portion of the net proceeds@ttmior notes to reduce outstanding indebtedmates wur revolving credit facilities and
intend to use the remainder for general corporatpgses. We currently expect to incur approxima$dl$.5 million of interest expense in
2012.

As of December 31, 2011, we have approxega0.2 million of U.S. net operating loss carmyfards available to reduce future taxable
income which expire at various times through 2024 approximately $44.3 million of German Trade T operating losses that are carried
forward indefinitely. We also have U.S. tax credifsipproximately $14.1 million available to offdature tax

60




Table of Contents

liabilities that expire at various dates. Thesalitseinclude research and development tax crefli#®® million expiring at various times
through 2031 and foreign tax credits of $4.5 millexpiring at various times throughout 2021. THds®. operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards may be subject to limitations undevjsions of the Internal Revenue Code.

The following table summarizes maturities dur significant financial obligations as of Detger 31, 2011 (dollars in millions):

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Revolving lines of credi $ 2165 $ 21658 $ — $ — ¢ —
Long-term debt, including current portic 86.¢ 83.7 1.8 11 —
Interest payable on lo-term debt 1.7 1.7 — — —
Derivative liabilities, ne 5.1 5.1 — — —
Operating lease obligatiol 74.5 18.4 24.¢ 15.C 16.2
Pension liabilities 48.4 2.€ 6.€ 9.C 29.¢
Uncertain tax contingencic 34.¢ — 34.¢ — —

Uncertain tax contingencies are positi@h®h or expected to be taken on an income taxrétat may result in additional payments to
tax authorities. The total amount of uncertaindartingencies is included in the "1-3 Years" coluasrwe are not able to reasonably estimate
the timing of potential future payments. If a tateority agrees with the tax position taken or eted to be taken or the applicable statute of
limitations expires, then additional payments wik be necessary.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

We lease certain office space from centdiour principal shareholders, certain of which also members of our Board of Directors.
During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012@08, these shareholders were paid approximatefyfiftlion, $2.4 million and
$2.1 million, respectively, which was estimated&oequal to the fair market value of the rentals.

During the years ended December 31, 20010 2nd 2009, we incurred expenses of $3.2 milB&m09 million and $1.1 million,
respectively, to a law firm in which one of the ntmrs of our Board of Directors is a partner.

During the years ended December 31, 20010 2nd 2009, we incurred expenses of $0.5 milBon3 million and $0.6 million,
respectively, to a financial services firm in whimhe of the members of our Board of Directors [imener.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011, the Financial Accoun8tendards Board, or FASB, amended Accounting @ralsdCodification, or ASC, 350,
Intangible—Goodwill and Other This amendment is intended to reduce the costamgplexity of the annual goodwill impairment tbgt
providing entities an option to perform a qualitatassessment to determine whether further impairtesting is necessary. The amended
provisions are effective for reporting periods lmmgig on or after December 15, 2011. However, eadlyption is permitted if an entity's
financial statements for the most recent annuaiterim period have not yet been issued. We adadpkegrovisions of this amendment for
annual test of impairment as of December 31, 2B@Wvever, this amendment impacts testing stepsamdy therefore, adoption did not have
an impact on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB amended ASC Z2imprehensive Incomé& his amendment was issued to enhance compayaimiitveen
entities that report under GAAP and InternatioriabRcial Reporting Standards, or IFRS, and to gl®a more consistent method of
presenting non-owner transactions
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that affect an entity's equity. The amendment mregutompanies to present the components of nani@@md other comprehensive income
either as one continuous statement or as two segamconsecutive statements. It eliminates thi®opo report other comprehensive inca
and its components as part of the statement ofgdsaim shareholders' equity. The amended provisiomeffective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning alecember 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted, fafi retrospective application is
required. This amendment impacts presentation awtbdure only, and therefore adoption will not &@an impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accountingn8itzds Update, or ASU, No. 2011-G4ir Value Measurement (Topic 820) Amendments
to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and DésceoRequirements in U.S. GAAP and IKRSU No. 2011-04). The amendments in
this update apply to all reporting entities that sequired or permitted to measure or discloséainealue of an asset, a liability, or an
instrument classified in a reporting entity's shatders' equity in the financial statements. ASU R@11-04 does not extend the use of fair
value accounting, but provides guidance on howdutd be applied where its use is already requirguermitted by other standards within
U.S. GAAP or IFRS. ASU No. 2011-04 changes the wagrdised to describe many requirements in U.S. GAgkPneasuring fair value and
for disclosing information about fair value measuoeats. Additionally, ASU No. 2011-04 clarifies tRASB's intent about the application of
existing fair value measurements. The amendmeritssrupdate are to be applied prospectively. Fdalip entities, the amendments are
effective during interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15, 2011. Early application bgligientities is not permitted. We do 1
expect the provisions of ASU No. 2011-04 to hawveagerial effect on our financial position, resufsoperations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the Emerging Issues Faste, or EITF, reached consensus on the FinaAc@unting Standards Board, or FAS
Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, 20099dftware (Topic 985)—Certain Revenue Arrangememis [ficlude Software Elements
FASB ASU 200914 changes the accounting model for revenue arraeges that include both tangible products and softvelements. Und
this guidance, tangible products containing sofea@mponents and non-software components thatifuricigether to deliver the tangible
product's essential functionality are excluded ftbmsoftware revenue guidance in Subtopic No. 885-Software-Revenue Recognitioim
addition, hardware components of a tangible prodantaining software components are always excldiaed the software revenue
guidance. The adoption of this update in the fjtsdrter of 2011 did not have a material impact @nresults of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

In September 2009, the EITF reached consemis FASB ASU 2009-1Revenue Recognition (Topic 605)—Multiple-Delivegabl
Revenue Arrangemer. FASB ASU 2009-13 addresses the accounting fotipteHdeliverable arrangements to enable vendoestount for
products or services separately rather than asndioced unit. Specifically, this guidance amendsdtiteria in Subtopic No. 605-2Revenue
Recognitio-Multiple-Element Arrangementdor separating consideration in multiple-delidi@eaarrangements. This guidance establishes a
selling price hierarchy for determining the sellirice of a deliverable, which is based on: (a)darspecific objective evidence; (b) third-
party evidence; or (c) estimates. This guidance @lisninates the residual method of allocation seglires that arrangement consideration be
allocated at the inception of the arrangementltdediverables using the relative selling price hoet. In addition, this guidance significantly
expands required disclosures related to a venaaisple-deliverable revenue arrangements. The tolojpf this update in the first quarter of
2011 did not have a material impact on our resfltsperations, cash flows or financial position.

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are potentially exposed to market resksociated with changes in foreign exchange rateesest rates and commodity prices. We
selectively use financial instruments to reduce¢hesks. All
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transactions related to risk management technigreeauthorized and executed pursuant to our pslane procedures. Analytical techniques
used to manage and monitor foreign exchange aatksgttrate risk include market valuations and seitgianalysis.

Impact of Foreign Currencies

We generate a substantial portion of ouemeles in international markets, principally Gergnand other countries in the European
Union, Switzerland and Japan, which exposes ouratipas to the risk of exchange rate fluctuatidrtee impact of currency exchange rate
movement can be positive or negative in any peKig. costs related to sales in foreign currendiedaagely denominated in the same
respective currencies, limiting our transactiok Bgposure. However, for sales not denominated. 8 Dollars, if there is an increase in the
rate at which a foreign currency is exchanged f@. Dollars, it will require more of the foreignreency to equal a specified amount of U.S.
Dollars than before the rate increase. In suchsgéfsee price our products in the foreign curreneg will receive less in U.S. Dollars than
we did before the rate increase went into effdéatie price our products in U.S. Dollars and comtpesi price their products in local currency,
an increase in the relative strength of the U.SlaDoould result in our prices not being compeétin a market where business is transact
the local currency. In the years ended Decembe2@®1l1 and 2010 our revenue by geography was asv®l{dollars in millions):

2011 2010
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
United State: $ 309. 18.7%% 264.( 20.2%
Europe 678.t 41.1% 565.7 43.4%
Asia Pacific 500.7 30.5% 3427 26.5%
Rest of world 163.% 9.¢% 132.5 10.1%
Total revenue $ 1,651.° 100.(%$ 1,304.¢ 100.(%

Changes in foreign currency exchange liat¥sased our revenue by approximately 6% in tlee gaded December 31, 2011 and
decreased revenue by 1% in the year ended Dec&hp2010.

Assets and liabilities of our foreign swuliaries, where the functional currency is the lazatency, are translated into U.S. dollars using
yea-end exchange rates, or historical rates, as agptepRevenues and expenses of foreign subsigiaretranslated at the average
exchange rates in effect during the year. Adjustmessulting from financial statement translatians included as a separate component of
shareholders' equity. In the years ended Decenthe&(1 and 2010, we recorded net gains (losses) durrency translation adjustments of
$(14.7) million and $8.1 million, respectively. @aiand losses resulting from foreign currency tatisns are reported in interest and other
income (expense), net in the consolidated statesydnhcome. Our foreign exchange losses, net &éré million and $1.5 million for years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

From time to time, we have entered int@iigm currency contracts in order to minimize théatitity that fluctuations in exchange rates
have on our cash flows related to purchases ard dahominated in foreign currencies. Under thesmgements, we agree to purchase a
fixed amount of a foreign currency in exchangeddixed amount of U.S. Dollars or other curren@asspecified dates, typically with
maturities of less than twelve months. These tr@imas do not qualify for hedge accounting andpadingly, the instrument is recorded at
fair value with the corresponding gains and lossesrded in interest and other income (expenseé)jnribe consolidated statements of
income.
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At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had dareurrency contracts with notional amounts aggrega80.2 million and $82.2 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2011, the Companythadollowing notional amounts outstanding undeefgn currency contracts (in
millions):

Notional Notional
Amount in Buy Amountin U.S. Fair Value of Fair Value of
Buy Currency Sell Maturity Dollars Assets Liabilities
December 3:
2011:
Euro 1.5 Australian Dollars January $ 21 % — 3 0.1
2012
Euro 35.C U.S. Dollars January 48.2 — 2.8
2012 to
October
2012
Swiss 245 U.S. Dollars January 27.4 — 1.2
Francs 2012
uU.S. 2.5 Mexican Pesos January 2.t — —
Dollars 2012 to
Novembe
2012
$ 80.z $ — $ 4.2

Based on the contractual maturities ofeéh@mtracts and exchange rates as of Decembe®31, e anticipate that these contracts will
result in net cash flows of $(4.2) million in 2014 December 31, 2011, assuming all other variaatesconstant, if the U.S. Dollar weakel
by 10%, the market value of our foreign currencytcacts would increase by approximately $6.8 millamd if the U.S. Dollar strengthened
by 10%, the market value of our foreign currencytcacts would decrease by approximately $6.8 nnillio

We will continue to evaluate our currenisks and in the future may utilize foreign curremontracts more frequently as part of a
transactional hedging program.

Impact of Interest Rates

We regularly invest excess cash in shomi@vestments that are subject to changes indateates. We believe that the market risk
arising from holding these financial instrumentsigimal because of our policy of investing in ghierm financial instruments issued by
highly rated financial institutions.

Our exposure related to adverse movemarntgerest rates is derived primarily from outstagdioating rate debt instruments that are
indexed to short-term market rates. Our objectivenanaging our exposure to interest rates is toedse the volatility that changes in interest
rates might have on our earnings and cash flowschieve this objective we have entered into agré@st rate swap. A 10% increase or
decrease in the average cost of our variable ediewdould not result in a material change in irdeexpense because we have determined tha
the interest rate swap is an effective hedge o¥énmbility of cash flows of the interest paymenisider our interest rate swap arrangement,
we pay a fixed interest rate of approximately 388d receive a variable interest rate based on thoegh LIBOR through December 31,
2012. The initial notional amount of this interestap was $90.0 million and amortizes in proportmthe term debt component of our
Amended Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2011241d, the outstanding notional amount of this swap $49.5 million and
$66.4 million, respectively. Based on interestsate of December 31, 2011, the fair value of thepswas $(1.1) million. Assuming all
variables are constant and because the swap wilirmman December 31, 2012 the interest rate swhpesult in a cash outflow of
$1.1 million in 2012.

Impact of Commodity Prices

We are exposed to certain commodity risisoaiated with prices for various raw materialse prices of copper and certain other raw
materials, particularly niobium, used to manufaetsuperconductors have increased significantly thestast decade. Copper and niobiurr
are the main
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components of low temperature superconductors antintied commodity price increases for copper dalinm, as well as other raw
materials, may negatively affect our profitabiliBeriodically, we enter into commodity forward pugise contracts to minimize the volatility
that fluctuations in the price of copper have ongales of these products. At December 31, 201 1Dsnémber 31, 2010, we had fixed price
commodity contracts with notional amounts aggremp#i3.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively. Wil continue to evaluate our
commodity risks and may utilize commodity forwamarghase contracts more frequently in the future.

Inflation
We do not believe inflation had a mateingbact on our business or operating results duaimgof the periods presented.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Bruker Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselidbilance sheets of Bruker Corporation as of Dbee®il, 2011 and 2010, and the relz
consolidated statements of income, shareholdengtyeand comprehensive income, and cash flowsdchef the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2011. These financial stateraeathe responsibility of the Company's managen@umt responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Bruker Corporation at December 31, 2011 and 20d0 tlae consolidated results of its operations #ndash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2011, in confgrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting prindple

We also have audited, in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Bruker
Corporation's internal control over financial refroy as of December 31, 2011, based on criteribéished in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@mations of the Treadway Commission and our tegetied February 29, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012
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BRUKER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2011 2010
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 246.C $ 230.
Restricted cas 2.2 2.6
Accounts receivable, n 282.¢ 232.¢
Inventories 576.2 511.(
Deferred tax asse 11.F 8.€
Other current asse 75.4 65.2
Total current asse 1,194.. 1,051.
Property, plant and equipment, | 249.( 233.7
Goodwill 100.z 98.c
Intangible assets, n 136.4 136.1
Long-term deferred tax asse 17.2 12.t
Other lon¢-term asset 13.€ 18.1
Total asset $1,710.! $1,549.¢
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term borrowings $ — $ 185¢
Current portion of lon-term deb 83.7 28.¢
Accounts payabl 72.5 64.C
Customer advance 268.¢ 242.%
Deferred tax liabilities 11.2 9.2
Other current liabilitie: 320.( 301.%
Total current liabilities 755.¢ 831.t
Long-term debt 219. 86.¢€
Long-term deferred revent 32.7 29.2
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie 23.¢ 18.¢
Accrued pensiol 39.2 39.4
Other lon¢-term liabilities 14.7 16.¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value 5,000,000 shatd®@zed, none issuec
or outstanding at December 31, 2011 and - — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value 260,000,000 shatés@zed,
165,892,170 and 165,246,426 shares issued and71630% and
165,229,207 outstanding at December 31, 2011 ah@d, 28spectivel 1.7 1.€
Treasury stock at cost, 20,265 and 17,219 shafeeamber 31, 2011 a
2010, respectivel (0.2 (0.2
Additional paic-in capital 36.C 21.7
Retained earning 441.k 349.2
Accumulated other comprehensive incc 142t 152.¢
Total shareholders' equity attributable to Brukergdration 621.5 524
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidia 3.4 2.7
Total shareholders' equi 624.¢ 527.
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $1,710.f $1,549.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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BRUKER CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In millions, except per share data)

Product revenu
Service revenu
Other revenu

Total revenue
Cost of product revent
Cost of service revent

Total cost of revenu
Gross profit

Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati
Research and developmt
Write-off of deferred offering cost
Other charges, ni

Total operating expens
Operating incom:
Interest and other income (expense),
Income before income taxes and noncontrol
interest in consolidated subsidiar
Income tax provisiol

Consolidated net inconr
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontroll
interest in consolidated subsidiar

Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat

Net income per common share attributabl
Bruker Corporation shareholde
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ 1445( $ 1,145: $ 9851
194.€ 151.1 122.2
11.3 8.4 6.8
1,651  1,304.¢ 1,114
792.F 621.F 526.
106.7 79.4 70.7
899. 700.¢ 597.(
752. 604.C 517.t
406.€ 301.1 254.(
177.: 1414 126.2
3.4 — —
9.7 5.8 0.4
506.C 448.: 380.¢
155.¢ 155.1 136.7
(10.7) (5.6) (7.6)
145 150.1 129.1
51. 53.2 48.1
94. 96.¢ 81.C
1.7 1.4 0.2)
92: $ 954 $ 8l
056 $ 056 $  0.5C
058 $ 058 $  0.4¢
165.2 164.. 163.F
166.¢ 165.7 164.€

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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BRUKER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions, except per share data)

Total
Shareholders

Accumulated Equity Noncontrolling
Common Treasury Additional Other Attributable Total
Treasury Retained Comprehensive to Interests in  Shareholders
Common Stock Stock Paid-In Bruker Consolidated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Corporation  Subsidiaries Equity

Balance at
December 31
2008 164,068,25$ 1.€ 10,46‘$ (0.1)$ —$172.¢$ 137.¢$ 311.¢$ 0.6$ 312.3
Stock options
exercisec 305,95¢ — — — 1.5 — — 1.5 — 1.5
Stock based
compensatiol — — — — 6.3 — — 6.3 — 6.3
Excess tax
benefit relatec
to exercise of
stock award: — — — — 0.6 — — 0.6 — 0.€
Treasury stock
acquired (2,826 — 2,82¢ — — — — — — —
Fair value of
noncontrolling
interests in
connection
with business
combinations — — — — — — — — 1.C 1.C
Comprehensive
income:
Consolidated
net income — — — — — 81 — 81.2 (0.2 81.C
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment: — — — — — — 8.€ 8.6 — 8.€
Unrealized
losses on
interest rate
swap:
Unrealized
holding
losses
arising
during the
period — — — — — — (1.2 1.2 — (1.2
Less
reclassificat
adjustments
for
settlements
included in
the
determinatic
of net
income — — — — — — 2.5 2.5 — 2.5
Changes in
pensions,
net of tax of
$1.4 million — — — — — — 5.8 5.8 — 5.8

Net




comprehensive

income 96.¢ (0.2 96.7
Balance at

December 31

2009 164,371,38 1.€ 13,29¢ (0.]) 8.4 253.¢ 153.F 417.2 1.€ 418.¢
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BRUKER CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Balance at
December 31
2009

Stock options
exercisec

Stock based
compensatiol

Excess tax
benefit relatec
to exercise of
stock award:

Treasury stock
acquired

Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests

Comprehensive
income:
Consolidated

net income
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment:
Unrealized
losses on
interest rate
swap:
Unrealized
holding
losses
arising
during the
period
Less
reclassificat
adjustments
for
settlements
included in
the
determinatic
of net
income
Changes in
pensions,
net of tax of
$2.6 million

Net
comprehensiv
income

Balance a

(In millions, except per share data)

Total
Shareholders

Accumulated Equity Noncontrolling
Common Treasury Additional Other Attributable Total
Treasury Retained Comprehensive to Interests in  Shareholders
Common Stock Stock Paid-In Bruker Consolidated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Corporation  Subsidiaries Equity
164,371,38 1.€ 13,29¢ (0.1 8.4 253.¢ 153.t 417.2 1.€ 418.¢
861,74° — — — 6.C — — 6.C — 6.C
— — — — 6.9 — — 6.9 — 6.9
— — — — 0.3 — — 0.3 — 0.3
(3929 — 392« (01 01 — — — — —
S — S — — — (0.1) (0.1)
— — — — — 954 — 95.4 14 96.¢
- = = = - = 8.3 8.3 (0.2) 8.1
T — - - (2.2 (2.2 — (2.1)
— — — — — — 2.€ 2.6 — 2.€
= = = = ——— (9.9 (9.9 = (9.9
94.: 1.2 95.t




December 31,
2010 165,229,20 1€ 17,21¢ (0.2) 21.7 349. 152.2 524.7 2.7 527.¢
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BRUKER CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
(In millions, except per share data)

Total
Shareholders

Accumulated Equity Noncontrolling
Common Treasury Additional Other Attributable Total
Treasury Retainec Comprehensive to Interests in  Shareholders
Common Stock Stock Paid-In Bruker Consolidated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Corporation  Subsidiaries Equity

Balance at
December 31,
2010 165,229,20 1.€ 17,21¢ (0.9 21.7 349.C 152.¢ 524.7 2.7 527 .
Shares issued in
connection witl
acquisitions 134,36. — — — 2.¢ — — 2.C — 2.8
Restricted share:
issued in
connection witl
acquisitions 156,82: — — — — — — — — —
Stock options
exercisec 354,55¢ 0.1 — — 3.
Stock based
compensatiol — — — — 7.6 — — 7.6 — 7.8
Excess tax bene
related to
exercise of
stock award: — — — — 0.2 — — 0.2 — 0.2
Treasury stock
acquired (3,04¢) — 3,04¢ — — — — — — —
Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests — — — — — — — — (2.0 (1.0
Comprehensive
income:
Consolidated
net income — — — — —  92.: — 92.c 1.7 94.C
Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment: — — — — — — (24.9) (24.9) — (14.7)
Unrealized
losses on
interest rate
swap:
Unrealized
holding
losses arisin
during the
period — — — — — — (0.3 (0.3 — 0.3
Less
reclassificati
adjustments
for
settlement:
included in
the
determinat
of net
income — — — — — — 2.2 2.2 — 2.2

8]
|
|
w
N
|
w
o

Changes in
pensions, ne



of tax of

$0.6 million — — — — — — 2.6 2.6 — 2.9
Net
comprehensive
income 82.4 1.7 84.1
Balance at
December 31,
2011 165,871,90$ 1.7 20,26:$ (0.2 36.($441.t$ 142+ % 621.t$ 34% 624.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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BRUKER CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activitie
Consolidated net incorr $ 94C $ 968 $ 8i1c
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net incomesish flows from operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic 52.¢ 36.1 29.7

Amortization of deferred financing cos 0.€ 0.€ 0.7

Write down of inventories to net realizable va 38.4 244 26.1

Stock-based compensation expel 7.8 6.8 6.2

Deferred income taxe (4.8) (3.€) (2.7)

Gain on bargain purcha — — 2.3

Other nor-cash expenses, r 0.7 1.3 (0.2)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, necqtisitions

Accounts receivabl (52.¢) (27.9) (9.4)

Inventories (111.7) (68.0) (4.4)

Other asset (7.9) (11.5) 2.C

Accounts payabl 9.2 6.5 5.7

Customer deposit 31.: 27.€ 8.5

Other liabilities 29.¢ 66.C 7.2
Net cash provided by operating activit 87.7 156.1 149.¢
Cash flows from investing activitie

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqu 14.9) (269.9) (1.9

Purchases of property, plant and equipn (54.9) (31.9) (16.9)

Sales of property, plant and equipm — 2.7 —
Net cash used in investing activiti (68.7) (299.0 (18.2)
Cash flows from financing activitie

Proceeds from revolving lines of credit, | 30.7 185.( (62.9)

Proceeds from term de — — 1.€

Repayment of term de (29.9) (21.€) (23.9)

Payment of deferred financing co 1.9 — —

Proceeds from issuance of common stock &3 6.C i3

Excess tax benefit related to exercise of stockrds\ 0.2 0.2 0.€

Changes in restricted ca 0.1 1.9 (1.5)

Cash payments to noncontrolling intere (0.4) (0.7) —
Net cash provided by (used) in financing activi 8.2 168.2 (84.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadents 6.7) (2.1 (6.€)
Net change in cash and cash equival 15.€ 23.: 40.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 230.¢ 207.1 166.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $ 246.C $ 230« $ 207.1
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Cash paid for intere: $ 6.7 $ 45 $ -3

Cash paid for taxe $ 697 $ 387 $ 54z
Non-cash financing activities

Issuance of common stock in connect

with acquisition of Michrom Bioresources In $ 2¢ $ — % —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

73




Table of Contents
BRUKER CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1—Description of Business

Bruker Corporation, together with its colidated subsidiaries ("Bruker" or the "Company¥)ai designer and manufacturer of
proprietary life science and materials researckesys and associated products that address theyrapimlving needs of a diverse array of
customers in life science, pharmaceutical, biotetdgy, clinical and molecular diagnostics reseaashwell as in materials and chemical
analysis in various industries and government apptins. The Company's core technology platformklide magnetic resonance
technologies, mass spectrometry technologies, lyasnatography technologies, X-ray technologiestlkspatical emission spectroscopy,
atomic force microscopy, stylus and optical metggleechnology and infrared and Raman moleculartspsmpy technologies. The Comp.
also manufactures and distributes a broad ran§eldfanalytical systems for chemical, biologiaaldiological, nuclear and explosives
("CBRNE") detection. The Company develops and mactufes superconducting and non-superconductingriakstand devices for use in
renewable energy, energy infrastructure, healtheade'big science" research. The Company maintaajsr technical and manufacturing
centers in Europe, North America and Japan, angdlas offices located throughout the world. ThenBany's diverse customer base
includes life science, pharmaceutical, biotechnglagd molecular diagnostic research companies eatiadnstitutions, advanced materials
and semiconductor manufacturers and governmentaggen

Management reports results on the badiseofollowing two segments:

. Scientific Instruments.The operations of this segment include the desigmufacture and distribution of advanced
instrumentation and automated solutions based @met& resonance technology, mass spectrometrpodmdy, gas
chromatography technology, X-ray technology, spapkieal emission spectroscopy technology, atomiceanicroscopy
technology, stylus and optical metrology technolamyd infrared and Raman molecular spectroscofyntdogy. Typical
customers of the Scientific Instruments segmentde pharmaceutical, biotechnology and molecuilagmbstic companies;
academic institutions, medical schools and otherprofit organizations; clinical microbiology lataiories; government
departments and agencies; nanotechnology, semictmrdahemical, cement, metals and petroleum coiepaand food,
beverage and agricultural analysis companies dratd¢ories.

. Energy & Supercon Technologies he operations of this segment include the desigmufacture and marketing of
superconducting materials, primarily metallic leamtperature superconductors, for use in magnetimagse imaging, nuclear
magnetic resonance, fusion energy research andaypécations, and ceramic high temperature supehactors primarily for
fusion energy research applications. Typical custsnof the Energy & Supercon Technologies segmnmefude companies in
the medical industry, private and public researuh development laboratories in the fields of fundatal and applied sciences
and energy research, academic institutions andrgment agencies. The Energy & Supercon Technolsgigment is also
developing superconductors and superconductingletaevices for applications in power and energywall as industrial
processing industries.

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents reflect the application of certain sigmifitaccounting policies as described below
and elsewhere in these notes to the consolidataddial statements.
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Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents include the accounts of the Company andajthrity and wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and trati@ag have been eliminated.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represents theariig shareholders' proportionate share of the Gamgls majority-owned indirect subsidiaries.
The portion of net income or net loss attributabl@on-controlling interests is presented as nadnme (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in consolidated subsidiaries in the clidsi®ed statements of income, and the portion béotomprehensive income of these
subsidiaries is presented in the consolidatedrataits of shareholders' equity and comprehensiveriec

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all subsequemteand determined that there are no materiagrézed or unrecognized subsequent
events, except for those disclosed in Note 10—Debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primafilyighly liquid investments with original matues of three months or less at the date of
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents primaritjuitie cash on hand, money market funds and timesitsp Time deposits represent
amounts on deposit in banks and temporarily ingksténstruments with maturities of three monthsess at the time of purchase. Certain of
these investments represent deposits which anasunted by the FDIC or any other government age@egh equivalents are carried at cost,
which approximates market value.

Restricted Cash

Certain customers require the Company ¢eige bank guarantees on customer advances. Glgnénreds of credit satisfy this
requirement. However, to the extent the requireatgntee exceeds the available local line of crédtitCompany maintains restricted cash
balances. Restricted cash balances are classfirdracurrent unless, under the terms of the vardmueements, the funds will be released
from restrictions within one year from the balasbeet date. At December 31, 2011, the Company &ddndillion of restricted cash, of
which $3.9 million was classified as non-currentDecember 31, 2010, the Company had $6.4 milliorestricted cash, of which
$3.5 million was classified as non-current.

Derivative Financial Instruments

All derivatives, whether designated in ddiag relationship or not, are recorded on the clitiated balance sheets at fair value. The
accounting for changes in fair value of a derivaiivstrument depends on whether it has been desijaad qualifies as part of a hedging
relationship and further, on the type of hedgirgtirenship. For those derivative instruments thatdesignated and qualify as hedging
instruments, the Company must designate the hedigstgiment, based on the exposure being hedgedfaasvalue hedge, cash flow hedge
or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign opemati

A fair value hedge is a derivative instrutneéesignated for the purpose of hedging the exgaosiuichanges in fair value of an asset or a
liability resulting from a particular risk. If théerivative is designated as a fair value hedgecliamges in the fair value of the derivative and
of the hedged item attributable to the hedgedaigkboth recognized in the same caption in theatmladed statements of income. A cash
flow hedge is a derivative instrument designatedtie purpose of hedging the
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exposure to variability in future cash flows resgtfrom a particular risk. If the derivative isgignated as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the denixeaare recorded in accumulated other compreheristome and are recognized in the
results of operations when the hedged item afiegisings. Ineffective portions of changes in thevalue of cash flow hedges are recogn
in the results of operations. A hedge of a netstwent in a foreign operation is achieved througlervative instrument designated for the
purpose of hedging the exposure of changes in \alirvestments in foreign subsidiaries. If theidative is designated as a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation, the effectivetipns of changes in the fair value of the derivatare recorded in other comprehensive
income as a part of the currency translation adjast. Ineffective portions of net investment hedgesrecognized in the results of
operations. For derivative instruments not desigghas hedging instruments, changes in fair valeeeognized in the results of operatior
the current period.

Fair Value

The Company applies the following hieraralwiich prioritizes the inputs used to measurevaliue into three levels and bases the
categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowesel of input that is available and significaotthe fair value measurement. The levels in
the hierarchy are defined as follows:

. Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedesr(unadjusted) for identical assets or liakiitin active markets.

. Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include qdqteces for similar assets and liabilities in eetmarkets, and
inputs that are observable for the asset or ligbidiither directly or indirectly, for substantiathe full term of the financial
instrument.

. Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobdaevand significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company's financial instruments corngigharily of cash equivalents, restricted cashivéive instruments consisting of forward
foreign exchange contracts, commodity contractsydives embedded in certain purchase and saleamis and an interest rate swap,
accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, aceopayable and long-term debt. The carrying amouoiitise Company's cash equivalents
and restricted cash, accounts receivable, shartt@rrowings and accounts payable approximatevédire due to their short-term nature.
Derivative assets and liabilities are measurediat/Blue on a recurring basis. The Company's kemngr debt consists of variable rate
arrangements with interest rates that reset eleeg tmonths and as a result, reflect currentlylavia terms and conditions. Consequently
carrying value of the Company's long-term debt apipnates fair value.

The Company has evaluated the estimateddaie of financial instruments using availablerkes information and management's
estimates. The use of different market assumptoidgor estimation methodologies could have a st effect on the estimated fair value
amounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the @any to credit risk consist of cash and cash edgms, derivative instruments and accounts
receivables. The risk with respect to cash and egsivalents is minimized by the Company's politineesting in short-term financial
instruments issued by highly-rated financial ingi@ns. The risk with respect to derivative instents is minimized by the Company's policy
of entering into arrangements with highly-ratedafinial institutions. The risk with respect to aautsureceivables is minimized by the
creditworthiness and diversity of the Company'dauers. The Company performs periodic credit evadna of its customers' financial
condition and generally requires an advanced defarsh portion of the purchase price. Credit leslsave been
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within management's expectations and the allow&srcgoubtful accounts totaled $5.6 million and $&illion as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and260& single customer represented 10% of the Coygpancounts receivable. For the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009ngle siustomer represented 10% of the Company'siuev

Inventories

Components of inventory include raw matsriaork-in-process, demonstration units and fiatslgoods. Demonstration units include
systems which are located in the Company's denaditsirlaboratories or installed at the sites oeptiall customers and are considered
available for sale. Finished goods include in-tiasysstems that have been shipped to the Compeangtemers, but not yet installed and
accepted by the customer. All inventories are dtatehe lower of cost or market. Cost is determhipencipally by the first-in, first-out
method for a majority of subsidiaries and by averagst for certain international subsidiaries. Tmanpany reduces the carrying value of its
inventories for differences between cost and eséthaet realizable value, taking into consideratieage in the preceding twelve months,
expected demand, technological obsolescence ardiaformation including the physical conditiondgmonstration and in-transit
inventories. The Company records a charge to dasivenue for the amount required to reduce theycay value of inventory to net
realizable value. Costs associated with the pracant and warehousing of inventories, such as inbhdrgight charges and purchasing and
receiving costs, are also included in the cosewénue line item within the consolidated statemehtscome.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are statedsttless accumulated depreciation and amortizatii@jor improvements are capitalized
while expenditures for maintenance, repairs andnimprovements are charged to expense as inciifbdn assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the assets and related accumulatedaiafion and amortization are eliminated fromdleounts and any resulting gain or loss is
reflected in the consolidated statements of incddepreciation and amortization are calculated straght-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years

Machinery and equipme! 3-10 years

Computer equipment and softwi 3-5 years

Furniture and fixture 3-10 years

Leasehold improvemen Lesser of 15 years or the remaining lease

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluatedimpairment on a reporting unit basis annuaidlyon an interim basis when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmahge may not be recoverable. In assessing tloweeability of goodwill, the Company
must make assumptions regarding the estimatedefeash flows, and other factors, to determine direvilue of these assets. If these
estimates or their related assumptions changeeifutiire, the Company may be required to recoraimpent charges against these assets in
the reporting period in which the impairment isetetined.

For goodwill, the impairment evaluationlirdes a comparison of the carrying value of therpg unit to the fair value of the reporting
unit. If the reporting unit's estimated fair vakeceeds the reporting unit's carrying value, ncaiimpent of goodwill exists. If the fair value of
the reporting unit does not exceed its carryingi@athen further analysis would be required tomieitee the amount of the impairment, if a
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For the year ended December 31, 2011, tmepany elected to adopt Accounting Standards UpdagU") No. 2011-08)ntangibles—
Gooduwill and Other (Topic 350) Testing Goodwill forpairment("ASU No. 2011-08"). Under ASU No. 2011-08, the Guany has the
option to assess qualitative factors to determihetier the existence of events or circumstancels lieaa determination that it is more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting uniteiss than its carrying amount to determine whefilméner impairment testing is necessary.
Based on the results of the qualitative reviewaddill performed as of December 31, 2011, the Camypdid not identify any indicators of
impairment. As such, the two-phase process waaew#ssary.

Intangible assets with a finite useful kfiee amortized on a straight-line basis over tagtimated useful lives as follows:

Existing technology and related pate 3-10 years
Customer and distributor relationsh 5-12 years
Trade name 5-10 years

Acquired in process research and develop(BTR&D") represents ongoing development workogssted with enhancements to
existing products, as well as the development &f generation products. IPR&D is initially capitadd at fair value as an intangible asset
an indefinite life and assessed for impairmentmwam@nual basis, or when indicators of impairmeatidentified. When the IPR&D project is
complete, it is reclassified as a finite-lived imigble asset and is amortized over its estimate€uubfe, typically seven to 10 years. If an
IPR&D project is abandoned before completion oedatned to be impaired, the value of the asseét@amount of the impairment is chart
to the consolidated statements of income in theogéhe project is abandoned or impaired.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Impairment losses are recorded on longdlassets used in operations when indicators ofirmeat are present and the quoted market
price, if available, or the estimated undiscourttpdrating cash flows generated by those assetesar¢han the assets' carrying value.
Impairment losses are charged to the consolidateensents of income for the difference betweerfdirevalue and carrying value of the
asset.

Warranty Costs and Deferred Revenue

The Company typically provides a one yeatgand labor warranty with the purchase of eqemmmThe anticipated cost for this
warranty is accrued upon recognition of the salbianncluded as a current liability on the accompag consolidated balance sheets. The
Company's warranty reserve reflects estimated mhterd labor costs for potential product issuesafbich the Company expects to incur an
obligation. The Company's estimates of anticipatéels of warranty claims and costs are primarilseldaon historical information and future
forecasts. The Company assesses the adequacywéttenty reserve on a quarterly basis and adibhstamount as necessary. If the histo
data used to calculate the adequacy of the warrasgrve are not indicative of future requiremeadslitional or reduced warranty reserves
may be required.

The Company also offers to its custometsreded warranty and service agreements extendymnbehe initial warranty for a fee.
These fees are recorded as deferred revenue, baghdir relative fair value, and recognized ratabto income over the life of the extended
warranty contract once the extended warranty pérascommenced.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes usiagsset and liability approach by recognizinigaed tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of differencesdest the
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financial statement basis and the tax basis otsissa liabilities, calculated using enacted taggan effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to be reflected in thegaxn. In addition, the Company is required tword a valuation allowance against net
deferred tax assets if, based upon the availabteree, it is more likely than not that some orodlthe deferred tax assets will not be reali
In addition, the Company accounts for uncertainp@asitions that have reached a minimum recognttioeshold.

Customer Advances

The Company typically requires an advaregodit under the terms and conditions of contraits customers. These deposits are
recorded as a liability until revenue is recognipadhe specific contract in accordance with thenGany's revenue recognition policy.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from systees when persuasive evidence of an arrangemistd,¢he price is fixed or
determinable, title and risk of loss has been feansd to the customer and collectability of theuling receivable is reasonably assured. Title
and risk of loss is generally transferred to thet@omer upon receipt of signed customer acceptanae $ystem that has been shipped,
installed, and for which the customer has beenéiAs a result, the timing of customer acceptamceadiness could cause the Company's
reported revenues to differ materially from exptotes. When products are sold through an indepdrdistiibutor or a strategic distribution
partner that assumes responsibility for installatihe Company recognizes revenue when the protiauts been shipped and the title and
of loss has been transferred. The Company's distri® do not have price protection rights or rigsftseturn; however, products are warrar
to be free from defect for a period that is typicaine year. Revenue is deferred until cash isivedevhen collectability is not reasonably
assured, such as when a significant portion ofébhés due over one year after delivery, installatind acceptance of a system.

In September 2009, the Financial Accounstandards Board ("FASB") ratified ASU No. 2009-R&venue Recognition (Topic 605)—
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangemen&sSU No. 2009-13 amends existing revenue recagnaiccounting standards that are currently
within the scope of Accounting Standards Codifimat{"ASC") 605, Subtopic 25-Multiple-Element ArrangementsASU No. 2009-13
provides for three significant changes to the exgstjuidance for multiple element arrangements:

. Removes the requirement to have objective andolelievidence of fair value for undelivered elemeéntan arrangement. This
may result in more deliverables being treated parsd¢e units of accounting.

. Modifies the manner in which arrangement considemas allocated to the separately identified deiables. ASU No. 20093
requires an entity to allocate revenue in an aearent based on the fair value of each deliveradilguits best estimate of
selling prices ("ESP") of deliverables if a vendoes not have vendor-specific objective evidendaiolvalue ("VSOE") or
third-party evidence of fair value ("TPE"), if VSQ&not available.

. Eliminates the use of the residual method and reguin entity to allocate revenue using the redagelling prices method,
which results in the discount in the transactioimppevenly allocated to the separate units of acting.

Additionally, in September 2009, the FAS#ified ASU No. 2009-14Software (Topic 985)—Certain Revenue Arrangememds T
Include Software Elemen. The amendments in ASU No. 2009-14 provide thagitde products containing software componentsreord
software components that function together to @elitie tangible product's essential functionaliy o longer within the scope of the
software revenue recognition guidance in AccounStandards Codification (ASC) Topic
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985-605,Software Revenue RecognitigdEC 985-605) and should follow the guidance in AStl 2009-13 for multiple-element
arrangements.

The Company adopted these new accountamglatds at the beginning of its first fiscal quade2011 on a prospective basis for
transactions originating or materially modified anafter January 1, 2011. These accounting stasdgrderally do not change the units of
accounting for the Company's revenue transactemmost products and services qualify as sepaniteaf accounting as was the case under
previous accounting guidance. The impact of adggtiese new accounting standards was not materihetCompany's financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011, and if agphjaiehe same manner there would not have beenterialampact to revenue recorded in
2010 and 2009 or any interim periods therein.

For transactions entered into subsequethiet@doption of ASU No. 20083 that include multiple elements, arrangement idenation is
allocated to each element based on the relatilieg@lrices of all of the elements in the arrangemssing the fair value hierarchy as required
by ASU No. 2009t3. The Company limits the amount of revenue reizeghfor delivered elements to the amount thabiscontingent on th
future delivery of products or services, futurefpenance obligations, or subject to customer-speo#turn or refund privileges.

The Company attempts to determine thevigine of its products and services based on VS®E.Jompany determines VSOE base(
its normal selling pricing and discounting pracsid¢er the specific product or service when solda@tand-alone basis. In determining VSOE,
the Company's policy requires a substantial mgjafitselling prices for a product or service toviithin a reasonably narrow range. The
Company also considers the class of customer, meathdistribution and the geographies into whicbdurcts and services are being sold
when determining VSOE.

If VSOE cannot be established, which maguodn instances where a product or service habeeh sold separately, stand-alone sales
are too infrequent or product pricing is not withisufficiently narrow range, the Company atteniptsstablish the selling price based on
TPE. TPE is determined based on competitor prigesimilar deliverables when sold separately. ThenBany is typically not able to
determine TPE for its products or services. TP#etermined based on competitor prices for simikaments when sold or licensed separa
Generally, the Company's offerings contain a sigaift level of differentiation such that the conmadae pricing of products with similar
functionality cannot be determined. Furthermore,@ompany is unable to reliably determine thersglfirices on a stand-alone basis of
similar products offered by its competitors.

When the Company cannot determine VSOERH,Tit uses ESP in its allocation of arrangemensicteration. The objective of ESP is
determine the price at which the Company woulddaiy transact a stand-alone sale of the produstprice. ESP is determined by
considering a number of factors including the Conympricing policies, internal costs and gros<ipabjectives, method of distribution,
market research and information, recent technoddgiends, competitive landscape and geographles Company plans to analyze the
selling prices used in its allocation of arrangehwamsideration, at a minimum, on an annual b&stling prices will be analyzed more
frequently if a significant change in the Comparbyisiness necessitates more frequent analysigto ftompany experiences significant
variances in its selling prices.

Revenue from the sale of accessories arid igaecognized upon shipment and service reveezognized as the services are
performed.

The Company also has contracts for whiclpfilies the percentage-of-completion model of mereerecognition and the milestone model
of revenue recognition. Application of the percgataf-completion method requires the Company toemaksonable estimates of the extent
of progress toward completion of the contract dredtotal costs the Company will incur under thet@mst. Changes in the estimates of
progress toward completion of the contract anddked costs could affect the timing of revenue mggtion.
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Other revenues are comprised primarilyeskarch grants and licensing arrangements. Gnagriuie is recognized when the requirem
in the grant agreement are achieved. Licensingws¥és recognized ratably over the term of theteel@ontract.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company records costs incurred in cotiwre with shipping and handling products as manieand selling expenses. Shipping and
handling costs were $28.7 million, $20.8 milliorde14.0 million in the years ended December 31120010 and 2009, respectively.
Amounts billed to customers in connection with thessts are included in revenues.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expessadurred and include salaries, wages and p#rspnnel related costs, material costs anc
depreciation, consulting costs and facility costs.

Software Costs

Purchased software is capitalized at codtimamortized over the estimated useful life ggalty three years. Software developed for use
in the Company's products is expensed as incumgtechnological feasibility is reasonably asslieand is classified as research and
development expense. Subsequent to the achievahwhnological feasibility, amounts are capitalile, however, to date such amounts
have not been material.

Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costscasred. Advertising expenses were $8.1 million1$gillion and $6.9 million during the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 ctasghe.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes stock-based compensxpense in the consolidated statements ohireclbased on the fair value of the share-
based award at the grant date. The Company's pritysaes of share-based compensation are stockngpgiod restricted stock. The Company
recorded stock-based compensation expense foetrs gnded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 lasd$din millions):

2011 2010 2009

Stock options $ 6.6 $ 58 $ 5C
Restricted stoc 1.3 11 1.2
Total stocl-based compensation |-tax 7.8 6.8 6.2
Tax benefii 1.2 11 11
Total stocl-based compensation net of - $ 67 $ 58 $ 52

Compensation expense is amortized on ayktrine basis over the underlying vesting terrhthe share-based award. Stock options to
purchase the Company's common stock are periogliaatirded to executive officers and other employéd¢ise Company subject to a vest
period of three to five years. The fair value offeaption award is estimated on the date of graimiguthe Black-Scholes
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option-pricing model. Assumptions regarding volgtjlexpected term, dividend yield and risk-freteiest rate are required for the Black-
Scholes model and are presented in the table below:

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rat 1.24%3.12%  1.73%3.46%  1.71%3.60%
Expected life 6.5 year 6.5 year 6.5 year
Volatility 57.2% 62.0% 64.0%

Expected dividend yiel — — —

The risk-free interest rate is based orytakel on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securitiesafperiod that is commensurate with the
expected life assumption. Expected life is deteedithrough the simplified method as defined inSkeurities and Exchange Commission
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110. The Company beés that this is the best estimate of the expdeted of a new option. Expected
volatility is based on a number of factors, but@wmpany currently believes that the exclusiveaises historical volatility results in the best
estimate of the grant-date fair value of employteelsoptions because it reflects the market's otilegpectations of future volatility. The
expected dividend yield was not considered in fitgoa pricing formula since the Company does ngtgisidends and has no current plans
to do so in the future. The terms of some of then@any's indebtedness also currently restrict itisyabo pay dividends to its shareholders.

In addition, the Company utilizes an estedaforfeiture rate when calculating the stock-ldasempensation expense for the period. The
Company has applied estimated forfeiture ratessddrirom an analysis of historical data of 5.294% .and 5.8% for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyeiarmining the expense recorded in the accompgryinsolidated statements of inco
The weighted average fair values of options gramtasl $7.89, $8.56 and $5.83 per share for the yalsd December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Net income per common share attributabBrtdker Corporation shareholders is calculatedilidohg net income attributable to Bruker
Corporation by the weighted-average shares outistgmtliring the period. The diluted net income geare computation includes the effect of
shares which would be issuable upon the exercisatstanding stock options and the vesting of ictstt stock, reduced by the number of
shares which are assumed to be purchased by thpabgmnder the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the compiatiatof basic and diluted weighted average sharéstanding for the years ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share data):

2011 2010 2009
Net income attributable to Bruk

Corporation, as reporte $ 92 $ 954 $ 81l.:
Weighted average shares outstand

Weighted average shares outstan-basic 165.4 164.£ 163.t

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and restricted stc 1.t 1.3 1.4

Weighted average shares outstan-diluted 166.¢ 165.% 164.¢
Net income per common share attribute

to Bruker Corporation shareholde

Basic $ 056 $ 058 $ 0.5C

Diluted $ 05t $ 05¢8 $ 0.4¢
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Stock options to purchase approximatelymillion shares, 0.7 million shares and 2.3 millgrares were excluded from the computa
of diluted earnings per share in the years endexibber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, lsecdueir effect would have been anti-
dilutive.

Employee Retirement Plans

The Company recognizes the over-fundechdetfunded status of defined benefit pension and gibstretirement defined benefit ple
as an asset or liability, respectively, in its aditated statement of financial position and rednggs changes in the funded status in the ye
which the changes occur through other comprehemsgme.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income refers to regsnexpenses, gains and losses that under acappniticiples generally accepted in the
United States are included in other comprehensigeme, but are excluded from net income as theseiai® are recorded directly as an
adjustment to shareholders' equity, net of tax. Chmpany's other comprehensive income is compasediply of foreign currency
translation adjustments, changes in the fundedsstE#tdefined benefit pension plans and chang#wiffair value of derivatives that have b
designated as cash flow hedges.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the Company'sign subsidiaries, where the functional currendyéslocal currency, are translated into U.S.
dollars using year-end exchange rates, or histaatas, as appropriate. Revenues and expensesegri subsidiaries are translated at the
average exchange rates in effect during the yedjustments resulting from financial statement tlaisns are included as a separate
component of shareholders' equity. Gains and lagsesting from foreign currency transactions agarted in interest and other income
(expense), net in the consolidated statementscofie for all periods presented. The Company mapgieally have certain intercompany
foreign currency transactions that are deemed tf bdong-term investment nature; exchange adjestsrelated to those transactions are
made directly to a separate component of sharet®leiguity.

Risk and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks commortgdnidustry including, but not limited to, globalaomic conditions, rapid technological
change, spending patterns from its customers, gfoteof its intellectual property, availability &ky raw materials and components,
compliance with existing and future regulation lmygrnment agencies, dependence on key personnéllahdations in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Contingencies

The Company is subject to proceedings, ldt&snd other claims related to patents, prododtaher matters. The Company assesse
likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomethése matters as well as potential ranges of pielbadses. A determination of the amount
of reserves required, if any, for these contingencs made after careful analysis of each indiichsae. The required reserves may change in
the future due to new developments in each sitnatiacchanges in settlement strategy in dealing thidse matters.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfeztttae reported
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amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosumafingent assets and liabilities at the datdeffinancial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting gherio

Significant estimates and judgments relipdn by management in preparing these financitdmsiants include revenue recognition,
allowances for doubtful accounts, reserves for exead obsolete inventory, the expensing and d¢iapiian of research and development
costs for software, estimated fair values of loiwgd assets used to record impairment chargecetatintangible assets and goodwill,
intangible asset valuations, amortization periedpected future cash flows used to evaluate thevezability of long-lived assets, stock-
based compensation expense, warranty allowanctgjctiring and other related charges, contingahtiiities and the recoverability of the
Company's net deferred tax assets.

Although the Company regularly reassedseassumptions underlying these estimates, aasalts could differ materially from these
estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded petied in which they become known. The Compangd#s estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions thatiévss to be reasonable under the circumstancesal@sults may differ from
management's estimates if these results differ fitorical experience or other assumptions pratambe substantially accurate, even if
such assumptions are reasonable when made.

Prior Year Financial Statement Reclassification

The consolidated statement of income ferytear ended December 31, 2011, reflects amodizafi certain technology-related
intangible assets recorded as a component of €osvenue. In order to conform to the current y@asentation, the Company has shown
$4.3 million and $1.1 million of amortization exenas a component of cost of revenue for the yratsd December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, to provide a better reflection of thaction of the underlying intangible assets. Bheounts reclassified were previously
recorded as selling, general and administrativerse, a component of operating expenses. The séalason of these amounts had no ef
on the Company's previously reported results ofans or cash flows for the years ended Decer@bg?2010 and 2009.

Note 3—Acquisitions
Acquisitions Completed in 2011

In October 2011, the Company completecattwuisition of Center for Tribology, Inc. (the #alogy business"), a privately owned
company based in California, U.S. The acquiredrimss provides nano-mechanical and tribologicalinsstumentation for basic materials
research and industrial manufacturing in a randetfs, including biomedical, petroleum, microdteaics, energy, and automotive markets.
The tribology business expands the Company's narfiaces business into an adjacent market that simep@ny could not previously address.
The Company acquired the tribology business for Bh@llion in cash and a contingent consideratimarsgement that could require the
Company to pay the former shareholder of the tagplbusiness an additional $1.5 million in eacthefyears 2012 and 2013. The former
shareholder of the tribology business will earndbetingent consideration if certain revenue arasgiprofit margin targets are achieved in
2012 and 2013 and their employment continues aCtirapany. Under the purchase agreement $1.6 mdlidhe purchase price was paid
into escrow pending the resolution of indemnifioatobligations and working capital obligations loé former shareholder of the acquired
business. The Company anticipates the final sedtteérof the amounts in escrow to occur in the foqrthrter of 2012.

In April 2011, the Company completed thquasition of Michrom Bioresources Inc. (the "HPLGdiness"), a privately owned company
based in California, U.S., that provides high perfance liquid chromatography instrumentation, asgeses and consumables to the life
science market. High performance liquid chromatplgyais a chromatographic technique that can separatixture of
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compounds and is often used as the front-end tass ispectrometer to identify, quantify and putify individual components of the sample.
The acquisition of the HPLC business expands thagamy's mass spectrometry businesses. The Compguiyed the HPLC business for
$1.1 million in cash, 134,362 shares of unrestlictemmon stock and 156,823 shares of restrictedramrstock. The restricted common
stock will vest over a five year period and is @ogént on continuing employment with the Compangder the purchase agreement

$0.1 million of cash and 10% of the total sharesésl were paid into escrow pending the resolutfandemnification obligations and
working capital obligations of the former shareleskiof the acquired business. The Company antasghe final settlement of the amount
escrow to occur in the fourth quarter of 2012.

The acquisition of the tribology business ¢he HPLC business were accounted for underdfeisition method. The components of
consideration transferred and the allocation ofcihresideration transferred for these businessas fisllows (in millions):

Tribology HPLC

Consideration Transferre

Cash paic $ 123 $ 11
Stock issuet — 2.6
Cash acquire (0.2 (0.2

Total consideration transferr $ 12t $ 3.8

Allocation of Consideration Transferre

Accounts receivabl $ 15 $ 0.2
Inventory 1.C .3
Property, plant and equipme — 0.2
Intangible asset:
Existing technology and related pate 12.C &
Customer and distributor relationsh 0.€ 1.t
Tradename — 0.1
In-process research and developn 0.1 —
Goodwill 3.5 1.2
Liabilities assumei (6.2 (2.0)
Total consideration transferr $ 12t $ 38

The fair value of the 134,362 shares osfricted common stock issued in connection withHIPLC business was determined based on
the closing market price of the Company's commameshon the acquisition date, or $21.28 per share.

The fair value contingent consideratiormagement in the acquisition of the tribology bus&is not included in the total consideration
transferred because it is forfeited if the formaargholder's employment is terminated. SimilaHg, fair value restricted common stock iss
in the acquisition of the HPLC business is notueld in the total consideration transferred becausdorfeited if the former shareholders'
employment is terminated. Because these arrangsraemnforfeited if employment is terminated, theoants are considered to be
compensation for post-combination service and lvalaccounted for as compensation expense oveethapghe contingent amounts are
earned.

The Company has not yet completed the fillatation of the consideration transferred inreetion with the tribology business but
expects to complete the final allocation within theasurement period. The allocation of the conatdar transferred in connection with the
HPLC business was completed in the fourth quaft@oal.
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The acquisition of the tribology busineas ¢he HPLC business were made at prices abovaithealue of the net acquired assets,
resulting in $3.5 million and $1.2 million of goodiwrespectively. The Company was willing to pdese prices based on expectations of
synergies that will result from combining the biesises with the Company's existing operations. Tégsergies include expanded product
offerings to adjacent markets that the Companypragiously not able to address in a comprehensimen@r and leveraging selling, general
and administrative expenses.

In performing the purchase price allocatithe Company considered, among other factormtimtion for future use of the acquired
assets, analyses of historical financial perforreanad estimates of future cash flows from theotagy and HPLC products and services.
purchase price was allocated based upon the flie wd the identified assets acquired and liale#itassumed as of the acquisition date from a
market participant's perspective.

The Company used the multi-period excessiags method, a form of the income approach, toesthe existing technology and patents
related to the tribology and HPLC businesses. Theiple behind this method is that the value & ihitangible asset is equal to the present
value of the after-tax cash flows attributablete intangible asset only. The Company also useththig-period excess-earnings method to
value the customer relationships acquired in theotion with the HPLC business and the IPR&D aegliwith the tribology business. The
multi-period excess-earnings method was used teeviiile customer relationships acquired in the ociorewith the HPLC business because
the customer relationships were deemed to be otteeqfrimary cash generating assets acquired itrdheaction. The Company used the
lost-profit/avoided cost method, a form of the im@mapproach, to value the distributor relationshighated to the tribology business. The
principle behind this method is that the econonailtg of an asset can be estimated based on thedsta that were avoided by having the
asset in place. The Company used the relief froralty method, a form of the income approach, tai@dhe tradenames acquired in the
HPLC business. The principle behind this methadtias the value of the intangible asset is equ#tiégoresent value of the after-tax royalty
savings attributable to owning the intangible asBbé weightedaverage amortization periods for intangible asaetgired in connection wi
the tribology and HPLC businesses are 7.1 yearexXisting technology and related patents, 6.8 ykarsustomer and distributor
relationships and 1 year for tradenames. IPR&Daisied at its initial fair value and will be amatid to expense upon completion of
development. If further development becomes uniid&asir is abandoned, the carrying value of the IPR&ill be expensed in the period it
occurs.

Transaction costs associated with the agipn of the tribology and HPLC businesses wergeased as incurred. The Company incu
$1.1 million in expenses that are included in ottfearges, net in the consolidated statements ofmedor the year ended December 31, 2
These costs consist primarily of professional fees.

The results of the tribology and HPLC besses have been included in the Scientific Instntsngegment from the date of acquisition.
Pro forma financial information reflecting the aggjtion of these businesses has not been presbatzdise the impact on revenues, net
income and net income per common share attributatBeuker Corporation shareholders is not material

Acquisitions Completed in 2010

In October 2010, the Company completecattwisition of Veeco Metrology Inc., a scanningh@onicroscopy and optical industrial
metrology instruments business (the "nano surfhosmess”), from Veeco Instruments Inc. ("Veecof)dash consideration of
$230.4 million. The Company financed the acquisitidth $167.6 million borrowed under a revolvingdit agreement and the balance with
cash on hand. The acquired business complemen@otin@any's existing atomic force microscopy progiaetd expanded the Company's
offerings to industrial and applied markets, speally in the fields of materials and nanotechnglogsearch and analysis. Under the purc
agreement $22.9 million of the purchase price waad mto escrow pending the resolution of
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indemnification obligations and working capital igialtions of the seller. In October 2011 the esonas released to Veeco.

In May 2010, the Company completed the &itipn of three former Varian, Inc. ("Varian") mtoct lines which Agilent
Technologies, Inc. ("Agilent") divested in connectiwith its acquisition of Varian. The Company aiced certain assets and assumed certain
liabilities in Varian's inductively coupled plasmreass spectrometry instruments business, gas ctomgraghy instruments business, and gas
chromatography triple-quadrupole mass spectroniestyuments business (collectively, the "chemicellgsis business") for cash
consideration of $37.5 million. The acquired bussieomplements the Company's existing mass spegtipproducts and expands the
Company's offerings to industrial and applied mexke

The acquisitions of the nano surfaces tassrand chemical analysis business were accowntedder the acquisition method. The
components of the consideration transferred andltbeation of the consideration transferred farsth businesses, including measurement
period adjustments recorded in 2011, are as foll@gwmillions):

Nano
Surfaces Chemical Analysis

Consideration Transferre
Cash paic $ 230« % 37.t

Total consideration transferr $ 2304 $ 37.t
Allocation of Consideration Transferre
Accounts receivabl $ 218 $ —
Notes receivabl — 10.:
Inventory 33.t 16.€
Other current asse 8.1 —
Property, plant and equipme 18.C 2.4
Intangible asset:

Existing technology and related pate 89.7 7.1

Customer and distributor relationsh 1.t 15.¢

In-process research and developn 21. —
Goodwill 49.C 0.4
Liabilities assumei (12.5) (15.9)

Total consideration transferr $ 2304 % 37.t

The Company finalized the allocation of domsideration transferred in connection with thasmsurfaces business in the third quarter of
2011. The Company finalized the allocation of tbasideration transferred in connection with thensical analysis business in the fourth
quarter of 2010. Measurement period adjustmentertathe acquisition date fair values of the namfeses business in 2011 consisted of a
reclassification of $2.0 million from goodwill tatangible assets in connection with finalizing thie value of a license agreement that was
acquired in the transaction.

The acquisitions of the nano surfaces tassrand the chemical analysis business were madieed above the fair value of the net
acquired assets, resulting in $49.0 million andt$illion of goodwill, respectively. The Company swvailling to pay these prices based on
expectations of synergies that will result from &iming the businesses with the Company's existpeyations. These synergies include
expanded product offerings to applied analyticatkets that the Company was previously not ablaltivess in a comprehensive manner and
leveraging selling, general and administrative esps.

Transaction costs associated with the adtpns of the nano surfaces and chemical analysmesses have been expensed as incurred.
The Company incurred $3.1 million and $4.6 millian

87




Table of Contents

expenses that are included in other charges, ribeinonsolidated statements of income for thesyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The costs incurred in 2011 consisharily of transition costs whereby Agilent and \¢eeare providing administrative services
on behalf of the Company for defined periods. Thadition service arrangements expired in 2012010, transaction costs include

$2.8 million of transition costs provided by Agiteand Veeco and transaction expenses of $1.8 milansisting of various professional fees.

The results of the nano surfaces businedshe chemical analysis business have been intlndde Scientific Instruments segment
from the date of acquisition.

The following table sets forth pro formadncial information reflecting the acquisition bétnano surfaces business as if the acquisition
had occurred on January 1, 2009, for the yearscebdeember 31, (in millions, except per share date)

2010 2009
Revenue $ 1,410.7 $ 1,211
Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat 97.C b5.2
Net income per common share attributable to Bri
Corporation shareholder
Basic and dilute: $ 0.5¢ $ 0.34

Pro forma financial information reflectittye acquisition of the chemical analysis businessriot been presented because the impact on
revenues, net income and net income per commoe siti@ibutable to Bruker Corporation shareholdsnsat material.

Note 4—Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures the following findrassets and liabilities at fair value on a recgrbasis. The following table sets forth the
Company's financial instruments and presents th&hinathe fair value hierarchy using the lowestdesf input that is significant to the fair
value measurement at December 31, 2011 (in millions

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets Observable Unobservable
Available Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 262 % 26.2 % — 3 —
Restricted cas 2.2 2.2 — —
Embedded derivatives in purchase .
delivery contract: 0.€ — 0.€ —
Commodity contract 0.t — 0.5 —
Long-term restricted cas 3.€ 3.€ — —
Total assets recorded at fairva  $ 33.5 $ 324 $ 11 $ =
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap contre $ 11 $ — 3 11 $ —
Foreign exchange contrac 4.2 — 4.2 —
Embedded derivatives in purchase .
delivery contract: 0.4 — 0.4 —
Fixed price commodity contrac 0.t — 0.t —
Total liabilities recorded at fair
value $ 6.2 $ — 3 6.2 $ —
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Derivative financial instruments are cléissi within level 2 because there is not an actharket for each hedge contract however, the
inputs used to calculate the value of the instrumare obtained from active markets.

The Company measures eligible assets ahilities at fair value with changes in fair val@eognized in earnings. Fair value treatment
may be elected either upon initial recognition mfedigible asset or liability or, for an existingset or liability, if an event triggers a new basis
of accounting. The Company did not elect to rememany of its existing financial assets or lia@kt and did not elect the fair value option
for any financial assets and liabilities transadtethe year ended December 31, 2011 or 2010.

Note 5—Accounts Receivable

The following is a summary of trade acceumtceivable at December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Gross accounts receivalt $ 288« $ 238.(
Allowance for doubtful accoun (5.6 (5.2

Accounts receivable, n $ 2828 $ 232.¢

The allowance for doubtful accounts is ngemaent's estimate of credit losses in the accaentsvable. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is based on a number of factors, includingvaluation of customer credit worthiness, the@f the outstanding receivable,
economic trends and historical experience. Thenaliece for doubtful accounts is reviewed on a quigrigasis and changes in estimates are
reflected in the period in which they become knoime Company writes off account balances agaimsaliowance after all means of
collection have been exhausted and the potentiakfmvery is considered remote. Provisions fordimli accounts are recorded in general
and administrative expenses.

The following is a summary of the activitythe Company's allowance for doubtful accountSetember 31, (in millions):

Balance at Additions Deductions
Beginning of Charged to Amounts Balance at End
Period Expense Written Off of Period
2011 $ 5.1 0.c (0.4 $ 5.€
2010 5.4 0.2 (0.6) 5.1
2009 5.4 1.2 (1.2) 5.4

Note 6—Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following adember 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 1755 $ 143.7
Work-in-process 169.¢ 174.¢
Finished good 175.2 143.¢
Demonstration unit 56.C 48.¢€

Inventories $ 576.z $ 511.C

The Company reduces the carrying valuésadémonstration inventories for differences betwieecost and estimated net realizable
value through a charge to cost of product revehateis based on a number of factors includingatie of the unit, the physical condition of
the unit and an assessment
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of technological obsolescence. Amounts recordexbét of revenue related to the write-down of dertratisn units to net realizable value
were $30.0 million, $24.4 million and $26.1 millidor the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ad@, 28spectively. Finished goods
include in-transit systems that have been shippeldet Company's customers but not yet installedaacdpted by the customer. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, inventory-in-transi $516.8 million and $85.3 million, respectively.

Note 7—Property, Plant and Equipment

The following is a summary of property,land equipment by major asset class at Decenihgim3millions):

2011 2010
Land $ 325 $ 28:
Building and leasehold improvemel 241 231t
Machinery, equipment, software and furniture amtufies 298.¢ 281.(
572.t 540.¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (323.5) (307.J)
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 249.C $ 233.]

Depreciation expense, which includes theréization of leasehold improvements, for the yearded December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 was $34.8 million, $30.3 million and $27.9lioil, respectively.

Note 8—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table sets forth the chaniethe carrying amount of goodwill for the yearsled December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in
millions):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 47.F
Acquisitions 52.4
Foreign currency impau (1.6

Balance at December 31, 2C 98.:
Acquisitions 4.7
Dispositions (0.2
Measurement period adjustme (2.0
Foreign currency impau (0.7)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 100.Z

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, all goodwidk allocated to the Scientific Instruments sedmEme goodwill acquired in 2011 relates
to the acquisition of the tribology business arel HHPLC business. The goodwill acquired in 2010tesléo the acquisition of the nano
surfaces business, the chemical analysis busimesagproximately $1.0 million related to other wdually insignificant acquisitions.

No impairment losses were recorded on gdbdwring the years ended December 31, 2011, 201D2009.
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The following is a summary of intangiblesets at December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Existing technology and
related patent $ 141.¢ $ (29.9 $ 111t $ 112.C % (15.0 $ 97.C
Customer relationshif 22.C (5.7 16.¢ 20.z (2.5 17.7
Trade name 0.2 (0.2 — 04 0.3 0.1
Intangible assets
subject to
amortization 163.¢ (35.2) 128.¢ 132.¢ (17.¢) 114.¢
In-process research anc
developmen 8.C — 8.C 21.2 — 21.2
Intangible assel $ 171¢ $ (35.2) $ 136.« $ 153¢ $ (178 $ 136.1

For the years ended December 31, 2011, a0d@009, the Company recorded amortization expehapproximately $18.1 million,
$5.8 million and $1.8 million, respectively, in thensolidated statements of income.

No impairment losses were recorded reladatifinite-lived intangible assets during the yeamded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

The estimated future amortization expee$ated to amortizable intangible assets at Dece®ibe2011 is as follows (in millions):

2012 $ 19.7
2013 20.7
2014 20.1
2015 19.F
2016 18.¢€
Thereaftel 37.€

Total $ 136.¢

Note 9—Other Current Liabilities

The following is a summary of other curréabilities at December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010

Deferred revenu $ 83.C $ 70.:
Accrued compensatic 77.5 68.¢
Income taxes payab b5.¢ 61.t
Accrued warrant 27.¢ 28.4
Derivative liabilities 6.2 6.8
Other accrued expens 69.7 65.€
Other current liabilitie: $ 320.C $ 301.7
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The following table sets forth the chanigpeaccrued warranty for the years ended Decemhe2@ll1l and 2010 (in millions):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 22¢
Accruals for warranties issued during the y 28.€
Settlements of warranty clain (22.0)
Foreign currency impau (1.2

Balance at December 31, 2C 28.4
Accruals for warranties issued during the y 29.1
Settlements of warranty clain (28.€)
Foreign currency impau (2.0

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 27.¢

Note 10—Debt
The Company's debt obligations consisheffbllowing as of December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
U.S. Dollar term loan under the Amended Credit Agnen $ 82.t $ 110.¢
U.S. Dollar revolving loan under the Amended Credit

Agreemen 216.5 185.t
Capital lease obligatior 41 4.¢
Total debt 303.1 301.C
Shor-term borrowings — (185.%)
Current portion of lon-term debt (83.7) (28.9)
Total debt, less current portic $ 2194 $ 86.€

In February 2008, the Company enteredanteedit agreement, referred to as the Credit Agesd, with a syndicate of lenders that
provided for a revolving credit line with a maximwoammitment of $230.0 million and a term loan fagibf $150.0 million. The outstanding
principal under the term loan was payable in quigriastallments through December 2012. Borrowingsder the Credit Agreement accrued
interest, at the Company's option, at either @)tilgher of the prime rate or the federal funds piis 0.50%, or (ii) adjusted LIBOR, plus
margins ranging from 0.40% to 1.25% and a facflfy ranging from 0.10% to 0.20%.

In May 2011, the Company entered into aerament to and restatement of the Credit Agreemefetired to as the Amended Credit
Agreement. The Company accounted for the amendaseatmodification under FASB ASC No. 4Diebt("ASC No. 470"). The Amended
Credit Agreement increases the maximum commitmerthe Company's revolving credit line to $250.0lioml and extends the maturity date
to May 2016. Borrowings under the revolving crdigié of the Amended Credit Agreement accrue integghe Company's option, at either
(i) the higher of the prime rate, (ii) the fedeftahds rate plus 0.50%, (iii) adjusted LIBOR plué% or (iv) LIBOR, plus margins ranging
from 0.80% to 1.65% and a facility fee ranging frora0% to 0.35%. The Amended Credit Agreement twatinpact on the maturity or
pricing of the Company's existing term loan. ADeficember 31, 2011, the weighted average interesbfdorrowings under the term facil
of the Amended Credit Agreement was approximate3ya

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreetage secured by guarantees from certain mataradidiaries, as defined in the
Amended Credit Agreement, and Bruker Energy & Scpe echnologies, Inc. The Amended Credit Agreeratsa requires the Company
maintain certain financial ratios related to maxmmigverage and minimum interest coverage, as dé&finéhe Amended Credit Agreement.
Specifically, the Company's leverage ratio canxoeed 3.0 and the Company's interest coverageaatinot be less than 3.0. In addition to
the financial ratios, the
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Amended Credit Agreement restricts, among othegtithe Company's ability to do the following: reaertain payments; incur additional
debt; incur certain liens; make certain investmentduding derivative agreements; merge, constdidsell or transfer all or substantially all
of its assets; and enter into certain transactigtisaffiliates. Failure to comply with any of treegestrictions or covenants may result in an
event of default under the applicable debt instmum&hich could permit acceleration of the debtemithat instrument and require the
Company to prepay that debt before its scheduledddte.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Compaalyamounts outstanding totaling $216.5 million &h85.5 million, respectively, under
the revolving loan facility. At December 31, 20Iiaccordance with ASC No. 470, the Company classihe amounts outstanding under
the revolving loan facility as long-term becauskdtl the ability and intent to refinance the shienta obligation on a long-term basis. The
refinancing of the revolving loan amount was cortgaddn January 2012. At December 31, 2010, amaautttanding under the revolving
loan facility were classified as short-term borrogs.

On January 18, 2012, the Company entettedhimote purchase agreement, referred to as tteefwchase Agreement, with a group of
accredited institutional investors. Pursuant toNloge Purchase Agreement, the Company issued dth&240.0 million of senior notes,
referred to as the Senior Notes. The Senior Ns&ged by the Company in the private placement sbokthe following:

. $20 million 3.16% Series 2012A Senior Notes, Tranahdue January 18, 2017;
. $15 million 3.74% Series 2012A Senior Notes, TranBhdue January 18, 2019;
. $105 million 4.31% Series 2012A Senior Notes, Then€, due January 18, 2022; and

. $100 million 4.46% Series 2012A Senior Notes, ThenD, due January 18, 2024.

Under the terms of the Note Purchase Agesdnthe Company may issue and sell additionabserites up to an aggregate principal
amount of $600 million, subject to certain condiso

Interest on the Senior Notes is payable-sgmually on January 18 and July 18 of each y@ammencing July 18, 2012. The Senior
Notes are unsecured obligations of the Companyaamdully and unconditionally guaranteed by certsithe Company's direct and indirt
subsidiaries. The Senior Notes rank pari passigin of repayment with the Company's other senitweecured indebtedness. The Company
may prepay some or all of the Senior Notes at Bng in an amount not less than 10% of the origamgregate principal amount of the Sel
Notes to be prepaid, at a price equal to the su(a)af00% of the principal amount thereof, plusraed and unpaid interest, and (b)
applicable make-whole amount, upon not less thaan80no more than 60 days' written notice to tHddrs of the Senior Notes. In the event
of a change in control, as defined in the Note Rase Agreement, of the Company, the Company magdered to prepay the Notes at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount therpafs accrued and unpaid interest.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains adfitra covenants, including, without limitation, m&nance of corporate existence,
compliance with laws, maintenance of insurance@ogerties, payment of taxes, addition of subsydiararantors and furnishing notices and
other information. The Note Purchase Agreement @sains certain restrictive covenants that retstine Company's ability to, among other
things, incur liens, transfer or sell assets, eagagertain mergers and consolidations and entertiansactions with affiliates. The Note
Purchase Agreement also includes customary repeggrrs and warranties and events of default. énctise of an event of default arising
from specified events of bankruptcy or insolveralyputstanding Senior Notes will become due andhpke immediately without further
action or notice. In the case of payment eventiefdults, any holder of Senior Notes affected thweraay declare all Senior Notes held by it
due and payable immediately. In the case of angrathient of default, a majority of the holdershed Senior Notes may declare all the Senior
Notes to be due and payable immediately. PursoahetNote Purchase Agreement, so long as any ISdotes are outstanding the Comp.
will not permit (i) its leverage ratio, as determth
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pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, as artief any fiscal quarter to exceed 3.50 to 1.00tg interest coverage ratio as determi
pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement as ofith@feany fiscal quarter for any period of four seautive fiscal quarters to be less than
2.50 to 1 or (jii) priority debt at any time to eaxl 25% of consolidated net worth, as determinesiamt to the Note Purchase Agreement.

Annual maturities of long-term debt outsteng at December 31, 2011, excluding the amountstanding under the revolving loan
facility of the Amended Credit Agreement that wegnanced in January 2012, are as follows (inioth):

2012 $ 83.7
2013 1.1
2014 0.7
2015 0.5
2016 0.€
Thereaftel —

Total $ 86.¢

Interest expense for the years ended DeeeB1h 2011, 2010 and 2009, was $7.3 million, $8ilion and $7.5 million, respectively.

The following is a summary of the maximuamanitments and the net amounts available to thepgaomunder revolving loan
arrangements as of December 31, 2011 (in millions):

Weighted Total Amount Outstanding
Average Committed by Outstanding Letters of Total Amount
Interest Rate Lenders Borrowings Credit Available
Amended Credit
Agreemen 1.4%$ 250.C $ 2165 $ 02 $ 33.2
Other revolving loan — 178.% — 115.2 63.5
Total revolving loan: 1.4%$% 428.1 $ 2165 % 1152 $ 96.¢

Other revolving loans are with various figal institutions located primarily in Germany, i&grland and France. The Company's other
revolving lines of credit are typically due upomubnd with interest payable monthly. Certain of éhises of credit are unsecured while
others are secured by the accounts receivablenaedtory of the related subsidiary.

Note 11—Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activites
Interest Rate Risks

The Company's exposure to interest rakerekates primarily to outstanding variable ratbtdend adverse movements in the related
short-term market rates. The most significant comemb of the Company's interest rate risk relatesounts outstanding under the Amended
Credit Agreement. In April 2008, the Company erdergo an interest rate swap arrangement to maitag&posure to interest rate
movements and the related effect on its varialileadabt. Under this interest rate swap arrangentemiCompany pays a fixed rate of
approximately 3.8% and receives a variable ratedas three month LIBOR. The initial notional ambahthis interest rate swap was
$90.0 million and it amortizes in proportion to tieem debt component of the Amended Credit Agreenfenugh December 2012. At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the notional amouthti®fnterest rate swap was $49.5 million and $@6illon, respectively. The Company
concluded that this swap met the criteria to quali an effective hedge of the variability of clielws of the interest payments and accounts
for the interest rate swap as a cash flow hedgeoingly, the Company reflects changes in thevaiue of the effective portion of this
interest rate swap in accumulated other comprebemscome, a separate component of shareholderisy e4gmounts recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive
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income are reclassified to interest and other ire¢expense), net in the consolidated statememtcofiie when either the forecasted
transaction occurs or it becomes probable thatditezasted transaction will not occur.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Company generates a substantial poofiits revenues and expenses in international etgylprincipally Germany and other
countries in the European Union, Switzerland ammhdawhich subjects its operations to the expostiexchange rate fluctuations. The
impact of currency exchange rate movement can bitiym®or negative in any period. The Company pdally enters into foreign currency
contracts in order to minimize the volatility tHatctuations in exchange rates have on its casksfldJnder these arrangements, the Company
typically agrees to purchase a fixed amount ofraifm currency in exchange for a fixed amount & .\Dollars or other currencies on
specified dates with maturities of less than twehanths. These transactions do not qualify for keatltrounting and, accordingly, the
instrument is recorded at fair value with the cepanding gains and losses recorded in the consatiddatements of income. The Company
had the following notional amounts outstanding urfdesign currency contracts at December 31, (itionis):

Notional Notional
Amount in Amount in Fair Value Fair Value
Buy Buy Currency Sell Maturity U.S. Dollars of Assets of Liabilities
December 3:
2011:
Euro January
1.5 Australian Dollars 2012 % 21 % — $ 0.1
Euro January
35.C U.S. Dollars 2012 to 48.2 — 2.C
October
2012
Swiss January
Francs 245 U.S. Dollars 2012 27.4 — 1.2
uU.S. January
Dollars 2.5 Mexican Peso 2012 to 2.5 — —
Novembe
2012
$ 80.z $ — 3 4.2
December 3:
2010:
Euro January
1.5 Australian Dollars 2011 $ 22 $ — 3 0.2
Euro January
13.2 Swiss Franc 2011 19.: — 1.1
Euro January
2011 to
14.5 U.S. Dollars May 2012 19.€ 0.1 0.4
Swiss January
Francs 13.€ U.S. Dollars 2011 13.¢€ 0.7 —
Swiss January
Francs 18.C Euro 2011 18.t 1.2 —
uU.S. January
Dollars 2011 to
January
8.S Euro 2012 8.7 0.1 —

$ 82.2 % 21 %

=
~lI

In addition, the Company periodically estaro purchase and sales contracts denominatagiencies other than the functional
currency of the parties to the transaction. The gamy accounts for these transactions separatalyngathe "embedded derivative"
component of these contracts. The contracts, deraded in currencies other than the functional cuayeof the transacting parties, amounted
to $34.8 million for the delivery of products and.$ million for the purchase of products at Decengie 2011 and $16.1 million for the
delivery of products and $0.3 million for the puask of products at December 31, 2010. The changhs fair value of these embedded
derivatives are recorded in interest and othernre¢expense), net in the consolidated statemerntsome.
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Commaodity Price Risk Management

The Company has an arrangement with a mestander which it has a firm commitment to deligepper based superconductors at a
fixed price. In order to minimize the volatilityahfluctuations in the price of copper have onG@oenpany's sales of these commodities, the
Company enters into commodity hedge contracts. étdinber 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had fixed ppommaodity contracts with
notional amounts aggregating $3.9 million and $2ilion, respectively. The changes in the fair wabf these commodity contracts are
recorded in interest and other income (expenseéjnrthe consolidated statements of income.

The fair value of the derivative instrungdescribed above are recorded in our consolidstkthce sheets for the years ending
December 31, 2011 and 2010 as follows (in millions)

Balance Sheet Location 2011 2010
Derivative asset:
Foreign exchange contrac Other current asse $ — % 21
Embedded derivatives in purchase and delivery
contracts Other current asse 0.€ 0.1
Commaodity contract Other current asse 0.5 0.€
Derivative liabilities:
Foreign exchange contrac Other current liabilitie: $ 4.2 $ 1.7
Interest rate swap contre Other current liabilitie: 1.1 3.C
Embedded derivatives in purchase and delivery
contracts Other current liabilitie: 0.4 1kt
Fixed price commodity contrac Other current liabilitie 0.t 0.€

The losses recognized in other compreherisirome related to the effective portion of thieeliest rate swap designated as a hedging
instrument for the years ending December 31, afellasvs (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swap contre $ 03 % (21 % (1.2

The losses related to the effective portibthe interest rate swap designated as a hedgstrgiment that were reclassified from other
comprehensive income and recognized in net incamthé years ending December 31, are as follows{liions):

2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swap contre $ 22 $ (26 $ (2.5

The Company expects $1.1 million of acclated losses to be reclassified into earnings dwenéxt twelve months.

The Company did not recognize any amouwitgad to ineffectiveness in the results of operatifor the years ended December 31, 2
2010 and 2009, respectively.

The impact on net income of unrealized gaind losses resulting from changes in the faureraf derivative instruments not designated
as hedging instruments for the years ending DeceBiheare as follows (in millions):

2011 2010 2009

Foreign exchange contrac $ (4€ $04 8 —
Embedded derivative 1.€ 0.1 0.7
Income (expense), n $ 30 $ 05 $ 0.7

The amounts recorded in the results of atpmrs related to derivative instruments not desigh as hedging instruments are recorded in
interest and other income (expense), net.
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Note 12—Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components ofimedefore taxes are as follows for the years etagm@mber 31, (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Domestic $ (25.9 $ (125 $ (115
Foreign 170.¢ 162.¢ 140.¢

$ 1455 $ 150.1 $ 129.1

The components of the income tax provisimnas follows for the years ended December 3Iniliions):

2011 2010 2009

Current income tax (benefit) expen
Federa $ 06 $ 03 & 1€
State 0.2 — 0.8
Foreign 56.7 56.€ 47.¢
Total current income tax expense, 56.2 56.¢ 50.2

Deferred income tax (benefit

Federa (3.9 0.3 (0.9
State (0.9 — —
Foreign (0.2 3.9 (2.7
Total deferred income tax (benet (4.9 (3.6) (2.2)
Income tax provisiol $ 51t $ 53.Z $ 48.1

A reconciliation of the United States femlestatutory rate to the effective income tax iatas follows for the years ended December 31.:

2011 2010 2009

Statutory tax rat 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign tax rate differentii 8.0 B9 9.9
Permanent difference 0.3 1.8 3.C
Tax contingencie 6.1 4.4 2.4
Change in tax rate 0.2 0.1 0.1
Withholding taxes — (1.3 0.2
State income taxes, net of federal bent 0.3 — 0.t
Purchase accountir (3.0 0.2 —
Other (2.5) (0.5 3.2
Effective tax rate before valuation allowar 28.8% 34.% 34.5%
Change in valuation allowance for unbenefittedds: 6.6% 1.5% 2.8%
Effective tax rate 35.4% 35.5% 37.2%
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The tax effect of temporary items that gilge to significant portions of the deferred tasets and liabilities are as follows as of
December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset
Accounts receivabl $ — $ OE
Accrued expense 6.1 5.1
Compensatiol 8.2 4.3
Investment: 4.2 2.5
Inventory — 2.€
Deferred revenu 4.4 4.3
Net operating loss carryforwar 15.2 15.t
Capital loss carryforwarc 0.2 4.3
Foreign tax and other tax credit carryforwa 14.¢ 8.C
Foreign statutory reservi 4.6 3.€
Warranty reserv 2.6 5.2
Other iL& 2.C
Gross deferred tax ass: 62.4 58.2
Less valuation allowanc (33.9) (37.2)
Total deferred tax asse 28.7 21.1
Deferred tax liabilities
Accounts receivabl 1.C 0.t
Fixed asset 4.C 4.C
Foreign statutory reservi 12.t 18.2
Investment 2.t —
Inventory 0.€ 1.2
Intangibles 7.€ —
Accrued expense 3.8 0.8
Other 3.C 3.2
Total deferred tax liabilitie 35.C 28.C
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 6.3 % (6.9

The valuation allowance was determinedubhoan assessment of both positive and negatideese as to whether it is more likely tt
not that deferred tax assets are recoverable. Bhg@ny's assessment was made on a jurisdictiontsdiction basis. The Company fully
reserved all U.S. net deferred tax assets, whielpgdominantly net operating losses and tax coadit/forwards. The Company's inability to
project future profitability in the U.S. beyondd@ year 2012 represents sufficient negative evidea record a valuation allowance against
certain deferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company hasogmately $0.2 million of U.S. net operating lassryforwards available to reduce
future taxable income which expire at various tirtlgeugh 2021 and approximately $44.3 million of@an Trade Tax net operating losses
that are carried forward indefinitely. The Compafgo has U.S. tax credits of approximately $14 lioniavailable to offset future tax
liabilities that expire at various dates, whichlite research and development tax credits of $8l®mexpiring at various times through
2031 and foreign tax credits of $4.5 million expgiat various times through 2021. The U.S. opegdtias and tax credit carryforwards may
be subject to limitations under provisions of theetnal Revenue Code. The Company was able toseske@ortion of the valuation allowance
on its deferred tax assets in the U.S. becausefefréd tax liabilities arising from the identifiattangible assets acquired in connection with
the tribology and HPLC businesses. Because the @oynmaintains a full valuation allowance on itseatedd tax assets in the
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U.S., the deferred tax liabilities recorded in cection with these acquisitions represents a safrégture taxable income that allows us to
utilize a portion of the deferred tax assets.

The Company has permanently reinveste@dahneings of its subsidiaries in the cumulative amaid approximately $920.7 million as of
December 31, 2011, and therefore has not provioled fS. income taxes that could result from théridbistion of such earnings to the U.S.
parent. If these earnings were ultimately distiéoluto the U.S. in the form of dividends or othemyisr if the shares of the subsidiaries were
sold or transferred, the Company would likely bbjsat to additional U.S. income taxes, net of thpact of any available foreign tax credits.
It is not practical to estimate the amount of ungeized deferred U.S. income taxes on these uitmigtd earnings.

The Company has unrecognized tax bendfepproximately $34.6 million as of December 311 200f which $27.7 million, if
recognized, would result in a reduction of the Camyis effective tax rate. A tabular reconciliatafrthe beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in milkyn

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 319 $ 23.2
Gross increas—tax positions in prior perioc 3.1
Gross decreas—tax positions in prior perioc (1.9
Gross increas—current period tax positior 2.1

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31) 27.C
Gross increas—tax positions in prior perioc 5.k
Gross decreas—tax positions in prior perioc (0.6)
Gross increas—current period tax positior 3.1
Gross decreas—current period tax positior (0.9

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, $ 34.¢

The Company recognizes penalties and istteedated to unrecognized tax benefits in the isiom for income taxes. As of December
2011, the Company had approximately $5.6 milliomatrued penalties and interest related to unoetaaipositions included in other current
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet, bfol $1.3 million was recorded during the year ehDecember 31, 2011.

The Company files returns in many foreigd atate jurisdictions with varying statutes ofitations and considers Germany, the United
States and Switzerland to be its significant taisglictions. The tax years 2003 to 2011 are opeiyé¢ars in these major taxing jurisdictions.
One of the Company's Swiss entities is currentlgdpaudited for the tax years 20@806 and the audit is expected to be completelériitst
half of 2012. In addition, all of the Company'srsfigant German subsidiaries are under tax auditffe years 2003-2008 and these audits are
expected to be completed in the second half of 208 Company recorded an additional $6.3 millind 2.8 million of reserves related to
these audits in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Note 13—Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Plans

Substantially all of the Company's emplayeeSwitzerland, France and Japan, as well aainegtployees in Germany, are covered by
Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plangeRent benefits are generally earned based ors yéaervice and compensation
during active employment. Eligibility is generatigtermined in accordance with local statutory resraents however, the level of benefits
and terms of vesting varies among plans.

99




Table of Contents
Net Periodic Pension Cost

The components of net periodic pensionscfustthe years ended December 31, are as follmwsi(lions):

2011 2010 2009

Components of net periodic benefit co:
Service cos $ 55 $ 3¢ $ 4.2
Interest cos 4.9 4.4 B2
Expected return on plan ass (4.7 (3.9 (3.5
Amortization of prior service cos 1.3 0.€ 1.C
Net periodic benefit cos $ 7€ $ 55 % 7.C

The Company measures its benefit obligadiot the fair value of plan assets as of Decembsreéach year. The changes in benefit
obligations and plan assets under the defined hgrefsion plans, accumulated benefit obligatiod famded status of the plans were as
follows at December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 1515 $ 124.¢
Service cos 5.5 3.6
Interest cos 4.9 4.4
Plan participant contributior 3.4 2.7
Benefits paic 3.3 (4.2
Actuarial loss (gain (7.7) 11.1
Impact of foreign currency exchange re (2.0 8.¢
Benefit obligation at end of ye 153.t 151.%
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ 1112 95.7
Actuarial return on plan asst (2.2 1.8
Plan participation and employer contributic 7.€ 7.4
Benefits paic 3.3 (4.2
Impact of foreign currency exchange re (0.6) 10.€
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 112.¢ 1112
Net funded statu $ (40.6) $ (409

The accumulated benefit obligation for dedined benefit pension plans is $145.5 million &td4.8 million at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. All defined benefit pensionngldiave an accumulated benefit obligation and pi@jebenefit obligation in excess of plan
assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The following amounts were recognized ia #itcompanying consolidated balance sheets f@dhgany's defined benefit plans at
December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Current liabilities $ 149 3% (1.0
Non-current liabilities (39.9 (39.9

Net benefit obligatiol $ (40.€) $ (409
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The following pre-tax amounts were recogdiin accumulated other comprehensive income fCibmpany's defined benefit plans at
December 31, (in millions):

2011 2010
Reconciliation of amounts recognized in the stateémé
financial position
Initial net obligation $ —$ —
Prior service cost (credi — —
Net gain (loss (22.2) (25.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I (22.2) (25.¢)
Accumulated contributions in excess of net peridinefii
cost (18.9) (14.€)
Net amount recognize $ (40.6) $ (40.9

The range of assumptions used for defiremfit pension plans reflects the different ecoroemvironments within the various
countries. The range of assumptions used to deterthe projected benefit obligations for the yearded December 31, are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 1.1%55% 1.2%5.6% 2.0%-5.9%
Expected return on plan ass 3.4%4.0% 3.5%-4.3% 3.5%-4.3%

Expected rate of compensation incre 1.0%-3.8% 1.0%3.0% 1.0%-3.0%

To determine the expected long-term ratetfrn on pension plan assets, the Company casdide current and expected asset
allocations, as well as historical and expectedrnston various asset categories of plan assetsh&@rincipal pension plans, the Company
applies the expected rate of return to a marketedlvalue of assets, which stabilizes variabititagssets to which the expected return is
applied.

Asset Allocations by Asset Categc

The fair value of the Company's pensiom @ssets at December 31, 2011, by asset categbtyydervel in the fair value hierarchy, is as
follows (in millions):

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
Total Available (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Plan Assets:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 82 % 823 % — 3 —
Debt securities
Foreign corporation 12.t — 12.t —
Foreign government 36.€ — 36.€ —
494 — 49.4 —
Equity Securities
Foreign corporation 28.€ 28.€ — —
U.S. corporation 6.C 6.C — —
34.€ 34.€ — _
Real estat 13.€ — 13.€ —
Mortgage and other asset-
backed securitie 6.7 — 6.7 —
Total plan assel $ 112¢ $ 42¢ $ 70.C $ —
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The Managing Directors of the subsidiagesresponsible for setting the policy that seagethe framework for allocating plan assets.
The policy defines an investment strategy, inclgdime asset allocation ranges, which is designethsare that the benefit obligations of the
plans can be met when they are due. The investsti@négy also is targeted at optimizing the returrinvestment within the risk constraints
of the plans. The Managing Directors appoint ttendlduciaries, who oversee the investment allocaprrocess, which includes selecting
investment managers, setting lotegm strategic targets and monitoring asset aliocat The target allocations are 40% bonds, inolydiash
35% equity investments and 25% real estate andgenges. Target allocation ranges are guidelinedjmiations, and occasionally plan
fiduciaries will approve allocations above or belawarget range based on a number of factors,dmgunarket conditions.

Estimated Future Benefit Paymen

The estimated future benefit payments aset on the same assumptions used to measurerniays benefit obligation at
December 31, 2011. The following benefit paymeefkect future employee service as appropriate (ifiams):

2012 $ 2¢€
2013 3.C
2014 S
2015 4.1
2016 4.
20172021 29.€

Other Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors various defined daution plans that cover certain domestic and irggonal employees. The Company may
make contributions to these plans at its discrefitre Company contributed $3.7 million, $2.5 mitliand $2.7 million to such plans in the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 ctasghe.

Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

Certain buildings, office equipment andicéds are leased under agreements that are acddiontas operating leases. Total rental
expense under operating leases was $18.5 millimgdmillion and $13.8 million during the years eddecember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Future minimum lease payments underaancelable operating leases at December 31, Bf¥ldach of the next five years are
as follows (in millions):

2012 $ 18.4
2013 14.1
2014 10.7
2015 8.5
2016 6.5
Thereaftel 16.c

Total $ 74.F

Capital Leases

The Company leases certain buildings uadezements that are classified as capital leasescdst of the buildings under the capital
leases is included in the consolidated balancetslaseroperty,
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plant and equipment and was $9.9 million and $iillon at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivibcumulated amortization of the
leased buildings at December 31, 2011 and 201G&#&smillion and $2.2 million, respectively. Amadition expense related to assets under
capital leases is included in depreciation expenise.obligations related to capital leases arerdszbas a component of lobgrm debt or th
current portion of long-term debt in the consol@hbalance sheets, depending on when the leaseepts/are due.

License Agreements

The Company has entered into cross-licegnagreements for various technologies that alldverotompanies to utilize certain of its
patents and related technologies over periods mgrfgpm 21 to 30 years. Income from these agreesrfenthe years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2.9 million, $3.2 milleord $2.3 million, respectively, and is classifindther revenue in the consolidated
statements of income. The unearned portions ofgee from the cross-licensing agreements are fitabas short-term or longerm deferre
revenue depending on when the revenue will be darne

The Company has also entered into licegseeanents allowing it to utilize certain patentghése patents are used in connection with a
commercial product sale, the Company pays royaitieging from 0.15% to 5.00% on the related prodexénues. Licensing fees for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,$2e8emillion, $1.8 million and $2.1 million, respely, and are recorded in cost
product revenue in the consolidated statementsooime.

Grants

The Company has received certain granta fjovernment authorities in the United States aadrany. The grants were made in
connection with the Company's development of sfienifignetic resonance core technology equipmeattgpmeters and related compon
and a standalone monitor for chemical agents. §heeanents under which these grants were awardedexgiration dates ranging between
2012 and 2015. Amounts received under these gdamitsg the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012@0@, totaled $4.0 million,
$3.8 million and $4.5 million, respectively, ane atassified as other revenue in the consolidataeraent of income. Total expenditures
related to these grants were $5.5 million, $4.3iomland $5.8 million, respectively, and are clfiedias research and development expenses
in the consolidated statements of income.

Legal

Lawsuits, claims and proceedings of a matwnsidered normal to its businesses may be pgfidim time to time against the Company.
The Company believes the outcome of these procggdindividually and in the aggregate, if any, widit have a material impact on the
Company's financial position or results of openadicAs of December 31, 2011 and 2010, no accras heen recorded for such potential
contingencies.

Internal Investigation and Compliance Matters

As previously reported, in 2011 the Auddr@mittee of the Company's Board of Directors comeedran internal investigation, with the
assistance of independent outside counsel anddapémdent forensic consulting firm, in responseeftain anonymous communications
received by the Company alleging improper conducioinnection with the China operations of the CamyfsaBruker Optics subsidiary. The
Audit Committee's investigation, which includedexiew of compliance by Bruker Optics and its emplesyin China and Hong Kong with
requirements of the Foreign Corrupt Practices A6CPA") and other applicable laws and regulatidvas been completed.
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The investigation found evidence indicatingt payments were made that improperly beneétagdloyees or agents of government-
owned enterprises in China and Hong Kong. The iny&$on also has found evidence that certain eygde of Bruker Optics in China and
Hong Kong failed to comply with the Company's piglicand standards of conduct. As a result, the @ompas taken personnel actions,
including the termination of certain individualshd Company has also terminated its business ne#dips with certain third party agents,
implemented an enhanced FCPA compliance prograthstaengthened the financial controls and oversgiits subsidiaries operating in
China and Hong Kong. Company management has atsded a review of the China operations of itsesthubsidiaries, which is being
conducted with the assistance of an independeritt féunal

The Company voluntarily contacted the Uhif#ates Securities and Exchange Commission andritied States Department of Justice
in August 2011 to advise both agencies of the matkinvestigation by the Audit Committee. In OctoB811, the Company also reported the
existence of the internal investigation to the H&wyng Joint Financial Intelligence Unit and Indedent Commission Against Corruption
("ICAC"). The Company has cooperated with the Whigtates federal agencies and Hong Kong governaughorities with respect to their
inquiries and has provided documents and/or matiesses available in response to requests fromabernmental authorities reviewing t
matter. The Company intends to continue to coopewith these agencies in connection with their ings. As was previously the case, at
time the Company cannot reasonably assess thegtioninutcome of these matters or their effectnif,an the Company's business.

The FCPA and related statutes and reguisifiwovide for potential monetary penalties as agltriminal and civil sanctions in
connection with FCPA violations. It is possiblettheonetary penalties and other sanctions coulcsbessed by the Federal government in
connection with these matters. Additionally, to éxtent any payments are determined to be illegé&bdal government authorities, civil or
criminal penalties may be assessed by such au#®and the Company's ability to conduct businedkat jurisdiction may be negatively
impacted. At this time, the Company cannot pretiietextent to which the SEC, the DOJ, the ICACror @ther governmental authorities v
pursue administrative, civil injunctive or criminaidoceedings, the imposition of fines or penaltiesther remedies or sanctions. Given the
current status of the inquiries from these agentiesCompany cannot reasonably estimate the geds#s or range of possible loss which
may result from any proceedings that may be comettby the SEC, the DOJ, the ICAC or any other guwental authorities. Accordingly,
no provision with respect to such matters has lbeeorded in the accompanying consolidated finarsta@ements. Any adverse findings or
other negative outcomes from any such proceediogisl hiave a material impact on the Company's catesteld financial statements in future
periods.

Letters of Credit and Guarantees

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Compeaaybank guarantees of $115.4 million and $108IBomi respectively, related primarily
to customer advances and warranty obligations. 8hesngements guarantee the refund of advancegmaymeceived from customers in the
event that the merchandise is not delivered oramiyrobligations are not fulfilled in compliancetiwvthe terms of the contract. These
guarantees affect the availability of the Compaligés of credit.

Indemnifications

The Company enters into standard indenatific arrangements in the Company's ordinary coofrbesiness. Pursuant to these
arrangements, the Company indemnifies, holds hasnbnd agrees to reimburse the indemnified pddidesses suffered or incurred by the
indemnified party, generally the Company's busimestners or customers, in connection with anyngata any copyright or other intellecti
property infringement claim by any third party witsspect to its products. The term of these ind&oation agreements is generally perpe
anytime after the
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execution of the agreement. The maximum potentredunt of future payments the Company could be reduib make under these
agreements is unlimited. The Company has neverriedwosts to defend lawsuits or settle claimgeel#o these indemnification agreeme
As a result, the Company believes the estimated/éile of these agreements is minimal.

The Company has entered into indemnificasigreements with its directors and officers thay mequire the Company to: indemnify its
directors and officers against liabilities that nzaise by reason of their status or service asfdire or officers, other than liabilities arising
from willful misconduct of a culpable nature; adeartheir expenses incurred as a result of any ptiog against them as to which they cc
be indemnified; and obtain directors' and officersurance if available on reasonable terms, wtiiehCompany currently has in place.

Environmental Remediation

A former owner of the land and buildingSanta Barbara, California, which serves as thedwesters for the Company's nano surfaces
business, has disclosed that there are hazardbatsues present in the ground under the buildffamagement believes that the
comprehensive indemnification clause included anghrchase agreement related to the acquisititimeafiano surfaces business provides
adequate protection against any environmental ssthat may arise.

Note 15—Shareholders' Equity
Public Offerings of Common Stock

In 2010, the Company announced plans tagsainority ownership position in its Bruker Engr§ Supercon Technologies, Inc.
("BEST") subsidiary through an initial public offeg of the capital stock of BEST. As a result obeemic and market factors the completion
and timing of this offering is uncertain.

Dividends

The terms of some of the Company's indetessl currently restrict the Company's ability tg gavidends to its shareholders.
Stock Plans
Bruker Corporation Stock Plar

In February 2010, the Bruker BioSciencegpOmtion Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Optian,Rir the 2000 Plan, expired at the
end of its scheduled ten-year term. On March 902€@1e Company's Board of Directors unanimouslyeyed and adopted the Bruker
Corporation 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan, er2010 Plan, and on May 14, 2010, the 2010 Plarappsoved by the Company's
stockholders. The 2010 Plan provides for the isseiaf up to 8,000,000 shares of the Company's canstuzk. The Plan allows a commit
of the Board of Directors (the "Committee") to grartentive stock options, non-qualified stock ops and restricted stock awards. The
Committee has the authority to determine which eygxs will receive the awards, the amount of tharde/and other terms and conditions
of the award. Awards granted by the Committee Bipiosest over a period of three to five years.
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Stock option activity for the year endedcBmber 31, 2011, was as follows:

Shares Weighted Weighted Average Aggregate
Subject to Average Remaining Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Option Price Term (Yrs) (in millions) (b)
Outstanding at December 31
2010 4,718,64i $ 9.9¢
Granted 904,24 13.91
Exercisec (354,559 9.2¢ $ 3.2
Forfeited (172,080 12.7¢
Outstanding at December 31
2011 5,096,25. $ 10.6¢4 6.3 $ 11.€
Vested at December 31, 20 2,769,100 $ 8.7¢ 48 $ 10.4
Vested and expected to vest
December 31, 2011 (i 497524 $ 10.5¢ 6.3 $ 11.7

(@) In addition to the options that are vested at Ddmn31, 2011, the Company expects a portion ofittvested options
vest in the future. Options expected to vest inftitere are determined by applying an estimateféfimre rate to the
options that are unvested as of December 31, 2011.

(b)  The aggregate intrinsic value is based on theipedifference between the fair value of the Conyfanommon stock
price of $12.42 on December 31, 2011, or the dagxercises, as appropriate, and the exercise pfittee underlying
stock options

Unrecognized pre-tax stobksed compensation expense of $14.1 million rekatstbck options awarded under the 2000 and 20drs
is expected to be recognized over the weightedagearemaining service period of 2.2 years for stimtions outstanding at December 31,
2011.

Restricted shares of the Company's comrtamk @re periodically awarded to executive officelisectors and certain key employees of
the Company, subject to service restrictions wieixpire ratably over periods of three to five yeditse restricted shares of common stock
may not be sold or transferred during the restnicperiod. Stock-based compensation for restristeck is recorded based on the stock price
on the grant date and charged to expense rataioygh the restriction period. The following tabieremarizes information about restricted
stock activity during the year ended December 81,12

Weighted

Shares Average

Subject to Grant Date

Restriction Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 247,25¢ $ 8.0z
Granted 156,82: 21.2¢
Vested (167,549 6.7C
Forfeited (300 7.5t
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 236,23: $ 17.7¢

Unrecognized pre-tax stock-based compeamsatipense of $3.3 million related to restrictextktawarded under the 2000 Plan is
expected to be recognized over the weighted avesgaining service period of 3.3 years for awangdstanding at December 31, 2011.

Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies Stock Pl

In October 2009, the Board of Director8&ST adopted the Bruker Energy & Supercon Technednc. 2009 Stock Option Plan, or
the BEST Plan. The BEST Plan provides for the
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issuance of up to 1,600,000 shares of BEST commuak 1 connection with awards under the BEST Pldre BEST Plan allows a
committee of the BEST Board of Directors to grantieintive stock options, non-qualified stock optiansgl restricted stock awards. The
Compensation Committee of the BEST Board of Dinectas the authority to determine which employedlgeceive the awards, the amount
of the awards and other terms and conditions o&tt&rds. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 800rdf#htive stock options and non-
qualified stock options, respectively, had beenrded to key employees and directors of the Computiyvesting periods of three to five
years. In March 2011, the Compensation Committee@BEST Board of Directors approved additionalapgrants for 384,000 shares

be issued to certain key employees, to be effecipan and subject to the closing of an initial pubffering of the capital stock of BEST. If
awarded, the exercise price of the option granlisoeiequal to the closing price of shares of BEBMmon stock on the NASDAQ Global
Market on the first day of trading following theosing of a BEST initial public offering. As of Daober 31, 2011, no restricted stock has
been awarded under the BEST Plan.

In 2011 and 2010, the Company recordedaqimately $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectiyeof pre-tax stock-based compensation
expense related to awards granted under the BEST Bhrecognized pre-tax stock-based compensatipense of $1.2 million related to
stock options awarded under the BEST Plan is erpéctbe recognized over the weighted average réngeservice period of 2.3 years for
awards outstanding at December 31, 2011.

Note 16—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following is a summary of the composearitaccumulated other comprehensive income, nietxofat December 31, (in millions):

Unrealized Accumulated

Foreign Losses on Pension Other
Currency Cash Flow Liability Comprehensive

Translation Hedges Adjustment Income
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 158.¢ $ 4.8 $ (16.9) $ 137.¢
Other comprehensive incor 8.€ (1.2 5.8 13.2
Realized loss on reclassificati — 2.5 — 2.t
Balance at December 31, 2C 167.5 (3.5 (10.5) 153.t
Other comprehensive income (lo 8.3 2.1 9.9 (3.7
Realized loss on reclassificati — 2.€ — 2.€
Balance at December 31, 2C 175.¢ (3.0 (20.9 152.¢
Other comprehensive income (lo (14.7) 0.3 2.8 (12.7)
Realized loss on reclassificati — 2.2 — 2.2
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 1611 $ 1.1) $ 7.5 $ 142.%

Note 17—Deferred Offering Costs

In September 2010, the Company announ@atsb sell a minority ownership position in its8Esubsidiary through an initial public
offering of the capital stock of BEST. As a resafleconomic and market factors the timing of theSBEnitial public offering is uncertain.
Although BEST remains in registration, the Compargensed $3.4 million of deferred offering cost2@i1 based on the uncertainty in the
timing of a future offering. These costs are reedrth write-off of deferred offering costs in thensolidated statements of income.

107




Table of Contents
Note 18—Other Charges, Net
The components of other charges, net ®y#dars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2008 asdollows (in millions):

2011 2010 2009

Acquisitior-related charges (Note $12 $ 18 $ 0.8
Transitionrelated charges incurred in connection with acqlimesinesse
(Note 3) 3.C 2.8 —
Gain on bargain purcha — — (1.3
Professional fees incurred in connection with iné¢investigation
(Note 14) 4.3 — —
Restructuring charge 1.C 0.2 0.2
Loss on divestiture of busine — 1.C —
Impairment charge — — 0.7
Other charges, ni 0.2 — —
$ 97 $58 % 04

In 2011, the Company initiated a plan imalate its atomic force microscopy operations arlB, Germany and consolidate them with
the nano surfaces business at its facility in SBatdbara, California. In connection with this plarhich is referred to in the table below as the
Berlin program, the Company recorded restructucimarges of $1.3 million in the fourth quarter ofi20consisting of $0.9 million of
severance costs, $0.3 million provisions for ex@stsobsolete inventory and $0.1 million of feesamnection with implementing this plan.
The restructuring charges relate entirely to thier8iic Instruments. The provision for excess intary has been recorded as a component of
cost of product revenue in the consolidated statémieincome. The remaining charges are recordedamsnponent of other charges, net in
the consolidated statement of income. The Compapgas to record an additional $0.7 million in ceation with this plan in 2012,
consisting of $0.4 million of severance for empley¢hat are required to provide services beyonthamam retention period and $0.3 milli
of costs related to the relocation.

In 2010, the Company recorded restructucimarges of $0.2 million, which related primarityseverance incurred in connection with
closing of a production facility in Herzogenrathet@any and relocating the associated operationshvidreferred to in the table below as
the Herzogenrath program. These charges, whicteretdirely to the Scientific Instruments segmergre recorded as a component of other
charges, net in the consolidated statement of ikcdie Company does not expect to incur any additicosts related to this move and all of
the related severance payments had been paid atibec 31, 2010.

The following table sets forth the chanipethe reserves for restructuring charges (in omiki):

Provisions
for Excess
Total Inventory Severance EXxit Costs
Balance at December 31, 2C $ — 3 — 3 — 9 —
Restructuring charges related to the Herzogen
program 0.2 — 0.2 —
Cash payment (0.2 — (0.2 —

Foreign currency impai — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2C — — — —
Restructuring charges related to the Berlin
program 1.3 0.2 0.¢ 0.1
Cash payment — — — —
Foreign currency impau — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 13 $ 0.2 % 0¢c % 0.1
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In 2009, the Company recorded an impairnoshatge of $0.7 million, which consisted of equipitnesed in the production of certain
superconducting wire. The impairment loss was mebibecause the Company determined that the cgivgine of the assets exceeded the
estimated undiscounted operating cash flows gezettat the asset group. The amount of the impairmiesatge was determined by compa
the fair value of this asset group to its carryiadpe. The Company determined the fair value ofagset group by using an income approach
methodology of valuation. The impairment charge aléscated to the Energy & Supercon Technologigsnamt and has been recorded as a
component of other charges, net in the consolidstaements of income.

Note 19—Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

The components of interest and other incempense), net for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, were as follows
(in millions):

2011 2010 2009

Interest incom: $ 1C $ 0¢ $ 1C
Interest expens (7.3 (5.6) (7.5)
Exchange losses on foreign currency transac (4.4 (2.5 (1.9
Other 0.€ 0.€ 0.8
Interest and other income (expense), $ (10.7) $ (5.€) $ (7.6

Note 20—Business Segment Information

The Company has determined that it hasdp&rating segments based on the information redevy the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, representing each of its five divisions: IBruBioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MAT, Brukep@cs and Bruker Energy & Supercon
Technologies. Bruker BioSpin is in the businesdeadigning, manufacturing and distributing enablifegscience tools based on magnetic
resonance technology. Bruker Daltonics is in tharmss of manufacturing and distributing mass spewttry and gas chromatography
instruments that can be integrated and used aldthgother analytical instruments and the Compa@B&NE detection products. Bruker
MAT is in the business of manufacturing and disttilbhg advanced X-ray, spark-optical emission spsciopy, atomic force microscopy and
stylus and optical metrology instrumentation usedadn-destructive molecular and elemental anal@sisker Optics is in the business of
manufacturing and distributing research, analytical process analysis instruments and solutioredbas infrared and Raman molecular
spectroscopy technologies. Bruker Energy & Supeii@ahnologies is in the business of developing@oducing low temperature
superconductor and high temperature supercondo@terials for use in advanced magnet technologyeaedgy applications as well as lin
accelerators, accelerator cavities, insertion ésyisuperconducting fault current limiters, otherederator components and specialty
superconducting magnets for physics and energwaresend a variety of other scientific applications

The Company's reportable segments are &by the types of products and services providied Company has combined the Brt
BioSpin, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker MAT and Bruker {@s operating segments into the Scientific Insguais reporting segment because each
has similar economic characteristics, product ses and services, types and classes of custamatisyds of distribution and regulatory
environments.

Management evaluates segment operatingnoeahce and allocates resources based on opeiatimge (loss). The Company uses this
measure because it helps provide an understanélitgyamre
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operating results. Selected business segment iaf@mis presented below for the years ended DeeeBih (in millions):

2011 2010 2009

Revenue

Scientific Instrument $ 1,554.0 $ 1,225.0 $ 1,062.

Energy & Supercon Technologi 113.¢ 90.t 59.¢

Eliminations (& (15.9) (10.7) (8.0
Total revenus $ 1,651.° $ 1,304.¢ $ 1,114

Operating Income (Loss

Scientific Instrument $ 162.¢ $ 1605 $ 1417

Energy & Supercon Technologi (4.7 (2.6) (6.3

Corporate, eliminations and other (3.2 (2.2 1.3
Total operating incom $ 155 $ 1557 $ 136.7

€)) Represents product and service revenue betweertabfgsegments.

(b) Represents corporate costs and eliminations ratag#d to the reportable segments.

Total assets by segment as of and for #laesyended December 31, are as follows (in miljions

2011 2010

Assets:

Scientific Instrument $ 1,675.( $ 1,515.¢

Energy & Supercon Technologi 104.¢ 84.4

Eliminations and other ( (68.9) (50.9
Total asset $ 1,710.f $ 1,549.¢

(@)  Assets not allocated to the reportable segmentelimihations of intercompany transactions.

Total capital expenditures and depreciatiod amortization by segment are presented belothéoyears ended December 31,
(in millions):

2011 2010 2009

Capital Expenditures

Scientific Instrument $ 451 $ 26.€ $ 14.1

Energy & Supercon Technologi 9.3 5.3 2.2
Total capital expenditure $ 544 $ 31.¢ $ 16.c

Depreciation and Amortizatiol

Scientific Instrument $ 491 $ 326 $ 26.€

Energy & Supercon Technologi 3.8 3.3 3.1
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 52.¢ $ 36.1 $ 29.7
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Revenue and property, plant and equipmgigiegraphical area as of and for the year endegmleer 31, are as follows (in millions):

2011 2010 2009
Revenue
United State: $ 3092 $ 264.C $ 209.:
Germany 195.c 181.¢ 192.2
Rest of Europ 483.2 384.1 340.¢
Asia Pacific 500.7 342.7 264.¢
Other 163.: 132t 107.4
Total revenus $ 1,651.° $ 1,304.¢ $ 1,114!
2011 2010
Property, plant and equipme
United State: $ 44¢ $ 40C
Germany 132.2 126.(
Rest of Europ 60.2 59.2
Asia Pacific 7.3 5.€
Other 4.3 2.€
Total property, plant and equipme $ 249.C $ 233.7

Note 21—Related Parties

The Company rents office space from cerdiits principal shareholders, certain of whiclk atso members of our Board of Directors,
under multiple leases, which have expiration dedeging from 2012 to 2021. Total rent expense utlikese leases was $2.4 million,
$2.4 million and $2.1 million for the years endeed@mber 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 20010 2nd 2009, the Company incurred expenses ofrlidn, $2.9 million and
$1.1 million, respectively, to a law firm in whicme of the members of its Board of Directors isgrger.

During the years ended December 31, 20010 2nd 2009, the Company incurred expenses ofriillibn, $0.3 million and
$0.6 million, respectively, to a financial servides in which one of the members of its Board afdators is a partner.

Note 22—Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB amended ASC IB&ingibles—Goodwill and OtherThis amendment is intended to reduce the cost and
complexity of the annual goodwill impairment tegtdgroviding entities an option to perform a qudiita assessment to determine whether
further impairment testing is necessary. The amepdevisions are effective for reporting periodgibaing on or after December 15, 2011.
However, early adoption is permitted if an entifif®ncial statements for the most recent annuaiterim period have not yet been issued.
The Company adopted the provisions of this amendfoeiits annual test of impairment as of Decentiier2011; however, this amendment
impacts testing steps only and, therefore, adomtidmot have an impact on the Company's conse@ifihancial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB amended ASC Z2imprehensive Incoméhis amendment was issued to enhance compayatmiitveen
entities that report under GAAP and InternatioriabRcial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and to prevadmore consistent method of
presenting non-owner transactions that affect aityenequity. The amendment requires companigsdeent the components of net
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income and other comprehensive income either ag@minuous statement or as two separate but cotisestatements. It eliminates the
option to report other comprehensive income anddtaponents as part of the statement of changgsaireholders' equity. The amended
provisions are effective for fiscal years, andiimeperiods within those years, beginning after &aber 15, 2011. Early adoption is
permitted, and full retrospective application iguiged. This amendment impacts presentation araliodisre only, and therefore adoption will
not have an impact on the Company's consolidatethéiial position, results of operations or castvélo

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2041 fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Amendments toeke Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Real IFRS("ASU No. 2011-04"). The amendments in this upcatply to all
reporting entities that are required or permit@dieasure or disclose the fair value of an asdihiity, or an instrument classified in a
reporting entity's shareholders' equity in thefficial statements. ASU No. 2011-04 does not exteedise of fair value accounting, but
provides guidance on how it should be applied witsrese is already required or permitted by ottandards within U.S. GAAP or IFRS.
ASU No. 2011-04 changes the wording used to desenidny requirements in U.S. GAAP for measuringfalue and for disclosing
information about fair value measurements. Addiibn ASU No. 2011-04 clarifies the FASB's intebbat the application of existing fair
value measurements. The amendments in this update be applied prospectively. For public entittb® amendments are effective during
interim and annual periods beginning after DeceniBe?011. Early application by public entitiesi@ permitted. The Company does not
expect the provisions of ASU No. 2011-04 to haweagerial effect on its financial position, reswfsoperations or cash flows.

Note 23—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

A summary of operating results for the ¢eidy periods in the years ended December 31, 20812010, is set forth below (in millions,
except per share data):

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Year ended December 31, 201

Net revenue $ 357.C $ 4012 $ 418.< $ 475.1
Gross profit 161.¢ 183.€ 189.¢ 217.1
Operating incom: 25.7 38.7 37.t 53.7
Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat 11.2 22.1 19.¢ 39.1

Net income per common share attributabl
Bruker Corporation shareholde

Basic $ 007 $ 01 $ 0.1z $ 0.24

Diluted $ 007 $ 01 $ 0.1z $ 0.2:
Year ended December 31, 2010
Net revenue $ 2777 $ 300¢ $ 310z $ 416.]
Gross profit 126.1 135.: 146.5 196.1
Operating incom: 26.€ 37.¢ 39.2 51.€
Net income attributable to Bruker Corporat 16.1 22.¢ 27.4 29.5
Net income per common share attributabl

Bruker Corporation shareholde

Basic $ 01C $ 014 % 0.17 $ 0.1¢

Diluted $ 01C $ 014 % 017 $ 0.1¢
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ITEM9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ADITING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A° CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controlspendedures that are designed to ensure that mlatgormation relating to us, including our
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ouefdakecutive Officer (principal executive officeaiid Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer) by others within our organizatidUnder the supervision and with the participatdour management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wenducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofdisslosure controls and procedures as of
December 31, 2011. Based on this evaluation, olgf@&xecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officesrecluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of December 311, #Densure that the information required to lseldsed by us in the reports that we file
or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1i83écorded, processed, summarized and reportbaéthwie time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control divemncial reporting. Under the supervision
and with the participation of our management, iditig our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finariédficer, we conducted an evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control ovieafcial reporting as of December 31, 2011, basetthe criteria established internal
Control—Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this
evaluation, our management has concluded thanéennial control over financial reporting was effeetas of December 31, 2011.

The attestation report issued by Ernst &g LLP, our independent registered public accognfirm, on our internal control over
financial reporting is included herein.

Changes in Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal abuatver financial reporting that occurred during tjuarter ended December 31, 2011 that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tteaf, our internal control over financial reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Bruker Corporation

We have audited Bruker Corporation's irdéoontrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg&r 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byG@oenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). Bruker Corporation's management is rasfe for maintaining effective internal contrales financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilé to express an opinion on the Company's intemwtrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withgstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanagigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fic& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfirz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Bruker Corporation maintdh in all material respects, effective internaitcol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Bruker Corporatiosf ®@ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the relatesbtidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity and comprehensive incomecasid flows for each of the three years in the pegimded December 31, 2011 of Bruker
Corporation and our report dated February 29, 2f2essed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012

ITEM9B OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNXCE

The full text of the Company's code of eshiwhich applies to its principal executive offigerincipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer, controller and board of direst published on the Company's Investor Relatwesis site atvww.bruker.com We intend
to disclose future amendments to certain provisafreur Code, or waivers of such provisions grariteexecutive officers and directors, on
the web site within four business days following thate of such amendment or waiver.

Information regarding our executive offie@nay be found under the captioBXecutive Officer§ in our definitive proxy statement for
our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Informatregarding our directors, including committeeswif Board of Directors and our Audit
Committee Financial Experts, may be found underctpions'Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors," "Board Migts, Committees and
Compensationand"Audit Committee Reporih our definitive proxy statement for our 2012 Aahieeting of Stockholders. Information
regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exaie Act may be found in our definitive proxy stagat for our 2012 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders under the captioséction 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coarle." Information regarding the procedures by which
security holders may recommend nominees to ourdBofbDirectors may be found in our definitive prostatement for our 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the captidditector Nominations' Such information is incorporated herein by refee

ITEM11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensatimay be found under the caption8dmpensation of Directors," "Compensation
Discussion and Analysis," "Summary of Executive @araation," "Compensation Committee Interlocks laséer Participation“and
"Compensation Committee Repart“our definitive proxy statement for our 2012 AmhiMeeting of Stockholders. Such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table summarizes informatesout our equity compensation plans as of Dece@be2011:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

Number of Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Weighted-Average Compensation
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans (excluding
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, securities reflected
Period Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 533248 $ 10.9¢ 6,440,75!
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde N/A N/A N/A
5332,48 $ 10.9¢ 6,440,75!

The Bruker Corporation 2010 Incentive Congadion Plan, or the 2010 Plan, was approved bgtogkholders in May 2010. The 2010
Plan has a term of ten years and provides forstheaince of up to 8,000,000 shares of the Compeoyismon stock.
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The information contained in our definitippoxy statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting ofcRtwlders under the captid8ecurity
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managetthis incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information contained in our definitipeoxy statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting ofcRtwlders under the captiotiRelated
Persons Transactionsand"Board Meetings, Committees and Compensatisiricorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained in our definitipeoxy statement for our 2012 Annual Meeting ofcRtwlders under the captions
"Independent Registered Public Accounting Fimmd"Proposal No. 2—Ratification of Independent RegétéPublic Accountingis
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

€)) Financial Statements and Schedul

Q) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statsrts of Bruker Corporation are filed as part of tle@port under Item 8.—Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data:

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registdpreittlic Accounting Firn

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,804 201(

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@imcember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquityCGamdprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2011, 2010 and z

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

2 Financial Statement Schedule

All schedules have been omitted becausedhenot required or because the required infdomas provided in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or Notes thereto set fortleutidm 8 above.

(3)  Exhibits

(b)  List of Exhibits

Filed Incorporated by Reference (1)
Exhibit No. Description Herewith Form Date

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 17, 8-K April 18, 2006
2006, by and among Bruker BioSciences
Corporation, Bruker Optics Inc. and the
stockholders of Bruker Optics In

2.2 U.S. Stock Purchase Agreement, dated 8-K December 3, 2007
December 2, 2007, by and among the
Registrant, Bruker BioSpin Inc. and the
stockholders of Bruker BioSpin In

2.2 German Share Purchase Agreement, dated 8-K December 3, 2007
December 2, 2007, by and among the
Registrant, Bruker Physik GmbH, Techneon
AG and the shareholders of Bruker
Physik Gmb}

2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of 8-K December 3, 2007
December 2, 2007 by and among the
Registrant, Bruker BioSpin Invest AG, Bruker
BioSpin Beteiligungs AG and the shareholders
of Bruker BioSpin Invest AC

2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of 10-Q/A March 31, 2010
March 9, 2010 between Agilent
Technologies Inc. and Bruker Corporat
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Exhibit No.

Description Herewith

Filed

Incorporated by Reference (1)

Form

Date

2.€

3.1

41

10.11

10.21

10.31

10.41

10.11°

10.12°

10.19°

10.25°

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of
August 15, 2010 among Veeco
Instruments Inc., Veeco Metrology Inc. and
Bruker Corporatiot

Amended Certificate of Incorporation of the
Registran

Bylaws of the Registrat

Specimen stock certificate representing shares

of common stock of the Registre

Bruker Corporation 2010 Incentive
Compensation Pla

Bruker Corporation 2010 Incentive
Compensation Plan Form of Incentive Stock
Option Agreemen

Bruker Corporation 2010 Incentive
Compensation Plan Form of Non-Qualified
Stock Option Agreemel

Bruker Corporation 2010 Incentive
Compensation Plan Form of Restricted Stock
Agreemen

Contract dated October 1, 1998 between
Bruker AXS GmbH and GKSS
Forschungszentrum Geesthacht GmbH, as
amendec

Contract dated July 31, 1997 between Bruker
AXS GmbH and Siemens Aktiengesellschaft
Berlin und Munchen Bereich Medizinische
Technik

Agreement on Development, Supply and
Marketing dated August 2, 2001 between
Bruker AXS GmbH and Siemens Medical
Solutions Rontgenwerk Rudolste

Employment Offer Letter dated as of
September 25, 2004 from Bruker BioSciences
Corporation to William J. Knigt

118

8-K

10-K

S1

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

S-1

S-1

S-1

8-K

October 7, 2010

December 31, 200

August 3, 200(

April 22, 2004

June 4, 2010

June 30, 2010

June 30, 2010

June 30, 2010

December 31, 20C

December 31, 200

December 31, 200

October 12, 2004
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Filed
Exhibit No. Description Herewith

Incorporated by Reference (1)

Form

Date

10.3C Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of May 24, 2011 among the Comp
Bruker AXS GmbH, Bruker Daltonik GmbH,
Bruker Optik GmbH, Bruker Physik GmbH,
Bruker BioSpin Invest AG, Bruker BioSpin
AG and Bruker BioSpin International AG, the
other foreign subsidiary borrowers from tim
time party thereto, the lenders from time to
time party thereto, Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., Commerzbank Ag, New York,
Grand Cayman And Stuttgart Branches and
RBS Citizens, National Association, as Co-
Documentation Agents, Bank of America, N
as Syndication Agent and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Age

10.31** Note Purchase Agreement dated a
January 18, 201.

10.34° Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, Inc.
2009 Stock Option Pla

10.35° Form of Bruker Energy & Supercon
Technologies, Inc. Incentive Stock Option
Agreemen

10.36° Form of Bruker Energy & Supercon
Technologies, Inc. NoRualified Stock Optio
Agreemen

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registre X

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent X
Registered Public Accounting Fir

24.1 Power of attorney (included on signature page X
hereto)

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer X
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.Zz Certification by Chief Financial Officer X
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer X
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adc
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer X
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adc
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

119

8-K

8-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

May 25, 2011

January 18, 2012

December 31, 200

December 31, 200

December 31, 200
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Filed Incorporated by Reference (1)
Exhibit No. Description Herewith Form Date
101 The following materials from the Bruker X

Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statemer
Income, (iii) Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive
Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows and (iv) Notes to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements

*%

(1)

)

Certain portions have been omitted pursuant tordergranting confidential treatment and have bided separately
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment requested as to certainqust which portions have been omitted and filgohsately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Designates management contract or compensatoryoplamangement.

In accordance with Rule 12b-32 under the Exchangeé&erence is made to the documents previoulgg fiith the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which docunaetiereby incorporated by reference. The dattdlfor
Forms 8-K are dates the respective forms were €iledhe dates listed for Forms 10-Q, Forms 10-& Borms 10-K/A
are for the quarterly or annual period ended datelsthe dates listed for Forms S-1, Forms S-3 amch§ S-4 are dates
on which the Securities and Exchange Commissiotadetthem effective.

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T,XiBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this Anal Report on
Form 10-K is deemed not part of a registrationestesnt or prospectus for purposes of sections 1P aif the Securities
Act, is deemed not filed for purposes of Sectioroflthe Exchange Act, and otherwise is not suliediability under
these section:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, régistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

BRUKER CORPORATION

By: /s/ FRANK H. LAUKIEN, PH.D.

Name: Frank H. Laukien, Ph.|
Date: February 29, 201 Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairn

We, the undersigned officers and directdBruker Corporation, hereby severally constitamel appoint Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D. to s
for us and in our names in the capacities indicatddw, the report on Form 10-K filed herewith ay and all amendments to such report,
and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto atiter documents in connection therewith, in eagdecwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and generally to do all such thingsinnames and on our behalf in our capacities stersgi with the provisions of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, amelcalirements of the Securities and Exchange Casion.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidielow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ FRANK H. LAUKIEN, PH.D. President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmannépal

Executive Officer)

February 29, 201
Frank H. Laukien, Ph.C

/sl WILLIAM J. KNIGHT

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and @aunting Officer’ February 29, 201
William J. Knight

/sl WOLF-DIETER EMMERICH, PH.D.

Director February 29, 201
Wolf-Dieter Emmerich, Ph.LC
/sl STEPHEN W. FESIK, PH.D.
Director February 29, 201
Stephen W. Fesik, Ph.I
/sl BRENDA J. FURLONG
Director February 29, 201
Brenda J. Furlon
/sl TONY W. KELLER, PH.D.
Director February 29, 201

Tony W. Keller, Ph.D
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Name

/s/ RICHARD D. KNISS

Richard D. Kniss

/s/ DIRK D. LAUKIEN, PH.D.

Dirk D. Laukien, Ph.D

/sl JOERG C. LAUKIEN

Joerg C. Laukiel

/s/ WILLIAM A. LINTON

William A. Linton

/s RICHARD A. PACKER

Richard A. Packe

/s/ RICHARD M. STEIN

Richard M. Steir

/sl CHARLES F. WAGNER, JR.

Charles F. Wagner, <

/sI BERNHARD WANGLER

Bernhard Wangle

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201

February 29, 201
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SUBSIDIARIES OF BRUKER CORPORATION

Name of Subsidiary
Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, It

Bruker HTS GmbH (1

Bruker Advanced Supercon GmbH |

Bruker EAS GmbH (2
Hydrostatic Extrusions Ltd. (I
RI Research Instruments GmbH

Bruker AXS Inc.

Bruker AXS GmbH (4
Bruker Austria GmbH (5

Bruker AXS Analytical Instruments Pvt. Ltd. (

Bruker AXS Nordic AB (5]
Bruker AXS Pte Ltd (5
Bruker AXS SAS (5
Bruker Baltic OU (5
Bruker do Brasil Ltda. (5
Bruker Elemental GmbH (&
Bruker Nano GmbH (6
Bruker Mexicana S.A. de C.V. (!
Bruker Polska Sp. Z o.0. (
Bruker South Africa (Pty) Ltd. (£
MRI Physikalische Gerate GmbH (
InCoaTec GmbH (7
Bruker AXS Handheld Inc. (€
Bruker AXS K.K. (8)
Bruker AXS B.V. (8)
Bruker Nano, Inc. (8
Bruker TMT Inc. (9)

Bruker BioSciences Security Corporati
Bruker BioSpin Corporatio

Bruker BioSpin Invest AG (1C
Bruker BioSpin AG (11
Bruker Espanola S.A. (1:
Bruker BioSpin International AG (1:

Bruker (Beijing) Technologies & Services Co. Lttl2}

Bruker (Malaysia) SDN BHD (12
Bruker BioSpin Pte Ltd. (12
Bruker—Rossia, LLC (12

Bruker India Scientific PVT, Ltd. (12
Bruker India Suppliers PVT, Ltd. (1:

Bruker BioSpin K.K. (11
Bruker BioSpin Korea Co. Ltd. (1:
Bruker BioSpin MRI GmbH (11
Bruker BioSpin MRI Inc. (11
Bruker BioSpin MRI Ltd. (11
Bruker BioSpin Scandinavia AB (1
Bruker BioSpin B.V. (11
Bruker Ltd. (11)
Bruker UK Ltd. (11)
Bruker AXS Ltd. (14)
Oxford Research Systems Ltd. (:
Bruker BioSpin PTY Ltd. (16
Bruker BioSpin S.A. (11
Bruker BioSpin S.A./N.V. (11
Bruker Italia S.r.l. (11
Bruker Portugal Unipessoal LDA (1
Bruker Scientific Israel Ltd. (11
Bruker Physik GmbH (17
Bruker BioSpin GmbH (18
Perch Solutions OY (1¢

Bruker Daltonics Inc.

Bruker Daltonik GmbH (20
Bruker Daltonics s.r.o. (2!

Bruker Saxonia Mechanik GmbH (2

Bruker Daltonics Pvt. Ltd. (21
Bruker BioSciences Korea Co., Ltd. (z
Bruker Taiwan Co. Ltd. (22

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Delaware, U.S.A
Germany
Germany
Germany

United Kingdom
Germany
Delaware, U.S.A
Germany
Austria

India

Sweder
Singapore
France

Estonia

Brazil

Germany
Germany
Mexico

Poland

South Africa
Germany
Germany
Delaware, U.S.A
Japar
Netherland:
Arizona, U.S.A
California, U.S.A.
Massachusetts, U.S.,
Massachusetts, U.S.,
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
Spain
Switzerlanc
China

Malaysia
Singapore
Russia

India

India

Japar

Korea

Germany
Massachusetts, U.S.,
United Kingdom
Sweder
Netherland:
Canade

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia

France

Belgium

Italy

Portugal

Israel

Germany
Germany
Finland
Delaware, U.S.A
Germany

Czech Republi
Germany

India

South Kores
Taiwan

EXHIBIT 21.1

Name of Subsidiary

Bruker Daltonics K.K. (22

Bruker Daltonics Pte Ltd (22

Bruker Daltonics Pty Ltd. (22

Bruker Daltonics Scandinavia AB (2
Bruker Daltonics SPRL/BVBA (22
Bruker Chemical Analysis B.V. (2:

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Japar
Singapore
South Africa
Sweder
Belgium
Netherland:



Bruker BioSciences Pty. Ltd. (2 Australia
Bruker Daltonics GmbH (22 Switzerlanc
Bruker Daltonics Ltd. (22 United Kingdom
Bruker Daltonics S.r.l. (22 Italy
Bruker Daltonique S.A. (22 France

Bruker Detection Corporation (2.
Bruker-Michrom Inc.
Bruker Optics Inc.

Massachusetts, U.S.,
California, U.S.A.
Delaware, U.S.A

Bruker Optics K.K. (24 Japar
Bruker Optics Korea (2t South Kores
Bruker Optics GmbH (24 Switzerlanc
RPD Tool AG (26, Switzerlanc
Bruker Optics LTD (24 Canade
Bruker Optics Ltd. (24 United Kingdom
Bruker Optik GmbH (24 Germany
Bruker Instruments Ltd. (27 China
Bruker Optics AB (27 Sweder
Bruker Optics Ukraine (27 Ukraine
Bruker Optics B.V. (27 Netherlands
Bruker Optik Asia Pacific Limited (27 Hong Kong
Bruker Optics Taiwan Ltd. (2¢ Taiwan
Bruker Optik Southeast Asia Pte Ltd (¢ Singapore
Bruker Optique SA (27 France

These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofkBriEnergy & Supercon Technologies, Inc.

RI Research Instruments GmbH is an indirect suasidif Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, RcResearch Instruments GmbH is 51% owned by

InCoaTec GmbH is an indirect subsidiary of Bruke¢AGmbH. InCoaTec GmbH is owned 66% by Bruker AXiBI5.

Bruker BioSpin Invest AG is 90% owned by Bruker 8jpn Corp. and 10% owned by Bruker Corporation.

Oxford Research Systems, Ltd. is 50% owned by Br8keSpin Invest AG and 50% owned by Bruker BioSpid.
Bruker BioSpin PTY Ltd. is 99.99% owned by Brukeo8pin Invest AG and 0.01% owned by Oxford Rese&ys$tems, Ltd.

Bruker Physik GmbH is 50.5% owned by Bruker BioS@iorporation, 24.75% owned by Bruker Daltonik Gt 24.75% owned by Bruker Optik GmbH.

Perch Solution OY is an indirect subsidiary of BeuBioSpin GmbH. Perch Solution OY GmbH is 51% odbg Bruker BioSpin GmbH.

(€Y
) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofdBriHTS GmbH.
(©) :
Bruker Energy & Supercon Technologies, Inc.
(4) Bruker AXS GmbH is 90% owned by Bruker AXS Inc. a@P by Bruker Corporation.
(5) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofBriAXS GmbH.
(6) Bruker Nano GmbH is a wholly-owned subsidiary otiBer Elemental GmbH.
@)
8) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofdBriAXS Inc.
9) Bruker TMT Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ber Nano, Inc.
(10)
(11) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofk@riBioSpin Invest AG.
(12) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries atek8r BioSpin International AG.
(13) Bruker India Suppliers PVT, Ltd. is wholly-ownedsidiaries of Bruker India Scientific PVT, Ltd.
(14) Bruker AXS Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ber BioSpin Ltd.
(15)
(16)
an
(18) Bruker BioSpin GmbH is a wholly-owned subsidiaryBrtiker Physik GmbH.
(19)
(20) Bruker Daltonik GmbH is 90% owned by Bruker Dal@sinc. and 10% by Bruker Corporation.
(21) These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofkBruDaltonik GmbH.

(22)

These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries ofk@ruiDaltonics Inc.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333-1673@8jgning to the Bruker Corporation 2010 Incenf@@mpensation Plan,

2 Registration Statement (Form S-3, No. 333-159988)ralated Prospectus of Bruker Corporation forréggstration of
70,000,000 shares of its common stock, and

3) Registration Statements (Form S-8, Nos. 333-150338,137090, 333-107294, and 333-47836) pertaiturthe Bruker
BioSciences Corporation Amended and Restated 2@@k ®ption Plan;

of our reports dated February 29, 2012, with resjmethe consolidated financial statements of Brukerporation and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Bruk&orporation included in this Annual Report (Fori:K) of Bruker Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Frank H. Laukien, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-WBfker Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the registranttdaisre controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the regi$ganternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrar
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraérofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniaggement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ FRANK H. LAUKIEN, PH.D.

Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairn
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, William J. Knight, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-WBfker Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the registranttdaisre controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the regi$ganternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrar
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationtexhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsehe design or operation of internal contraérofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniaggement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ WILLIAM J. KNIGHT

William J. Knight
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 907 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Beu Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-K foe frear ended December 31, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Frank H. Laukias President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directorstoé Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secti®®0, as adopted pursuant to
Section 907 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, th#he best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of12®d

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ FRANK H. LAUKIEN, PH.D.

Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D.

President, Chief Executive Officer a
Chairman

(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 907 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Beu Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-K foe frear ended December 31, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, William J. ght, as Chief Financial Officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0135 adopted pursuant to Section 907 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that to the best
of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of12®d

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ WILLIAM J. KNIGHT

William J. Knight
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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